
Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Colma Town Hall 

1198 El Camino Real 
Colma, CA 94014 

 

Wednesday, April 10, 2019 
7:00 PM 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND ROLL CALL 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

PRESENTATION  

• Peninsula Council of Lions Clubs Police and Fire Award Winner Sergeant Dawn Marchetti 

• Recognition of Recreation Manager Cynthia Morquecho 

PUBLIC COMMENTS  

Comments on the Consent Calendar and Non-Agenda Items will be heard at this time. Comments 
on Agenda Items will be heard when the item is called. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the March 27, 2019 Regular Meeting. 

2. Motion to Accept Report of Check Paid for March 2019.  

3. Motion to Accept Informational Report on Recreation Department Programs, Activities, Events, and 
Trips for the First Quarter of 2019. 

4. Motion to Adopt a Resolution to Accept Work Performed by VAS Security, DBA Edgeworth 
Integration, LLC, for the Town’s Access Control System Project and Authorize the Director of Public 
Works to File a Notice of Completion with the County Recorder’s Office and Make the Final Payment 
to Edgeworth Integration, LLC in Accordance with State Prompt Payment Laws. 

5. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Adopting Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA) 
Project List For Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Funded by SB 1: the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 
2017. 

6. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Approving and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement 
With Fehr & Peers in the Amount of $199,108.09 for the El Camino Real Bicycle and Pedestrian 
Improvement Plan. 

7. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Increasing Salaries for Recreation Leader Positions, and Increasing 

Salaries for Facility Attendant Positions. 



Page 2 of 2 
 

NEW BUSINESS 

8. APPROVAL OF MEMORANDUMS OF UNDERSTANDING AND COST OF LIVING INCREASES 

a. Consider: Motion to Adopt a Resolution Approving Memorandum of Understanding Between the 
Town of Colma and the Colma Peace Officers Association for the Period of April 7, 2019 to June 
30, 2022. 

b. Consider: Motion to Adopt a Resolution Approving Memorandum of Understanding Between the 
Town of Colma and the Colma Police Communication/Records Association for the Period of April 
7, 2019 to June 30, 2022. 

c. Consider: Motion to Adopt a Resolution Approving Cost of Living Salary Increases for Certain 
Unrepresented Employees and Modifying the Town’s Salary Schedule. 

d. Consider: Motion to Adopt a Resolution Amending Subchapter 3.02 and 3.06 of the Colma 
Administrative Code, Relating to Retention Pay and Sick Leave. 

STUDY SESSION 

9. GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE 

10. FY 2019-20 BUDGET 

 These items are for discussion only; no action will be taken at this meeting.  

REPORTS 
Mayor/City Council       
City Manager          

ADJOURNMENT 

The City Council Meeting Agenda Packet and supporting documents are available for review at the Colma Town Hall, 1198 El 
Camino Real, Colma, CA during normal business hours (Mon – Fri 8am-5pm). Persons interested in obtaining an agenda via e-mail 
should call Caitlin Corley at 650-997-8300 or email a request to ccorley@colma.ca.gov.  

Reasonable Accommodation 

Upon request, this publication will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by 
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any person with a disability, who requires a modification or accommodation to view 
the agenda, should direct such a request to Pak Lin, ADA Coordinator, at 650-997-8300 or pak.lin@colma.ca.gov. Please allow 
two business days for your request to be processed. 
 

mailto:ccorley@colma.ca.gov
mailto:pak.lin@colma.ca.gov


Minutes – Regular Meeting 03.27.19 Page 1 of 4 

MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Town Hall Council Chamber, 1198 El Camino Real 

Colma, CA 94014 
Wednesday, March 27, 2019 
CLOSED SESSION – 6:00 PM 

REGULAR SESSION – 7:00 PM 
CLOSED SESSION – 6:00 PM 

1. In Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 – Conference with Labor
Negotiators.

Agency Negotiators: Brian Dossey, City Manager 
Pak Lin, Administrative Services Director 
Austris Rungis, IEDA 

Employee Organizations: Colma Peace Officers Association and Colma 
Communications/Records Association 

Unrepresented Employees: All 

CALL TO ORDER – 7:00 PM 

Mayor Joanne F. del Rosario called the meeting back to order at 7:09 p.m.  

Council Present –Mayor Joanne F. del Rosario, Vice Mayor John Irish Goodwin, Council 
Members Diana Colvin, Helen Fisicaro and Raquel Gonzalez were all present.  

Staff Present – City Manager Brian Dossey, City Attorney Christopher Diaz, Police Chief Kirk 
Stratton, Administrative Services Director Pak Lin, Director of Public Works Brad Donohue, 
City Planner Michael Laughlin, City Clerk Caitlin Corley and Assistant Planner Brandon 
DeLucas were in attendance.  

REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 

Mayor del Rosario announced that no action had been taken at the closed session and that 
Council would reconvene in closed session following the regular session.  

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

Mayor del Rosario asked if there were any changes to the agenda; none were requested. 
The Mayor asked for a motion to adopt the agenda. 

Action: Council Member Colvin moved to adopt the agenda; the motion was seconded by 
Vice Mayor Goodwin and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 

Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor ✓

John Irish Goodwin ✓

Diana Colvin ✓

Helen Fisicaro ✓

Raquel Gonzalez ✓

5 0 

Item #1



 

Minutes – Regular Meeting 03.27.19   Page 2 of 4 

PRESENTAIONS 

▪ City Planner Michael Laughlin introduced new Assistant Planner Brandon DeLucas. 

▪ Mayor del Rosario presented a proclamation in honor of Women’s History Month. 

▪ Mayor del Rosario announced that Colma would participate in the National Mayor's 
Challenge For Water Conservation from April 1-30, 2019. To participate, residents enter the 
name Colma at www.mywaterpledge.com and make a series of pledges to conserve water 
and energy. Cities with the highest percentage of residents who take the challenge in their 
population category are deemed the winner. Participants are entered to win an array of 
environmentally positive prizes. In addition, residents who submit proof that they took the 
pledge will be given a chance to win two tickets to the Town Holiday Party. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Mayor del Rosario opened the public comment period at 7:18 p.m. and seeing no one come 
forward to speak, she closed the public comment period. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

2. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the March 13, 2019 Regular Meeting. 

3. Motion to Adopt an Ordinance Adding Section 6.01.78, Regarding Parking Space 
Markings/”One Space/One Vehicle,” to the Colma Municipal Code (second reading). 

Action: Council Member Gonzalez moved to approve the Consent Calendar items #2 and 
3; the motion was seconded by Council Member Colvin and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 

 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor ✓     

John Irish Goodwin ✓     

Diana Colvin ✓     

Helen Fisicaro ✓     

Raquel Gonzalez ✓     

 5 0    

NEW BUSINESS 

4. MINOR HOME REPAIR GRANT PROGRAM REPEAL 

City Attorney Christopher Diaz presented the staff report.  Mayor del Rosario opened the 
public hearing at 7:21 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, she closed the public 
comment period. 

Action: Council Member Fisicaro made a motion to Adopt a Resolution Repealing Colma 
Administrative Code Subchapter 1.06, Relating to the Minor Home Repair Grant Program; 
the motion was seconded by Vice Mayor Goodwin and carried by the following vote:  

 

 

 

 



 

Minutes – Regular Meeting 03.27.19   Page 3 of 4 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 

 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor ✓     

John Irish Goodwin ✓     

Diana Colvin ✓     

Helen Fisicaro ✓     

Raquel Gonzalez ✓     

 5 0    

 
5. BROWN ACT UPDATE – PUBLIC MEETINGS/MEETING MANAGEMENT 

City Attorney Christopher Diaz presented the staff report.  Mayor del Rosario opened the 
public hearing at 7:38 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, she closed the 
public comment period. 

Action: Vice Mayor Goodwin made a motion  to acknowledge that Council has Received a 
Brown Act Update Presentation on New or Trending Legal Issues Regarding Public 
Meetings/Meeting Management; the motion was seconded by Council Member Gonzalez 
and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 

 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor ✓     

John Irish Goodwin ✓     

Diana Colvin ✓     

Helen Fisicaro ✓     

Raquel Gonzalez ✓     

 5 0    

COUNCIL CALENDARING 

The next Regular Meeting will be on Wednesday, April 10 2019 and Wednesday, April 24, 
2019 at 7:00PM in the Town Hall Council Chamber.  

REPORTS 

Mayor Joanne F. del Rosario 
▪ Chamber Crab Feed, 3/21/19 

 

Vice Mayor John Goodwin 
▪ HEART Member Agency Committee Meeting – 3/21/19 

 

Council Member Helen Fisicaro  
▪ Chamber Crab Feed, 3/21/19 

 

Council Member Raquel Gonzalez  
▪ Skyline President’s Breakfast, 3/21/19 
▪ Chamber Crab Feed, 3/21/19 

City Manager Brian Dossey gave a report on the following topics: 

▪ Council Photos will be taken at 5:30 p.m. before the Regular Meeting on April 10, 2019.  
▪ A German documentary crew will be in Town from April 1 though 10, interviewing 

residents and business owners.  



 

Minutes – Regular Meeting 03.27.19   Page 4 of 4 

▪ The Police held a very successful Youth Outreach event on March 25, 2019, with 
approximately 20 teens from Colma and surrounding neighborhoods.  

▪ Mercy Housing will be hosting a tree-planting event on June 19, 2019. 
▪ Supervisor David Canepa is hosting a District 5 Community Fair on March 30, 2019.  

ADJOURNMENT  

Mayor del Rosario adjourned the regular session at 7:45 p.m. in memory of Colma resident 
Gary Kearns. Council returned to closed session. The meeting was adjourned at 8:30 p.m.  

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
 
 
Caitlin Corley 
City Clerk 
 



Item #2







































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Staff Report – Recreation Program Quarterly Review, January – March 2019  Page 1 of 2 
March 31, 2019 

STAFF REPORT 

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Cynthia Morquecho, Recreation Manager 

VIA: Brian Dossey, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: April 10, 2019 

SUBJECT: Recreation Services Department Quarterly Review, January – March 2019 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt: 

MOTION TO ACCEPT INFORMATIONAL REPORT ON RECREATION DEPARTMENT 
PROGRAMS, ACTIVITIES, EVENTS, AND TRIPS FOR THE FIRST QUARTER OF 2019. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

In the first quarter of 2019, a total of 874 participants attended 60 programs.  This represents a 
decrease of 88 participants from the first quarter of 2018. Staff attributes the decrease to the 
Eggstravaganza event occurring in the second quarter of 2019. 

Staff estimates that 39 percent of the population had a current Colma I.D. during the first 
quarter of 2019, suggesting that residents participated in multiple programs. 

There was a total of 83 rentals, which is an increase of six rentals from the first quarter of 
2018.   

BACKGROUND 

Participation 

The Recreation Services Department offered programs, activities, events and trips for all age 
groups during the past quarter.  Below is a summary of participation levels by demographic:  

• A total of 115 adults and seniors participated in enrichment programs.  This represents
an increase of 7 participants from the first quarter of 2018.  Staff attributes the increase
to an increase in participation in Fitness programs and activities such as Ladies Social
and Adult Cooking.

Item #3



Staff Report – Recreation Program Quarterly Review, January – March 2019  Page 2 of 2 
March 31, 2019 

• A total of 163 adults and seniors participated in trips and events. This represents a 
decrease of 72 participants from the first quarter of 2018. Staff attributes the decrease 
to cancellation of two adult field trips and the Aladdin theater event occurring during the 
first quarter of 2018.  

 

• A total of 386 youth and teens participated in Enrichment Programs.  This represents an 
increase of 22 participants from the first quarter of 2018.  Staff attributes the increase 
to higher participation in programs such as Kumon Math and Kumon Reading. 

 
• A total of 20 youth and teens participated in events and trips.  This represents a 

decrease of 1 participant from the first quarter of 2018.   
 

• A total of 190 youth, adults and seniors participated in Community Programs.  This 
represents a decrease of 44 participant from the first quarter of 2018. Staff attributes 
the decrease to the Eggstravaganza event occurring during the first quarter of 2018.  

 

The attachment contains a detailed breakdown of participation by program. 

Rental Activity 

The Colma Community Center was rented for 83 different events: 
• Resident Rentals (31 social events and 2 meetings) 
• Resident Non-profit group (1 fundraiser and 6 meeting) 
• Non-Resident Rentals (3 funeral receptions and 2 social events) 
• Non-Resident Non-profit Groups (12 programs, 4 fundraisers and 2 meeting) 
• In House Reservations (20 meetings/trainings) 

The Sterling Park Recreation Center was rented for 20 different events: 
• Sterling Park Resident Rentals (20 social events) 

 
Sustainability Impact 

Staff coordinates and implements program and activities which are in alignment with the 
Town’s Climate Action Plan and Sustainability Policy.  For example, at this quarter, all programs 
and events, provided cups, plates, forks, knives, and spoons were made from recyclable 
content.   
 
ATTACHMENTS 

A. 2019 Recreation Services Department Quarterly Review – Participation Detail 



Recreation Services Department Quarterly Review 
January – March 2019 

Participation Detail 

Adult/Senior Enrichment Programs 

Program Registered Sessions New or Existing 
Program 

Boot Camp Fitness 6 2 Existing 

Adult Cooking Classes 18 2 Existing 

Colma Ladies Social 18 3 Existing 

Creekside Villas Activities 17 3 Existing 

Cyber Safety Training 5 1 Existing 

Dragon Boat Paddling for Beginners Cancelled 1 Existing 

Gentle & Invigorating Yoga 9 1 Existing 

Golf Cancelled 3 Existing 

Let’s Talk About It- Life, Liberty and 
Pursuit of Happiness 

2 1 NEW 

New York Life Financial Workshops 4 2 NEW 

Parent and Baby Yoga Cancelled 1 NEW 

Yoga for Seniors 9 1 Existing 

Zumba 11 2 Existing 

Zumba Toning 16 1 Existing 

Adult & Senior Trips & Events 

Program Registered Sessions New or Existing 
Program 

A Day at the Movies 13 1 Existing 

Arm Chair Travel 21 2 Existing 

Breakfast Bingo 30 3 Existing 

Friday Films 27 3 Existing 

Mission Santa Clara de Asis Cancelled 2 NEW 

Museum of African Diaspora 11 1 NEW 

Senior Luncheon (Backyard BBQ) 22 1 Existing 

Senior Luncheon (Buon Appetito!) 18 1 Existing 

Senior Luncheon (Japanese Tea) 21 1 Existing 

The Biggest Loser Cancelled 1 Existing 

Youth & Teen Enrichment Programs 

Program Registered Sessions New or Existing 
Program 

Ballet, Tap & Hip Hop 9 1 Existing 

Chamber Orchestra 1 1 NEW 

Cooking Class 7 2 Existing 

Golf Cancelled 3 Existing 

Guitar Workshop 2 1 Existing 

Keyboard 8 2 Existing 

Kids’ Club Afterschool Program 77 7 Existing 

Kumon Math Tutoring 100 3 Existing 

Attachment A



 2 

Kumon Reading Tutoring 82 3 Existing 

Parents’ Night Out 8 2 Existing 

Performance and Stage Class Cancelled 1 Existing 

President’s Week Day Camp 20 1 Existing 

President’s Week Day Camp Afternoon 
Care 

8 1 Existing 

President’s Week Day Camp Early 
Morning Care 

7 1 Existing 

Private Lessons with Vibo 1 1 NEW 

Tae Kwon Do 34 3 Existing 

Teen Financial Workshop Cancelled 1 NEW 

Teen LEYP 20 2 Existing 

Ukulele Workshop Cancelled 1 Existing 

Vibo Youth Ensemble 2 2 Existing 

Violin Workshop Cancelled 2 Existing 

 
Youth and Teen Events & Trips 

Program Registered Sessions New or Existing 
Program 

Day in the Snow Cancelled 1 Existing 

Ice Cream Arts & Crafts  Cancelled 3 Existing  
Ice Skating at Union Square Cancelled 1 Existing 

Queens of Colma 14 1 NEW 
Teen Center Hours 6 1 Existing 

  
Community Programs 

Program Registered Sessions New or Existing 
Program 

Colma Game Night 46 1 Existing 

Miniature Golf with the Family Cancelled 1 NEW 

Project Read Learning Wheels 16 1 Existing 

Project Read Nutrition Program 22 2 Existing 

Project Read Science Club 24 2 Existing 

San Jose Sharks Game 10 1 NEW 

Super Bowl Party 72 1 Existing 

 

Note: Programs were cancelled due to insufficient participation. 



Staff Report Access Control System Project Completion Page 1 of 4 
4/10/2019 

STAFF REPORT

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM: Brad Donohue, Director of Public Works 

Patrick Yu, Associate Engineer/Project Manager 

VIA:  Brian Dossey, City Manager  

MEETING DATE: April 10, 2019  

SUBJECT: Edgeworth - Completion of Access Control System Project 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the following: 

RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT WORK PERFORMED BY VAS SECURITY, DBA EDGEWORTH 
INTEGRATION, LLC, FOR THE TOWN’S ACCESS CONTROL SYSTEM PROJECT AND 
AUTHORIZE THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS TO FILE A NOTICE OF COMPLETION 
WITH THE COUNTY RECORDER’S OFFICE AND MAKE THE FINAL PAYMENT TO 
EDGEWORTH INTEGRATION, LLC IN ACCORDANCE WITH STATE PROMPT PAYMENT 
LAWS 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

On or about December 2019, Edgeworth Integration, LLC (Edgeworth) completed contract work 
for the Town Access Control System Project (Project). Edgeworth performed the scope of work 
and approved extra work between March 2018, when the contract was awarded, through 
December 2019, when Edgeworth substantially completed the Project. Edgeworth and the 
Town’s contract obligations are now fully complete, and the Town should move forward with 
filing Notice of Completion for the Project. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The City Council approved Project budget is $335,000.  The total construction cost for the 
Project came to $260,755.92. The Project construction budget along with contingency was 
approved for $256,389.72 – the construction cost exceeded the construction budget by 
$4,366.20. There is still sufficient budget to absorb the construction cost overage thus there is 
not a fiscal impact as shown in the following table.  

Item #4



Staff Report Access Control System Project Completion Page 2 of 4 
4/10/2019 

BACKGROUND 

This Project included the design, purchase and installation of equipment to upgrade the current 
access control system that serves the Colma Police Station and a future system in the renovated 
Town Hall. The upgrades to the system include access control hardware, video monitoring and 
access systems. This Project was coordinated and installed during the Town Hall Renovation 
Project. 

The Project was awarded to Edgeworth on March 14, 2018. The Project involved installing one 
control system that would operate the New Town Hall facility along with the Police Station. The 
Project spanned over an 18-month period, the first phase addressed the Police Station access 
and video systems. The existing access control system was located at the Police Station but due 
to space restrictions within the Police Station computer room, the new access control system 
main hard drives are now located in the new Town Hall computer room. The second phase 
included the install of the access control and video systems at Town Hall along with tying in the 
various access control feature at the Police Station.  

Edgeworth substantially completed the Project along with extra work in December 2018. 
Following substantial completion, Edgeworth completed various punch list items including fine 
tuning the access control and video systems while employees and facility operations were in full 
force.     

ANALYSIS 

Edgeworth completed the scope of work plus extra work added by change orders. A summary 
of the approved change orders are as follows: 

• Replacement of all cameras in Police Station interview rooms.  The original scope of
work for this Project was to re-use the original cameras located in the interview
rooms.  However, it was discovered that the cameras had become unreliable over the
years.  It had come to a point where officers were recording interviews with their smart
phones because they could never be sure if the camera recording would work.  In
consultation with Police and Town Hall staff, the interview room cameras were replaced
with new units to provide reliable video and audio recordings.  This change also
significantly increased the video storage requirements resulting in the need for a larger
server with more storage capacity.

• Additional video monitoring equipment at Town Hall and the Police Station.  The original
specifications included two (2) video monitoring stations at the Police Station and one

PROJECT BUDGET 335,000.00$   

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT (233,081.56)$     

APPROVED CHANGE ORDERS (27,674.36)$       

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST (260,755.92)$  

TOTAL DESIGN & PM COST (51,920.40)$    

REMAINING PROJECT BUDGET 22,323.68$      



Staff Report Access Control System Project Completion Page 3 of 4 
4/10/2019 

(1) at Town Hall.  All monitoring stations were originally specified with 27-inch 
displays.  These smaller displays were changed out to 43-inch displays to facilitate 
functional visibility for staff working in Dispatch and in the Squad Room.   A second 
video monitoring station was also installed adjacent to the pantry area of Town Hall at 
the direction of staff for a total of two (2) stations at Town Hall. 

• An additional camera at Town Hall was installed to monitor activity in the exterior
mechanical yard pit, located at the north side of the Town Hall facility.  This camera
allows staff to have visibility should anyone enter this restricted area.  As the video
storage requirements for the Town Hall site are less stringent than for the Police Station,
the addition of this camera had minimal impact on video storage requirements.

• Procurement and installation of missing hardware.  An oversight was made in the
project plans in that no vendor was specified for installation of the power supplies
required to make the electrified doors of the access control system work.

• Resolve issues at Council Chamber kitchen door.  The legacy door at the Council
Chamber kitchen presented several problems for the contractors attempting to convert it
into an access controlled door with an electrified door handle as specified in the
plans.  This final change order was for labor and swapping out parts to change the
access control from the electrified door handle to an electrified door strike.

Edgeworth has been paid for all contract work plus approved change orders to date less the 
required five percent retention.   

Staff requests the City Council accept work performed on the Project and authorize the Director 
of Public Works to file a Notice of Completion with the San Mateo County Recorder’s Office.   

The filing of the Notice of Completion means: 

• The Town is satisfied Edgeworth has completed the Project in accordance with the plans
and specifications.

• At the time of the filing of the Notice of Completion, there has not been a claim filed
against the Town.

• The Town accepts Edgeworth’s work as complete.
• The time frame for the filing of stop payment notice claims is shortened once the Notice

of Completion has been filed with the San Mateo County Recorder’s Office

Thirty days after the NOC has been recorded, if no claims from subcontractors and suppliers 
have been filed with the Town, the Town can release the remaining 5% retention to Edgeworth 
in the amount of $13,037.80.  

To date there have been no stop notices or claims filed with the Town for the Project. 

Council Adopted Values 

By approving and accepting the Project as complete, the City Council has reviewed and 
approved the work performed by Edgeworth, thus taking a Responsible position requesting 
that the Notice of Completion be filed with the County Recorder’s Office and that final payment 
be timely made to Edgeworth. 



Staff Report Access Control System Project Completion Page 4 of 4 
4/10/2019 

Alternatives 

The City Council can choose not to adopt the resolution accepting the Project and directing the 
filing of the Notice of Completion for the Project.  The Town would then not accept the Project 
as complete and file the Notice of Completion with the San Mateo County Recorder’s Office nor 
release retention to Edgeworth and close out the construction contract.  Such action would 
increase the time for subcontractors and material suppliers to file claims and could result in 
penalties under prompt payment laws.  

CONCLUSION 

Staff has reviewed the completed work and recommends that the City Council adopt the 
resolution thereby accepting the Project as complete and authorizing the Director of Public 
Works to file a Notice of Completion with the San Mateo County Recorder’s Office and make 
final payment to Edgeworth in accordance with the State’s prompt payment laws.  

ATTACHMENTS 
A. Resolution No. 2019-___ 
B. Notice of Completion - Access Control System Project 



Res. 2018-___, Access Control Contract Award Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-__ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE ACCESS CONTROL SYSTEM PROJECT (CIP 983) AS 
COMPLETE AND DIRECTING THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS TO FILE A NOTICE 

OF COMPLETION FOR THE ACCESS CONTROL SYSTEM PROJECT WITH THE SAN 
MATEO COUNTY RECORDER’S OFFICE 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve: 

1. Background.

(a) The Town of Colma opened bids for the Access Control Project – CIP 983 (“Project”) on
March 7, 2018.  

(b)  Town Staff determined that VAS Security, DBA Edgeworth Integration, LLC 
(“Edgeworth”), was the lowest responsible bidder submitting a responsive bid in the amount of 
233,081.56, and the City Council awarded a construction contract to Edgeworth for 233,081.56 
plus a 10% contingency (total construction budget of $256,389.72). 

(c) Total construction costs were 260,755.92, which exceeded the total construction budget, 
due to several necessary change orders. 

(d) Edgeworth substantially completed work on the Project in December 2018 and has now 
fully completed all work including punch list items. 

2. Finding.

(a) The City Council finds that the Project is complete to the satisfaction of the Town.

3. Order

(a) The Project is accepted as complete.

(b) The Director of Public Works is directed to file a Notice of Completion for the Project
with the San Mateo County Recorder’s Office. 

(d) Town staff is directed to release the 5% retention to Edgeworth within 30 days of the 
recording of the Notice of Completion for the Project in accordance with applicable prompt 
payment laws. 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

Attachment A



Res. 2018-___, Access Control Contract Award  Page 2 of 2 
 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2019-__ was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
said City Council held on April 10, 2019 by the following vote: 
 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 

  Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 

Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor      

Helen Fisicaro        

Raquel Gonzalez      

Diana Colvin      

John Irish Goodwin      

Voting Tally 0 0    

 

 

Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 

 



RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND 

WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 

Town of Colma 

1198 El Camino Real 

Colma, CA 94014-3212 

Attn: Brad Donohue, PW Director 

THE AREA ABOVE IS RESERVED FOR RECORDER’S USE 

[NO RECORDING FEE SHALL BE CHARGED PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT 

CODE SECTIONS 6103 AND 27383]  

TOWN OF COLMA 

NOTICE OF COMPLETION 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT: 

1. The Town of Colma is the owner of a work of improvement described as the Access Control Project -

CIP 983, (hereafter, the “Work”), and of the real property on which the Work is situated, which real

property is located in the County of San Mateo, State of California and specifically described as

follows: 1198 &1199 El Camino Real, Colma, CA 94014; and

2. VAS Security Systems, Inc., dba Edgeworth Integration, LLC is the contractor that was awarded the

construction/installation contract by the Town of Colma for the Work, and

3. The Work was completed by VAS Security dba Edgeworth Integration, LLC and accepted by the

Town of Colma on April 10, 2019; and

4. The nature of the interest of the Town of Colma is as a fee simple owner in the above-described real

property; and

5. The address of the Town of Colma is 1198 El Camino Real, Colma, California 94014; and

6. I, Brad Donohue, contract Public Works Director of the Town of Colma, am authorized by the City

Council of the Town of Colma to execute and file this Notice of Completion with the County

Recorder of the County of San Mateo as an authorized agent of the Town of Colma.  I have read the

Notice of Completion and know the contents thereof; the same is true of my own knowledge.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is 

true and correct.  

______________________________ ___________________________ 

(Date and Place) Brad Donohue 

Director of Public Works 

Attachment B



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Staff Report - RMRA Project List and 2019-20 Budget Adjustment  Page 1 of 3 
[4/10/2019] 

STAFF REPORT

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Brad Donohue, Director of Public Works 

VIA:  Brian Dossey, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: April 10, 2019 

SUBJECT: Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA) Project List 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends the City Council adopt: 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING ROAD MAINTENANCE AND REHABILITATION ACCOUNT 
(RMRA) PROJECT LIST FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020 FUNDED BY SB 1: THE ROAD 
REPAIR AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT OF 2017 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Requirements have been imposed by the State as part of the State Gas Taxes that began 
collection on November 1, 2017. In order to receive an allocation of the Gas Tax revenue, 
estimated as part of the adopted Budget to be $25,000 in Fiscal Year 2019-20, a list of projects 
proposed to be funded with SB 1 funds must be adopted.  Also, the Town is required to 
demonstrate that the revenue and expenditures are included in the Fiscal Year 2019-20 Budget. 
The funds are proposed to be allocated to the Mission Road Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvements 
project to be constructed in 2020. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

An estimated $25,000 in Gas Tax Funds, are proposed to be added to the current appropriation 
of $1,608,500 million for the Mission Road Bike/Pedestrian Improvements (CIP Project #903). 

BACKGROUND 

On April 28, 2017, the Governor Signed Senate Bill (SB) 1, which is known as the Road Repair 
and Accountability Act of 2017.  This legislation increased the per gallon fuel excise taxes ($0.12 
per gallon), as well as increased diesel fuel sales taxes and vehicle registration fees.  The use of 
the funds also comes with additional reporting requirements and a focus on using the new funds 
for basic road maintenance, rehabilitation, and critical safety projects on both the State Highway 
and local streets and roads system. 

Item #5



Staff Report - RMRA Project List and 2019-20 Budget Adjustment  Page 2 of 3 
[4/10/2019] 

On November 1, 2017, the State Controller (Controller) began to deposit various portions of this 
new funding into the newly created Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA).  
Although the exact amount has not been determined by the Controller for the Fiscal Year 2019-
20, the proposed 2019-20 budget allocation will include an estimated $25,000 RMRA funds that 
will be expensed per SB 1 Accountability and Transparency Guidelines, adopted on March 21, 
2018.   
  
ANALYSIS 

The Town of Colma must submit to the California Transportation Commission (CTC) a list of 
projects to be funded with RMRA funds.  To simplify the reporting and administration of the RMRA 
funds, the proposed Project List consists of adding the RMRA funds to the Mission Road Bicycle 
and Pedestrian Improvements Project (CIP Project #903). 
 
The total estimated project cost for the Mission Road Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvements 
Project to complete the design, construction, and project management is currently estimated at 
$1,633,500 (Inclusive of this year’s RMRA allocation).  The project funding is supported by a 
variety of sources as shown below:  

 
No. Source of Fund 

 
Amount 

1 Total Livable Communities (TLC) program - One Bay Area Grant 2 
(OBAG 2) 

$525,000 

2 Federal Local Streets and Roads (LSR) program One Bay Area 
Grant 2 (OBAG 2) 

$100,000 

3 Safe Routes to School-Green Streets Infrastructure 
 

$200,000 

4 Local Measure A 
 

$160,000 

5 RMRA (SB 1) fund FY 2017-18 
 

$8,500 

6 RMRA (SB 1) fund FY 2018-19 
 

$25,000 

7 
 

RMRA (SB 1) fund FY 2019-20 $25,000 

8 Colma Fund #32 (General CIP- General Funds allocated to Capital 
Projects) 

$590,000 

TOTAL 
 

$1,633,500 

 
The 2019-20 RMRA Gas Tax allocation will be included in the upcoming 2019-20 Fiscal Year 
Budget.   If approved by City Council, the adoption of the project list will appropriate $25,000 as 
an additional appropriation for the Mission Road Improvements (CIP Project #903). If approved, 
Town Staff by way of a Resolution, will be required to provide the annual RMRA project list and 
expenditure reporting to the CTC.   

    



Staff Report - RMRA Project List and 2019-20 Budget Adjustment  Page 3 of 3 
[4/10/2019] 

REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDED ACTION 

The recommended actions are a requirement of the State program implementing the tracking of 
expenditures for the Gas Tax increase adopted by the State Legislature.  If the action is not taken 
prior to May 1, 2019 the Town would potentially lose or not receive the estimated RMRA Gas Tax 
Funds for Fiscal Year 2019-20.  

COUNCIL ADOPTED VALUES 

The City Council by commissioning the RMRA funds to be used for the Mission Road Bicycle and 
Pedestrian Improvement Project exhibited a visionary approach using the allocated funds to 
promote a safer and roadway corridor for vehicles, bicyclists and pedestrians within the Mission 
Road neighborhood.   

CONCLUSION 

It is recommended that the City Council adopt a resolution approving Road Maintenance and 
Rehabilitation Account (RMRA) Project List for Fiscal Year 2019-2020. 

ATTACHMENTS 

A. Resolution Adopting Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA) Project List 
for Fiscal Year 2019-20 

B. RMRA Project List 





Res. 2019-_____, FY 2019-20 SB 1 Project List Page 1 of 3 

RESOLUTION NO.___ 

OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING A LIST OF PROJECTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019-20 FUNDED 

BY SB 1: THE ROAD REPAIR AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT OF 2017 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve as follows: 

1. Background.

(a) Senate Bill 1 (SB 1), the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 (Chapter 5, Statutes 

of 2017) was passed by the Legislature and Signed into law by the Governor in April 2017 to 

address the significant multi-modal transportation funding shortfalls statewide; and  

(b) SB 1 includes accountability and transparency provisions that will ensure the residents of 

our Town are aware of the projects proposed for funding in our community and which projects 

have been completed each fiscal year; and 

(c) The Town must adopt by resolution a list of projects proposed to receive fiscal year 

funding from the Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA), created by SB 1, which 

must include a description and the location of each proposed project, a proposed schedule for 

the project’s completion, and the estimated useful life of the improvement; and 

(d) The Town, will receive an estimated $25,000 in RMRA funding in Fiscal Year 2019-20 from 

SB 1; and 

(e) This is the third year in which the Town is receiving SB 1 funding and will enable the Town 

to continue essential road maintenance and rehabilitation projects, safety improvements, 

repairing and replacing aging bridges, and increasing access and mobility options for the traveling 

public that would not have otherwise been possible without SB 1; and  

(f) The Town has undergone a robust public process to ensure public input into our 
community’s transportation priorities/the project list. The Town conducted community outreach 
workshop and online survey during implementation of Systemic Safety Analysis Report (SSAR) 
project to give the community the opportunity to identify high-risk locations and discuss road 
safety concerns and potential safety treatments within Town’s roadway network. The Town also 
conducted on 1/17/2019 a community outreach for Mission Road Bicycle and Pedestrian 
Improvements project that gave the community another opportunity to identify the improvements 
needed; and  

(g) The Town used a CIP budget to develop the SB 1 project list using Town General Plan, 

studies, observation, along with City Council, Public and Staff input to ensure revenues are being 

used on the most high-priority and cost-effective projects that also meet the communities 

priorities for transportation investment; and  

Attachment A



Res. 2019-_____, FY 2019-20 SB 1 Project List  Page 2 of 3 

(h) The Towns allotment of SB 1 funds will help fund the Mission Road Bicycle and Pedestrian 

Improvements (CIP Project #903); and 

(i) The scope of work for CIP Project #903 includes various “Complete Streets” elements that 

will improve and enhance safety for bicycle and pedestrian activity along the Mission Road 

corridor, funding these enhancements are Gas Tax / RMRA eligible expenses; and 

(j) The Fiscal Year 2017-18 adopted Town Budget for Capital Improvement Project #903 

Mission Road Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvements is $1,383,500 funded by CIP General Funds 

as well as OBAG 2 Grants and SB 1 funds for FY 2017-18. 

(k) In the Fiscal Year 2018-19 Town Budget for Capital Improvement Project #903 Mission 

Road Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvements will be $1,608,500 after including Safe Routes to 

School and Green Streets Infrastructure and SB 1 FY 2018-19 funds. 

(m) In the Fiscal Year 2019-20 Town Budget for Capital Improvement Project #903 Mission 

Road Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvements will be $1,633,500 after including SB 1 FY 2019-20 

funds. 

(n) The SB 1 project list and overall investment in our local streets and roads infrastructure 

with a focus on basic maintenance and safety, investing in complete streets infrastructure, and 

using cutting-edge technology, materials and practices, will have significant positive benefits to 

local and statewide communities. 

2. Findings. 

The City Council finds that: 

(a) The foregoing recitals are true and correct. 

(b) The following previously proposed and adopted projects may utilize fiscal year 2019-20 

Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account revenues in their delivery. With the relisting of 

these projects in the adopted fiscal year resolution, the Town is reaffirming to the public and the 

State our intent to fund these projects with Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account 

revenues:  

 RMRA 2019-20 Project List 

The Project was originally listed in SB 1 for Fiscal Year 2017-2018 and re-listed for Fiscal 

Year 2018-2019. 

Project Description: Implementation of bicycle and pedestrian safety related 

improvements. The project scope includes: relocation and reconstruction of the existing 

curb, gutter, sidewalk, driveway approaches and non-ADA compliant ramps; addition of 

new continuous sidewalk; extension of Class II bicycle lanes with green pavement 



Res. 2019-_____, FY 2019-20 SB 1 Project List Page 3 of 3 

markings; construction of stormwater curb extension with bioretention/infiltration basins 

for stormwater treatment and high visibility crosswalks with rectangular rapid flashing 

beacons; installation of speed feedback signs and energy efficient street lights.  

Location: Mission Road between El Camino Real and Lawndale Boulevard. 

Scheduled Construction Completion: October 2020 (Design by December 2019. 

Bidding and completion of the improvements by April 2020.) 

Estimated Useful Life: 20 Years. 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2019-## was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 

the City Council of the Town of Colma held on April 10, 2019, by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 

Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor 

John Irish Goodwin 

Diana Colvin 

Helen Fisicaro 

Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez 

Voting Tally 

Dated ______________________ ___________________________________ 

Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor 

Attest: ____________________________ 

 Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 





STATE OF CALIFORNIA • CALIFORNIA TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION

Senate Bill (SB) 1 Proposed Project List Form

*Agency Name: (Select from dropdown list) LoCode:

*Agency Address: *City: *ZIP Code:

CA 94014

*Agency Contact: *Agency Contact Title:

*Agency Contact Phone No.: (i.e. 1234567890) *Agency Contact Email Address:

Funding for Fiscal Year: FY 17/18

Please briefly describe the budget support documentation being provided.

(Month) (Year)

81 07 2017

Project Flexibility:

* Required information

Mission Road Bike/Pedestrian Improvements project has been identified by Town of Colma as a high-priority 

capital improvement project. With the inclusion of the Veteran's Housing facility on Mission Road, it’s close 

proximity to BART and the area being in a Priority Development Area (PDA), the Town believes that various 

improvements are needed for bicycle and pedestrian facilities along the corridor. These improvements will 

Town's adopted Resolution No. 2019-XX and Staff Report specifying the Mission Road Bike/Pedestrian 

Improvements project (CIP Project#903) for approving Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA) 

Project List for Fiscal Year 2019-2020 funded by SB 1: The Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017.

Pursuant to SHC Section 2034(a)(1), this project list shall not limit the flexibility of an eligible city or county to 

fund projects in accordance with local needs and priorities, so long as the projects are consistent with SHC 

Section 2030(b). After submittal of the project list to the Commission, in the event a city or county elects to 

make changes to the project list pursuant to the statutory provision noted above, formal notification of the 

Commission is not required. However, the Project Expenditure Report form that is due to the Commission by 

October 1st each year, will provide an opportunity for jurisdictions to annually communicate such changes to 

the Commission as part of the regular reporting process.

Brad Donohue Director of Public Works

(650) 757-8888 brad.donohue@colma.ca.gov

Measurement Date: Average Network PCI: 

Additional Information: ? 

*Budget Support Documentation:?

Part 1:  General Information

Local Streets and Roads Program

Colma 5264

1198 El Camino Real Colma

abdulkaderh
Text Box
19/20

abdulkaderh
Line

abdulkaderh
Text Box
Attachment B - Project List



STATE OF CALIFORNIA • CALIFORNIA TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION

Senate Bill (SB) 1 Proposed Project List Form

* Required 

Type 
(Select from dropdown list)

Explanation 

(if "Other" is selected, 

please explain)

?

Pre-

Construction 
(mm/yyyy)

Construction 
(mm/yyyy)

Min. Max.
Sustainability

?

Technologies

?

Climate 

Change

?

Complete 

Streets 

Elements

?

Description of 

Elements

PP01 5264

Mission Road 

Bike/Pedestrian 

Improvements

CIP#903 Complete Streets 

Components

Implementation of bicycle and pedestrian safety related 

improvements. The project scope includes: relocation 

and reconstruction of the existing curb, gutter, sidewalk, 

driveway approaches and non-ADA compliant ramps; 

addition of new continuous sidewalk; extension of Class 

II bicycle lanes with green pavement markings; 

construction of stormwater curb extension with 

bioretention/infiltration basins for stormwater 

treatment and high visibility crosswalks with rectangular 

rapid flashing beacons (RRFB); installation of speed 

feedback signs and energy efficient street lights. An 

additional crosswalk with RRFB has been considered into 

the scope of the project. This proposed improvement on 

Mission Road was requested through the participants in 

the community workshop that Town conducted for this 

project in January 2019.

Mission Road, between El Camino Real and 

Lawndale Boulevard.

10/2019 10/2020 10 20 11 19 Yes No No Yes

Improve the 

accessibility and 

safety of bicycle and 

pedestrian facilities in 

compliance with 

Town's General Plan 

and Completed 

Streets Policies, in 

addition to Green 

Streets Infrastructure 

that includes 

bioretention areas 

(Rain Garden) for 

stormwater 

treatment.

PP02 5264

PP03 5264

PP04 5264

PP05 5264

PP06 5264

PP07 5264

PP08 5264

PP09 5264  

PP10 5264

PP11 5264

PP12 5264

PP13 5264

PP14 5264

PP15 5264

PP16 5264

PP17 5264

PP18 5264

PP19 5264

PP20 5264

PP21 5264

PP22 5264

PP23 5264

PP24 5264

PP25 5264

PP26 5264

PP27 5264

PP28 5264

PP29 5264

PP30 5264

PP31 5264

PP32 5264

PP33 5264

PP34 5264

PP35 5264

PP36 5264

PP37 5264

PP38 5264

PP39 5264

PP40 5264

PP41 5264

PP42 5264

PP43 5264

PP44 5264

PP45 5264

PP46 5264

Legislative District(s)

LoCode

Part 2:  Project Information

Local Streets and Roads Program

Additional Project Elements 

(Does the project include element(s) as described in SHC 2030 (c)-(f)? 

(Select Y/N from dropdown list)

?Proposed 

Project 

(PP#)

* Project Title 
Project ID

(if any)

* Project Description

?

* Project Location 

?

State Senate
State 

Assembly 

* Estimated 

Completion Date

* Estimated 

Useful Life
(# of Yr)

Project Type

?

1 of 2



STATE OF CALIFORNIA • CALIFORNIA TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION

Senate Bill (SB) 1 Proposed Project List Form

Agency Contact:

Brad Donohue

(650) 757-8888

LoCode: 5264 brad.donohue@colma.ca.gov

Pre-

Construction
Construction Min. Max.

PP01

Mission Road Bike/Pedestrian 

Improvements

Implementation of bicycle and pedestrian safety related 

improvements. The project scope includes: relocation and 

reconstruction of the existing curb, gutter, sidewalk, 

driveway approaches and non-ADA compliant ramps; 

addition of new continuous sidewalk; extension of Class II 

bicycle lanes with green pavement markings; construction 

of stormwater curb extension with 

bioretention/infiltration basins for stormwater treatment 

and high visibility crosswalks with rectangular rapid 

flashing beacons (RRFB); installation of speed feedback 

signs and energy efficient street lights. An additional 

crosswalk with RRFB has been considered into the scope 

of the project. This proposed improvement on Mission 

Mission Road, between El Camino Real and 

Lawndale Boulevard.

10/2019 10/2020 10 20

PP02        

PP03        

PP04        

PP05        

PP06        

PP07        

PP08        

PP09        

PP10        

PP11        

PP12        

PP13        

PP14        

PP15        

Estimated 

Useful Life 
(# of yrs)

Local Streets and Roads Program

Project 

No.
Project Title Project Description Project Location

Estimated Completion Date
(mm/dd/yyyy)

FY

17/18

Agency  Name:

Colma

Summary of Proposed Project List 

1 of 3

abdulkaderh
Text Box
19/20



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Staff Report - El Camino Real Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan Page 1 of 4 

STAFF REPORT

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM: Brad Donohue, Public Works Director 

Abdulkader Hashem, Associate Engineer 

VIA: Brian Dossey, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: April 10, 2019 

SUBJECT: El Camino Real Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the following: 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN 
AGREEMENT WITH FEHR & PEERS IN THE AMOUNT OF $199,108.09 FOR THE EL 
CAMINO REAL BICYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN IMPROVEMENT PLAN    

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The proposed contract with Fehr & Peers is for the preparation of El Camino Real Bicycle and 
Pedestrian Improvement Plan. (commonly called a master plan or feasibility study) 

The Road Maintenance & Rehabilitation Account (RMRA) Sustainable Communities Grant will 
fund the El Camino Real Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan (Plan) along the El Camino 
Real (ECR), State Route 82 corridor.  

The Plan will evaluate existing conditions along ECR from the County of San Mateo/Colma 
border to South San Francisco/Colma border, addressing bicycle and pedestrian access along 
with public transportation connectivity deficiencies, while developing a conceptual plan and 
strategy to incorporate various improvements to enhance mobility, accessibility and connectivity 
for all modes of transportation along the ECR corridor. The Plan will address connectivity to 
various public transit hubs, provide continuous bicycling and walking paths, and provide 
strategies to reduce greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions. The Plan will also incorporate Vision Zero 
strategies with a strong emphasis on increasing safety for those who chose to use ECR for 
walking or biking. In developing the Plan, the intent is to engage the local community, 
disadvantaged communities, neighboring cities, Caltrans, and transit agencies in the decision 
making processes. The final Plan will include an implementation strategy, design concept, 
funding sources, partnerships and programs to move this project into the next phase of 
engineered drawings and construction.   

Item #6



Staff Report - El Camino Real Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan Page 2 of 4 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Caltrans awarded the Town of Colma a RMRA-Sustainable Communities Grant in the amount of 
$199,192 for the El Camino Real Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan. The negotiated 
proposal to start and complete the Plan was agreed to by Fehr & Peers is for $199,108.09, 
which will be reimbursed by the RMRA grant. The Town also was required to provide a local 
match in the amount of $25,808 for project management. After further review and analysis staff 
is also requesting an additional $25,000 in FY 19-20 to manage the 20-month project and for 
project contingency.   

The Town’s proposed funding plan for the El Camino Real Planning Study is as follows: 

• Proposed CIP Allocation for FY 18-19  (Local Match) $  25,808 

• Proposed increase to CIP #914 for FY 19-20** $  25,000 

• RMRA-Sustainable Communities Grant $ 199,192 

Project Total  $ 250,000 

** Staff will formally request an additional appropriation of $25,000 in the 2019-20 budget for 

Project No 914.  

BACKGROUND 

The Town has been allocated $199,192 in State funds from the Road Maintenance & 
Rehabilitation Account (RMRA) – Sustainability Communities Programs.  The Restricted Grant 
Agreement (RGA) was executed with CalTrans on 9/26/2018 for administrating this project 
under Agreement No. 74A1080.  This RGA shall expire on 2/28/2021. 

The objective of El Camino Real Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan is to develop a Plan 
that will improve safety and mobility for pedestrians, bicycling and public transportation 
pathways and facilities along El Camino Real. The Plan will address deficiencies and set goals 
and planning practices to improve and enhance roadway facilities for all modes of 
transportation. The grant requirements are very specific in the areas of public outreach. The 
consultant will be responsible for engaging members of the local community, those who 
represent the disadvantaged communities, Transit agencies, neighboring cities and local 
businesses.  

On January 23, 2019, the Town of Colma released a Request for Proposals (RFP) for the 
preparation of the El Camino Real Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan.  The RFP 
contained a very specific scope of work along with timely deliverables.  Three consultants 
responded to the RFP on February 20, 2019, including: W-Trans; Fehr & Peers; and Kittelson & 
Associates.  All three firms submitted proposals that satisfied the RFP requirements, so all three 
consultants were interviewed by a panel consisting of Town Staff.   

The Town followed the Caltrans’s Local Assistance Procedures Manual (LAPM) in the consultant 
selection process.  The evaluation was based on the technical merit of proposals and cost 
proposals were kept confidential and sealed until all proposals had been reviewed and 
consultants were interviewed.  The panel reviewed cost proposal from Fehr & Peers as being 
the top-ranked consultant and entered into contract negotiations with them. The unsuccessful 
cost proposals from other consultants remained sealed and returned back to the respective 
consultant. 



Staff Report - El Camino Real Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan Page 3 of 4 

ANALYSIS 
 
The Town of Colma’s El Camino Real Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan (Plan) will 

provide guidelines and directives for a comprehensive bicycle and pedestrian safety program 

along a portion of El Camino Real corridor, (State Route 82) in the Town of Colma. The 

improvement plan will stretch from the San Mateo County/Colma border to the North and go to 

South San Francisco/Colma to the South. Currently vast segments of this portion of (ECR) lacks 

cohesive connectivity for those who want to walk or bicycle from the various transit hubs that 

are served from this corridor. ECR is challenged with non-accessible or non-existent walkways 

thus rendering the pedestrian or bicycle portions of the right-of-way unavailable for safe and 

productive travel.  The Plan will strive to improve community mobility along this portion of the 

roadway by creating a vision to increase and enhance various modes of transportation, 

including walking and bicycling, while providing opportunities to increase ridership on public 

transportation.  

The Plan will review and implement the standards and goals that are stated in the California 

Transportation Plan 2040, California State Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan, Caltrans District 4 Bicycle 

Plan, San Mateo County Comprehensive Bicycle and Pedestrian Master Plan, and Grand 

Boulevard Initiatives (GBI) Goals.  

The community outreach efforts that are programed into the Plan will gather input from all 

segments of the community.  This would include disadvantaged communities and organizations 

that represent those with special needs, in addition to active stakeholders inclusive of CalTrans, 

local business owners, and the transit districts, through a number of interactive community 

workshops and council meetings.  Along with what is stated above, the plan will develop several 

design strategies (conceptual drawings) for public outreach.  It is the Town’s intent that once 

this Plan is complete, it will lead to implementation and development. 

The Consultant shall be responsible for undertaking the following tasks under the scope of 
services, summarized below: 

• Task 1 – Project Initiation 

o Task 1.1 – Staff Coordination/Progress Meetings 

o Task 1.2 – Project Kick-off Meeting 

o Task 1.3 – Identify Existing Conditions 

• Task 2 – Public Outreach 

o Task 2.1 – Workshop #1 

o Task 2.2 – Workshop #2 

o Task 2.3 – Workshop #3 

• Task 3 – Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan 
o Task 3.1 – Develop Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Design Concept 
o Task 3.2 – Develop Conceptual Design Alternative 
o Task 3.3 – Draft Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan 
o Task 3.4 – Joint Coordination with Caltrans 
o Task 3.5 – Identify Potential Funding Sources 
o Task 3.6 – Final Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan 
o Task 3.7 – City Council Adoption 

 
Fehr & Peers has shown proficiency with similar studies in transportation planning, Vision Zero 
Action Plan, innovative bicycle design, and complete street implementation pertaining to El 
Camino Real Corridor and other street projects. Their experience with Grand Boulevard 



Staff Report - El Camino Real Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan Page 4 of 4 

Initiative (GBI) goals and lessons learned reports that they developed at the end of the 
planning process of different segments they recently completed on El Camino Real in Redwood 
City and Palo Alto will enhance the planning process of Colma’s segment of ECR corridor.  

With all the components in the scope of work, the project is anticipated to take approximately 
twenty (20) months to complete. After contacting references and a review of project scope and 
budget, staff is recommending to the City Council that Fehr & Peers and their subconsultant 
EnviroIssues be hired to develop the El Camino Real Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan. 

Council Adopted Values 

The El Camino Real Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan is visionary, because it involves 
putting a conceptual plan together that will provide safe, attractive and sustainable paths of 
travel for those who walk, bike or use public transportation to and from work along ECR. 

Sustainability Impact 

Creating safe and attractive routes of travel for pedestrians, bicyclists and those who travel 
using public transit will attract more of the public to use these modes of transportation thus 
having a positive impact in lowering the Town’s GHG’s. 

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the resolution approving and authorizing the City 
Manager to execute the contract with Fehr & Peers for the preparation of El Camino Real 
Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan. 

ATTACHMENTS 

A. Resolution 
B. Fehr & Peers Professional Services Agreement with attached scope of work, budget and 

schedule 



Res. 2019-XX, Fehr & Peers Contract and Increases in Funding for 
El Camino Real Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan  Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-XX 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN 
AGREEMENT WITH FEHR & PEERS IN THE AMOUNT OF $199,108.09 FOR THE EL 

CAMINO REAL BICYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN IMPROVEMENT PLAN    

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve as follows: 

1. Background.

(a) The Town of Colma has been allocated $199,192 in State funds from the Road Maintenance
& Rehabilitation Account (RMRA) – Sustainability Communities Programs by the California 
Department of Transportation.  The RMRA grant will fund the Town’s El Camino Real Bicycle and 
Pedestrian Improvement Plan (Plan) along the El Camino Real, State Route 82 corridor. 

(b)  The goal of the Plan is to improve safety and mobility for pedestrians, bicycling and public 
transportation pathways, and facilities along El Camino Real.  The Town will evaluate existing 
conditions along El Camino Real and strategize on various improvements needed to enhance 
mobility, accessibility and connectivity for all modes of transportation along the corridor.  The Town 
will also engage the local community (including in particular disadvantaged communities), Transit 
agencies, neighboring cities and local businesses in developing the Plan. 

(c) On January 23, 2019, the Town released a Request for Proposals (RFP) for the preparation 
of the Plan.  Three firms responded to the RFP on February 20, 2019, and were interviewed by a 
panel consisting of Town staff.  The Town followed Caltrans’s Local Assistance Procedures Manual in 
the consultant selection process, and reviewed references, proposed scope of work, and project 
budget.  The Town determined that Fehr & Peers is the top-ranked consultant. 

(d) Therefore, the Town desires to approve a contract with Fehr & Peers in the amount of 
$199,108.09 for preparation of the Plan.  

(e) The Town is required by the RMRA grant to provide a local match in the amount of $25,808 
for project management of the Plan. 

2. Order

(a) The contract between the Town of Colma and Fehr & Peers for preparation of the El Camino
Real Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan, a copy of which is on file with the City Clerk, is 
approved by the City Council of the Town of Colma.  

(b) The City Manager is authorized to execute said contract on behalf of the Town of Colma, 
with such technical amendments as may be deemed appropriate by the City Manager and the City 
Attorney. 

// 

// 

// 

Attachment A



 

Res. 2019-XX, Fehr & Peers Contract and Increases in Funding for  
El Camino Real Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan  Page 2 of 2 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2019-XX was duly adopted at a regular meeting of said 
City Council held on April 10, 2019 by the following vote: 

 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 

  Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor      

John Irish Goodwin       

Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez       

Diana Colvin      

Helen Fisicaro      

Voting Tally      

 
 
Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 

 



25977.00100\31901980. 1 1 

CONTRACT NO. CIP914 
TOWN OF COLMA 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

This Agreement is made and entered into as of April ___, 2019 by and between the 
Town of Colma, a public agency organized and operating under the laws of the State of 
California with its principal place of business at 1198 El Camino Real, Colma, CA 94014 
(“Town”), and Fehr & Peers, a California corporation with its principal place of business at 332 
Pine Street, 4th Floor, San Francisco, CA 94104 (hereinafter referred to as “Consultant”).  Town 
and Consultant are sometimes individually referred to as “Party” and collectively as “Parties” in 
this Agreement. 

RECITALS 

A. Town is a public agency of the State of California and is in need of professional 
services for the following project: 

El Camino Real Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan (hereinafter referred to as “the 
Project”). 

B. Consultant is duly licensed and has the necessary qualifications to provide such 
services. 

C. Consultant desires to perform and assume responsibility for the provision of 
certain professional services required by the Town on the terms and conditions set forth in this 
Agreement. 

D. Town desires to engage Consultant to render such services for the Project as set 
forth in this Agreement 

E. The Parties desire by this Agreement to establish the terms for Town to retain 
Consultant to provide the services described herein. 

F. This Agreement is wholly or partially funded by state funds administered by the 
California Department of Transportation (“Caltrans”) pursuant to that certain Sustainable 
Communities Grants (State – SB 1) Restricted Grant Agreement (“Grant Agreement”), a copy of 
which is attached hereto as Exhibit “D” and incorporated herein by reference.   

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Services and Additional Services

a. Consultant promises and agrees to furnish to Town all labor, materials,
tools, equipment, services, and incidental and customary work necessary to fully and 
adequately supply the professional services necessary for the full and adequate completion of 
the Project consistent with the provisions of this Agreement (hereinafter referred to as 
“Services”).  The Services are more particularly described throughout this Agreement, including 

Attachment B



  

 

25977.00100\31901980. 1 2 

 

 

Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.  All Services shall be subject 
to, and performed in accordance with, this Agreement, any exhibits attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference, and all applicable local, state and federal laws, rules and 
regulations.  All Services performed by Consultant shall be subject to the sole and discretionary 
approval of the Town, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

b. At Town’s request, Consultant may be asked to perform additional 
services not otherwise included in this Agreement, not included within the scope of services 
listed in Exhibit “A” attached hereto, and/or not customarily furnished in accordance with 
generally accepted practices applicable to Consultant’s profession.  If changes in the scope of 
services seem merited by the Town, it shall be processed in the following manner: (1) Town 
shall communicate the requested additional services to Consultant in writing; (2) If Consultant 
has the capacity and ability to perform the additional services, Consultant shall prepare a letter 
outlining the changes, which shall be forwarded to the Town by Consultant with a statement of 
estimated changes in fee or time schedule; (3) an amendment to this Agreement shall be 
prepared by the Town and executed by both Parties before performance of such additional 
services.  Consultant shall not perform any additional services prior to execution of a written 
amendment to this Agreement memorializing the additional services.  Once additional services 
are approved pursuant to a written amendment executed by the Parties, such additional 
services shall be deemed as being part of the Services and shall be subject to the same terms 
and conditions of this Agreement as if the additional services had originally been included in the 
scope of services listed in Exhibit “A”.  Any written amendment adding additional services to the 
scope of services listed in Exhibit “A” shall not render ineffective or invalidate unaffected 
portions of this Agreement. 

c. As used herein, “additional services” mean: (1) any services which are 
determined by Town to be necessary for the proper completion of the Project, but which the 
Parties did not reasonably anticipate would be necessary for the Consultant to perform at the 
execution of this Agreement; or (2) any work listed as additional services in Exhibit “A” attached 
hereto.  Consultant shall not perform, nor be compensated for, additional services without prior 
written authorization from Town and without an agreement between the Town and Consultant 
as to the compensation to be paid for such additional services.  Town shall pay Consultant for 
any approved additional services, pursuant to the compensation provisions herein, so long as 
such additional services are not made necessary through the acts or omissions of Consultant. 

2. Allowable Costs and Payments 

a. The method of payment for this Agreement will be based on actual cost 
plus a fixed fee. Town will reimburse Consultant for actual costs (including labor costs, 
employee benefits, travel, equipment rental costs, overhead and other direct costs) incurred by 
Consultant in performance of the work. Consultant will not be reimbursed for actual costs that 
exceed the estimated wage rates, employee benefits, travel, equipment rental, overhead, and 
other estimated costs set forth in the approved Consultant’s Cost Proposal, attached hereto as 
Exhibit “B”, unless additional reimbursement is provided for by written amendment. In no event, 
will Consultant be reimbursed for overhead costs at a rate that exceeds Town’s approved 
overhead rate set forth in the Cost Proposal. In the event, that Town determines that a change 
to the work from that specified in the Cost Proposal and Agreement is required, the contract 
time or actual costs reimbursable by Town shall be adjusted by written amendment to 
accommodate the changed work. The maximum total cost as specified in subsection h, below, 



  

 

25977.00100\31901980. 1 3 

 

 

shall not be exceeded, unless authorized by written amendment. 

b. In addition to the allowable incurred costs, Town will pay Consultant a 
fixed fee of Fifteen Thousand Seven Hundred Sixty-Six and 60/100 Dollars ($15,766.60).  The 
fixed fee is nonadjustable for the term of the Agreement, except in the event of a significant 
change in the scope of work and such adjustment is made by written amendment.    

c. Travel expenses and per diem rates are not to exceed the rate specified 
by the State of California Department of Human Resources.  

d. When milestone cost estimates are included in the approved Cost 
Proposal, Consultant shall obtain prior written approval for a revised milestone cost estimate 
from the Contract Administrator before exceeding such cost estimate. 

 
e. Progress payments will be made monthly in arrears based on services 

provided and allowable incurred costs. A pro rata portion of Consultant’s fixed fee will be 
included in the monthly progress payments. If Consultant fails to submit the required deliverable 
items according to the schedule set forth in the Scope of Work, Town shall have the right to 
delay payment or terminate this Contract in accordance with the provisions of Section 21, 
Termination. 

 
f. No payment will be made prior to approval of any work, nor for any work 

performed prior to approval of this Agreement.  
 
g. Consultant will be reimbursed, as promptly as fiscal procedures will 

permit upon receipt by Town’s Contract Administrator of itemized invoices in triplicate. Invoices 
shall be submitted no later than 45 calendar days after the performance of work for which 
Consultant is billing. Invoices shall detail the work performed on each milestone and each 
project as applicable. Invoices shall follow the format stipulated for the approved Cost Proposal 
and shall reference this Agreement number and project title. Final invoice must contain the final 
cost and all credits due Town including any equipment purchased under the provisions of 
Section 27 Equipment Purchase of this Agreement. The final invoice should be submitted within 
60 calendar days after completion of Consultant’s work. Invoices shall be mailed to Town’s 
Contract Administrator 

 
  Town of Colma 
  1198 El Camino Real 
  Colma, CA 94014 
  Attn: Brad Donohue, Director of Public Works 
 

h. The total amount payable by Town including the fixed fee shall not 
exceed One Hundred Ninety-Nine Thousand One Hundred Eight and 9/100 Dollars 
($199,108.09).  

 
i. Salary increases will be reimbursable if the new salary is within the salary 

range identified in the approved Cost Proposal and is approved by Town’s Contract 
Administrator.  For personnel subject to prevailing wage rates as described in the California 
Labor Code, all salary increases, which are the direct result of changes in the prevailing wage 
rates are reimbursable. 



  

 

25977.00100\31901980. 1 4 

 

 

 
3. Funding Requirements 

 a. It is understood and agreed that this Agreement is in funded in whole or in 
part by a grant administered by Caltrans pursuant to the attached Grant Agreement.  Consultant 
agrees that it and its subconsultants will comply with all applicable flow down requirements 
under the Grant Agreement in the performance of this Agreement.  In the event of a conflict 
between the terms of the Grant Agreement and the terms of this Agreement, the provision that 
enforces the stricter obligation upon Consultant shall be deemed to apply. 

b. It is mutually understood between the Parties that this Agreement may 
have been written before ascertaining the availability of funds or appropriation of funds, for the 
mutual benefit of both Parties, in order to avoid program and fiscal delays that would occur if the 
Agreement were executed after that determination was made. 

 b. This Agreement may be terminated if sufficient funds are not made 
available to the Town for the purpose of this Agreement. In addition, this Agreement is subject 
to any additional restrictions, limitations, conditions, or any statute enacted by the Congress, 
State Legislature, or the Town governing body that may affect the provisions, terms, or funding 
of this Agreement in any manner. 

 c. It is mutually agreed that if sufficient funds are not appropriated, this 
Agreement may be amended to reflect any reduction in funds. 

 d. The Town has the option to terminate the Agreement under the 30-day 
termination clause pursuant to Section 20, or by mutual agreement to amend the Agreement to 
reflect any reduction of funds. 

4. Retention of Funds  

 a. Any subcontract entered into as a result of this Agreement shall contain 
all of the provisions of this Section. 

  b. No retainage will be withheld by the Town from progress 
payments due the Consultant.  Retainage by the Consultant or subconsultants is prohibited, and 
no retainage will be held by the Consultant from progress due subconsultants.  Any violation of 
this provision shall subject the violating Consultant or subconsultants to the penalties, sanctions, 
and other remedies specified in Section 7108.5 of the California Business and Professions 
Code.  This requirement shall not be construed to limit or impair any contractual, administrative, 
or judicial remedies, otherwise available to the Consultant or subconsultant in the event of a 
dispute involving late payment or nonpayment by the Consultant or deficient subconsultant 
performance, or noncompliance by a subconsultant.  This provision applies to both DBE and 
non-DBE Consultant and subconsultants. 

5. Retention of Records/Audit 

For the purpose of determining compliance with Public Contract Code 10115, et seq. 
and Title 21, California Code of Regulations, Chapter 21, Section 2500 et seq., when applicable 
and other matters connected with the performance of this Agreement pursuant to Government 



  

 

25977.00100\31901980. 1 5 

 

 

Code 8546.7; Consultant, subconsultants, and the Town shall maintain and make available for 
inspection all books, documents, papers, accounting records, and other evidence pertaining to 
the performance of this Agreement, including but not limited to, the costs of administering this 
Agreement. All parties shall make such materials available at their respective offices at all 
reasonable times during this Agreement period and for three years from the date of final 
payment under this Agreement. The state, State Auditor, Town, or any duly authorized 
representative of the federal government shall have access to any books, records, and 
documents of Consultant and it’s certified public accountants (CPA) work papers that are 
pertinent to this Agreement and indirect cost rates (ICR) for audit, examinations, excerpts, and 
transactions, and copies thereof shall be furnished if requested.  

6. Audit Review Procedures  

 a. Any dispute concerning a question of fact arising under an interim or post 
audit of this Agreement that is not disposed of by agreement, shall be reviewed by the Town.  

 b. Not later than 30 days after issuance of the final audit report, Consultant 
may request a review by the Town of unresolved audit issues. The request for review shall be 
submitted in writing. 

 c. Neither the pendency of a dispute nor its consideration by the Town shall 
excuse Consultant from full and timely performance, in accordance with the terms of this 
Agreement. 

 d. Consultant and subconsultant contracts, including cost proposals and 
ICR, are subject to audits or reviews such as, but not limited to, a contract audit, an incurred 
cost audit, an ICR Audit, or a CPA ICR audit work paper review. If selected for audit or review, 
the Agreement, cost proposal and ICR and related work papers, if applicable, will be reviewed 
to verify compliance with 48 CFR, Part 31 and other related laws and regulations. In the 
instances of a CPA ICR audit work paper review it is Consultant’s responsibility to ensure 
federal, state, or local government officials are allowed full access to the CPA’s work papers 
including making copies as necessary. The Agreement, cost proposal, and ICR shall be 
adjusted by Consultant and approved by the Town contract manager to conform to the audit or 
review recommendations. Consultant agrees that individual terms of costs identified in the audit 
report shall be incorporated into the Agreement by this reference if directed by the Town at its 
sole discretion. Refusal by Consultant to incorporate audit or review recommendations, or to 
ensure that the federal, state or local governments have access to CPA work papers, will be 
considered a breach of Agreement terms and cause for termination of the Agreement and 
disallowance of prior reimbursed costs. 

 7. Performance Period 

 a. This Agreement shall go into effect on April ___, 2019, contingent upon 
approval by the Town, and Consultant shall commence work after notification to proceed by the 
Town’s Contract Administrator (“Notice to Proceed”). This Agreement shall end on February 28, 
2021, unless extended by written amendment.  The Town shall have the unilateral option, at its 
sole discretion, to renew this Agreement for no more than 2 additional one-year terms. 



  

 

25977.00100\31901980. 1 6 

 

 

 b. Consultant is advised that any recommendation for Agreement award is 
not binding on the Town until this Agreement is fully executed and approved by the Town.  

 c. The Notice to Proceed shall set forth the date of commencement of work.  
Consultant shall not proceed with performance of any Services under this Agreement unless 
and until the Town provides the Notice to Proceed.  Consultant shall meet any established 
schedules and deadlines as specified in Exhibit “C”.  Consultant shall perform all Services 
hereunder as expeditiously as is consistent with professional skill and care, as well as the 
orderly progress of the Project work so as not to be the cause, in whole or in part, of delays in 
the completion of the Project or in the achievement of any Project milestones, as provided 
herein.  Specifically, Consultant shall perform its Services so as to allow for the full and 
adequate completion of the Project within the time required by the Town and within any 
completion schedules adopted for the Project.  Consultant agrees to coordinate with Town’s 
staff, contractors and consultants in the performance of the Services, and shall be available to 
Town’s staff, contractors and consultants at all reasonable times. 

 e. The Consultant shall only commence work covered by an amendment 
after the amendment is executed and notification to proceed has been provided by the Town’s 
Contract Administrator. 

8. Delays in Performance 

a. Neither Town nor Consultant shall be considered in default of this 
Agreement for delays in performance caused by circumstances beyond the reasonable control 
of the non-performing Party.  For purposes of this Agreement, such circumstances include but 
are not limited to, abnormal weather conditions; floods; earthquakes; fire; epidemics; war; riots 
and other civil disturbances; strikes, lockouts, work slowdowns, and other labor disturbances; 
sabotage or judicial restraint. 

b. Should such circumstances occur, the non-performing Party shall, within 
a reasonable time of being prevented from performing, give written notice to the other Party 
describing the circumstances preventing continued performance and the efforts being made to 
resume performance of this Agreement. 

9. Compliance with Law 

a. Consultant shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, codes and 
regulations of the federal, state and local government, including Cal/OSHA requirements. 

b. If required, Consultant shall assist the Town, as requested, in obtaining 
and maintaining all permits required of Consultant by federal, state and local regulatory 
agencies. 

c. If applicable, Consultant is responsible for all costs of clean up and/ or 
removal of hazardous and toxic substances spilled as a result of its Services or operations 
performed under this Agreement. 

10. Standard of Care 



  

 

25977.00100\31901980. 1 7 

 

 

Consultant shall perform all Services under this Agreement in a skillful and competent 
manner, consistent with the standards generally recognized as being employed by professionals 
qualified to perform the Services in the same discipline in the State of California, and shall be 
responsible to Town for damages sustained by the Town and delays to the Project as specified 
in the indemnification provision of this Agreement.  Without limiting the foregoing, Consultant 
shall be fully responsible to the Town for any increased costs incurred by the Town as a result 
of any such delays to the Project.  Consultant represents and maintains that it is skilled in the 
professional calling necessary to perform the Services.  Consultant warrants and represents 
that all of its employees, experts and subconsultants shall have sufficient skill and experience to 
perform the Services assigned to them.  Finally, Consultant represents that it, its employees, 
experts and subconsultants have all licenses, permits, qualifications and approvals of whatever 
nature that are legally required to perform the Services assigned to or rendered by them and 
that such licenses and approvals shall be maintained throughout the term of this Agreement.  As 
provided for in the indemnification provisions of this Agreement, Consultant shall perform, at its 
own cost and expense and without reimbursement from the Town, any services necessary to 
correct errors or omissions which are caused by the Consultant’s failure to comply with the 
standard of care provided for herein.  Any employee or subconsultant who is determined by the 
Town to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate or timely completion of the 
Project, a threat to the safety of persons or property, or any employee or subconsultant who 
fails or refuses to perform the Services in a manner acceptable to the Town, shall be promptly 
removed from the Project by the Consultant and shall not be re-employed to perform any of the 
Services or to work on the Project. 

11. Key Personnel 

Consultant has represented to the Town that certain additional key personnel and 
subconsultants will perform the Services under this Agreement.  Should one or more of such 
personnel or subconsultants become unavailable, Consultant may substitute others of at least 
equal competence upon written approval of the Town.  In the event that Town and Consultant 
cannot agree as to the substitution of key personnel or subconsultants, Town shall be entitled to 
terminate this Agreement for cause.  As discussed below, any personnel or subconsultants who 
fail or refuse to perform the Services in a manner acceptable to the Town, or who are 
determined by the Town to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to the adequate or timely 
completion of the Project or a threat to the safety of persons or property, shall be promptly 
removed from the Project by the Consultant at the request of the Town.  The key personnel and 
subconsultants for performance of this Agreement are as follows: 

▪ Dana Weissman, Project Manager – Fehr & Peers 
▪ Bob Grandy, Principal – Fehr & Peers 
▪ Geoff Rubendall, Associate – Fehr & Peers  
▪ Carrie Modi, Associate – Fehr & Peers 
▪ Kendra Rowley, Senior Engineer – Fehr & Peers 
▪ Ingrid Ballus Armet, Engineer – Fehr & Peers 
▪ Thao Nguyen, Planner – Fehr & Peers 
▪ Katie DeLeuw, Senior Associate – EnviroIssues 
▪ Alison Brown, Associate – EnviroIssues 

 
12. Subcontracting 



  

 

25977.00100\31901980. 1 8 

 

 

a. Nothing contained in this Agreement or otherwise, shall create any 
contractual relation between the Town and any subconsultant(s), and no subcontract shall 
relieve Consultant of its responsibilities and obligations hereunder. Consultant agrees to be as 
fully responsible to the Town for the acts and omissions of its subconsultant(s) and of persons 
either directly or indirectly employed by any of them as it is for the acts and omissions of 
persons directly employed by Consultant.  Consultant’s obligation to pay its subconsultant(s) is 
an independent obligation from Town’s obligation to make payments to the Consultant. 

b. Consultant shall perform the Services with resources available within its 
own organization and no portion of the Services shall be subcontracted without written 
authorization by the Town’s Contract Administrator, except that, which is expressly identified in 
the Consultant Cost Proposal attached hereto.  

 
c. Consultant shall pay its subconsultants within ten (10) calendar days from 

receipt of each payment made to Consultant by the Town. 
 
d. All subcontracts entered into as a result of this Agreement shall contain 

all the provisions stipulated in this Agreement to be applicable to subconsultants. 
 
e. Any substitution of subconsultant(s) must be approved in writing by the 

Town’s Contract Administrator prior to the start of work by the subconsultant(s). 
 

13. Independent Contractor 

Consultant is retained as an independent contractor and is not an employee of Town.  
No employee or agent of Consultant shall become an employee of Town.  The work to be 
performed shall be in accordance with the work described in this Agreement, subject to such 
directions and amendments from Town as herein provided. 

14. Insurance   

Consultant shall not commence work for the Town until it has provided evidence 
satisfactory to the Town it has secured all insurance required under this Section.  In addition, 
Consultant shall not allow any subconsultant to commence work on any subcontract until it has 
secured all insurance required under this Section.   

a. Commercial General Liability 

(i) The Consultant shall take out and maintain, during the 
performance of all work under this Agreement, in amounts not less than specified herein, 
Commercial General Liability Insurance, in a form and with insurance companies acceptable to 
the Town. 

(ii) Coverage for Commercial General Liability insurance shall be at 
least as broad as the following: 

(1) Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability 
coverage (Occurrence Form CG 00 01) or exact equivalent. 



  

 

25977.00100\31901980. 1 9 

 

 

(iii) Commercial General Liability Insurance must include coverage 
for the following: 

(1) Bodily Injury and Property Damage 
(2) Personal Injury/Advertising Injury 
(3) Premises/Operations Liability 
(4) Products/Completed Operations Liability 
(5) Aggregate Limits that Apply per Project 
(6) Explosion, Collapse and Underground (UCX) exclusion 

deleted 
(7) Contractual Liability with respect to this Agreement 
(8) Property Damage 
(9) Independent Consultants Coverage 

 (iv) The policy shall contain no endorsements or provisions limiting 
coverage for (1) contractual liability; (2) cross liability exclusion for claims or suits by one 
insured against another; (3) products/completed operations liability; or (4) contain any other 
exclusion contrary to the Agreement. 

 (v) The policy shall give Town, its officials, officers, employees, 
agents and Town designated volunteers additional insured status using ISO endorsement forms 
CG 20 10 10 01 and 20 37 10 01, or endorsements providing the exact same coverage. 

 (vi) The general liability program may utilize either deductibles or 
provide coverage excess of a self-insured retention, subject to written approval by the Town, 
and provided that such deductibles shall not apply to the Town as an additional insured. 

b. Automobile Liability 

(i) At all times during the performance of the work under this 
Agreement, the Consultant shall maintain Automobile Liability Insurance for bodily injury and 
property damage including coverage for owned, non-owned and hired vehicles, in a form and 
with insurance companies acceptable to the Town. 

(ii) Coverage for automobile liability insurance shall be at least as 
broad as Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 00 01 covering automobile liability 
(Coverage Symbol 1, any auto). 

(iii)  The policy shall give Town, its officials, officers, employees, 
agents and Town designated volunteers additional insured status. 

(iv) The business automobile liability program may utilize either 
deductibles or provide coverage excess of a self-insured retention, subject to written approval 
by the Town, and provided that such deductibles shall not apply to the Town as an additional 
insured. 

c. Workers’ Compensation/Employer’s Liability 



  

 

25977.00100\31901980. 1 10 

 

 

(i) Consultant certifies that he/she is aware of the provisions of 
Section 3700 of the California Labor Code which requires every employer to be insured against 
liability for workers’ compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the 
provisions of that code, and he/she will comply with such provisions before commencing work 
under this Agreement. 
 

(ii) To the extent Consultant has employees at any time during the 
term of this Agreement, at all times during the performance of the work under this Agreement, 
the Consultant shall maintain full compensation insurance for all persons employed directly by 
him/her to carry out the work contemplated under this Agreement, all in accordance with the 
“Workers’ Compensation and Insurance Act,” Division IV of the Labor Code of the State of 
California and any acts amendatory thereof, and Employer’s Liability Coverage in amounts 
indicated herein.  Consultant shall require all subconsultants to obtain and maintain, for the 
period required by this Agreement, workers’ compensation coverage of the same type and limits 
as specified in this Section. 
 

d. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) 

At all times during the performance of the work under this Agreement the Consultant 
shall maintain professional liability or Errors and Omissions insurance appropriate to its 
profession, in a form and with insurance companies acceptable to the Town and in an amount 
indicated herein.  This insurance shall be written on a policy form coverage specifically designed 
to protect against acts, errors or omissions of the Consultant.  “Covered Professional Services” 
as designated in the policy must specifically include work performed under this Agreement. The 
policy must “pay on behalf of” the insured and must include a provision establishing the insurer's 
duty to defend. 

e. Pollution Liability 

(i) Pollution Liability is required should any of the Services involve 
pollutants or hazardous materials.  Liability coverage shall include coverage for the 
environmental risks associated with the Project and expenses related to such, including bodily 
injury, property damage, on and off site clean-up, transporting, carrying or storing pollutants, 
and coverage for non-owned disposal sites. 

(ii) The policy shall give Town, its officials, officers, employees, 
agents and Town designated volunteers additional insured status. 

(iii) The pollution liability program may utilize either deductibles or 
provide coverage excess of a self-insured retention, subject to written approval by the Town, 
and provided that such deductibles shall not apply to the Town as an additional insured. 

f. Minimum Policy Limits Required 

(i) The following insurance limits are required for the Agreement: 

Combined Single Limit 



  

 

25977.00100\31901980. 1 11 

 

 

Commercial General Liability  $2,000,000 per occurrence/$4,000,000 aggregate  
  for bodily injury, personal injury, and property  
  damage 

 
Automobile Liability   $1,000,000 combined single limit 

Employer’s Liability   $1,000,000 per occurrence 

Professional Liability   $2,000,000 per claim and aggregate (errors and 
omissions) 

 
Pollution Liability   $1,000,000 each loss/$2,000,000 aggregate 
 

 (ii) Defense costs shall be payable in addition to the limits. 

 (iii) Requirements of specific coverage or limits contained in this 
Section are not intended as a limitation on coverage, limits, or other requirement, or a waiver of 
any coverage normally provided by any insurance.  Any available coverage shall be provided to 
the parties required to be named as Additional Insured pursuant to this Agreement. 

g. Evidence Required 

Prior to execution of the Agreement, the Consultant shall file with the Town 
evidence of insurance from an insurer or insurers certifying to the coverage of all insurance 
required herein.  Such evidence shall include original copies of the ISO CG 00 01 (or insurer’s 
equivalent) signed by the insurer’s representative and Certificate of Insurance (Acord Form 25-
S or equivalent), together with required endorsements.  All evidence of insurance shall be 
signed by a properly authorized officer, agent, or qualified representative of the insurer and 
shall certify the names of the insured, any additional insureds, where appropriate, the type and 
amount of the insurance, the location and operations to which the insurance applies, and the 
expiration date of such insurance.   

h. Policy Provisions Required 

(i)  Consultant shall provide the Town at least thirty (30) days prior 
written notice of cancellation of any policy required by this Agreement, except that the 
Consultant shall provide at least ten (10) days prior written notice of cancellation of any such 
policy due to non-payment of premium.  If any of the required coverage is cancelled or expires 
during the term of this Agreement, the Consultant shall deliver renewal certificate(s) including 
the General Liability Additional Insured Endorsement to the Town at least ten (10) days prior to 
the effective date of cancellation or expiration. 

(ii) The Commercial General Liability Policy, Automobile Liability 
Policy and Pollution Liability Policy shall each contain a provision stating that Consultant’s 
policy is primary insurance and that any insurance, self-insurance or other coverage 
maintained by the Town or any named insureds shall not be called upon to contribute to any 
loss. 



  

 

25977.00100\31901980. 1 12 

 

 

(iii) The retroactive date (if any) of each policy is to be no later than 
the effective date of this Agreement.  Consultant shall maintain such coverage continuously for 
a period of at least three years after the completion of the work under this Agreement.  
Consultant shall purchase a one (1) year extended reporting period A) if the retroactive date is 
advanced past the effective date of this Agreement; B) if the policy is cancelled or not renewed; 
or C) if the policy is replaced by another claims-made policy with a retroactive date subsequent 
to the effective date of this Agreement. 

(iv) All required insurance coverages, except for the professional 
liability coverage, shall contain or be endorsed to waiver of subrogation in favor of the Town, its 
officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers or shall specifically allow Consultant or 
others providing insurance evidence in compliance with these specifications to waive their right 
of recovery prior to a loss. Consultant hereby waives its own right of recovery against Town, 
and shall require similar written express waivers and insurance clauses from each of its 
subconsultants. 

(v) The limits set forth herein shall apply separately to each insured 
against whom claims are made or suits are brought, except with respect to the limits of liability.  
Further the limits set forth herein shall not be construed to relieve the Consultant from liability in 
excess of such coverage, nor shall it limit the Consultant’s indemnification obligations to the 
Town and shall not preclude the Town from taking such other actions available to the Town 
under other provisions of the Agreement or law. 

i. Qualifying Insurers 

(i) All policies required shall be issued by acceptable insurance 
companies, as determined by the Town, which satisfy the following minimum requirements: 

(1) Each such policy shall be from a company or companies 
with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII and admitted to transact in the 
business of insurance in the State of California, or otherwise allowed to place insurance 
through surplus line brokers under applicable provisions of the California Insurance 
Code or any federal law. 

j. Additional Insurance Provisions 

(i) The foregoing requirements as to the types and limits of insurance 
coverage to be maintained by Consultant, and any approval of said insurance by the Town, is 
not intended to and shall not in any manner limit or qualify the liabilities and obligations 
otherwise assumed by the Consultant pursuant to this Agreement, including but not limited to, 
the provisions concerning indemnification. 

(ii) If at any time during the life of the Agreement, any policy of 
insurance required under this Agreement does not comply with these specifications or is 
canceled and not replaced, Town has the right but not the duty to obtain the insurance it 
deems necessary and any premium paid by Town will be promptly reimbursed by Consultant or 
Town will withhold amounts sufficient to pay premium from Consultant payments. In the 
alternative, Town may cancel this Agreement. 



  

 

25977.00100\31901980. 1 13 

 

 

(iii) The Town may require the Consultant to provide complete copies 
of all insurance policies in effect for the duration of the Project. 

(iv) Neither the Town nor any of its officials, officers, employees, 
agents or volunteers shall be personally responsible for any liability arising under or by virtue of 
this Agreement. 

k. Subconsultant Insurance Requirements Consultant shall not allow any 
subconsultants to commence work on any subcontract until they have provided evidence 
satisfactory to the Town that they have secured all insurance required under this Section.  
Policies of commercial general liability insurance provided by such subconsultants shall be 
endorsed to name the Town as an additional insured using ISO form CG 20 38 04 13 or an 
endorsement providing the exact same coverage.  If requested by Consultant, Town may 
approve in writing different scopes or minimum limits of insurance for particular subconsultants.   

 15. Safety  

  a. Consultant shall comply with OSHA regulations applicable to Consultant 
regarding necessary safety equipment or procedures. Consultant shall comply with safety 
instructions issued by the Town Safety Officer and other Town representatives. Consultant 
personnel shall wear hard hats and safety vests at all times while working on the construction 
project site. 

  b. Pursuant to the authority contained in Section 591 of the Vehicle Code, 
the Town has determined that such areas are within the limits of the project and are open to 
public traffic. Consultant shall comply with all of the requirements set forth in Divisions 11, 12, 
13, 14, and 15 of the Vehicle Code. Consultant shall take all reasonably necessary precautions 
for safe operation of its vehicles and the protection of the traveling public from injury and 
damage from such vehicles. 

  c. Any subcontract entered into as a result of this Agreement, shall contain 
all of the provisions of this Section. 

  d. Consultant must have a Division of Occupational Safety and Health (CAL-
OSHA) permit(s), as outlined in California Labor Code Sections 6500 and 6705, prior to the 
initiation of any practices, work, method, operation, or process related to the construction or 
excavation of trenches which are five feet or deeper. 

16. Indemnification 

a. For all matters not arising out of Consultant’s performance of “design 
professional” services (as that term is defined under Civil Code section 2782.8) and to the fullest 
extent permitted by law, Consultant shall defend (with counsel of Town’s choosing), indemnify 
and hold the Town, its officials, officers, employees, volunteers, and agents free and harmless 
from any and all claims, demands, causes of action, costs, expenses, liability, loss, damage or 
injury of any kind, in law or equity, to property or persons, including wrongful death,  in any 
manner arising out of, pertaining to, or incident to any negligent acts, errors or omissions, or 
willful misconduct of Consultant, its officials, officers, employees, subconsultants or agents in 
connection with the performance of the Consultant’s Services, the Project or this Agreement, 



  

 

25977.00100\31901980. 1 14 

 

 

including without limitation the payment of all damages, reasonable expert witness fees and 
attorney’s fees and other related costs and expenses.  Consultant's obligation to indemnify shall 
not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by Consultant, the Town, its officials, 
officers, employees, agents, or volunteers. 

 
b. If Consultant’s obligation to defend, indemnify, and/or hold harmless 

arises out of Consultant’s performance of “design professional” services (as that term is defined 
under Civil Code section 2782.8), then, and only to the extent required by Civil Code section 
2782.8, which is fully incorporated herein, Consultant’s indemnification obligation shall be 
limited to claims that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful 
misconduct of the Consultant, and, upon the Parties mutual agreement in settlement or 
obtaining a final adjudication by a court of competent jurisdiction, Consultant’s liability for such 
claim, including the cost to defend, shall not exceed the Consultant’s proportionate percentage 
of fault. 

 
 17. California Labor Code Requirements 

a. State Prevailing Wage Rates  

 1. Consultant shall comply with the State of California’s General 
Prevailing Wage Rate requirements in accordance with California Labor Code, Section 1770, 
and all federal, state, and local laws and ordinances applicable to the work (“Prevailing Wage 
Laws”). 

 2. Any subcontract entered into as a result of this Agreement, if for 
more than $25,000 for public works construction or more than $15,000 for the alteration, 
demolition, repair, or maintenance of public works, shall contain all of the provisions of this 
Section, unless the awarding agency has an approved labor compliance program by the 
Director of Industrial Relations. 

 3. When prevailing wages apply to the Services described in the 
scope of work, transportation and subsistence costs shall be reimbursed at the minimum rates 
set by the Department of Industrial Relations (DIR) as outlined in the applicable Prevailing 
Wage Determination. See http://www.dir.ca.gov. 

b. Consultant is aware of the requirements of California Labor Code 
Sections 1720 et seq. and 1770 et seq., which require the payment of prevailing wage rates and 
the performance of other requirements on certain “public works” and “maintenance” projects 
(“Prevailing Wage Laws”).  Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold the Town, its officials, 
officers, employees and agents free and harmless from any claims, liabilities, costs, penalties or 
interest arising out of any failure or alleged failure to comply with the Prevailing Wage Laws.  It 
shall be mandatory upon the Consultant and all subconsultants to comply with all California 
Labor Code provisions, which include but are not limited to prevailing wages (Labor Code 
Sections 1771, 1774 and 1775), employment of apprentices (Labor Code Section 1777.5), 
certified payroll records (Labor Code Section 1771.4 and 1776), hours of labor (Labor Code 
Sections 1813 and 1815) and debarment of contractors and subcontractors (Labor Code 
Section 1777.1).  The requirement to submit certified payroll records directly to the Labor 
Commissioner under Labor Code section 1771.4 shall not apply to work performed on a public 



  

 

25977.00100\31901980. 1 15 

 

 

works project that is exempt pursuant to the small project exemption specified in Labor Code 
Section 1771.4. 

  c. If the Services are being performed as part of an applicable “public works” 
or “maintenance” project, then pursuant to Labor Code Sections 1725.5 and 1771.1, the 
Consultant and all subconsultants performing such Services must be registered with the 
Department of Industrial Relations.  Consultant shall maintain registration for the duration of the 
Project and require the same of any subconsultants, as applicable.  This Project may also be 
subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations.  It 
shall be Consultant’s sole responsibility to comply with all applicable registration and labor 
compliance requirements.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the contractor registration 
requirements mandated by Labor Code Sections 1725.5 and 1771.1 shall not apply to work 
performed on a public works project that is exempt pursuant to the small project exemption 
specified in Labor Code Sections 1725.5 and 1771.1. 

  d. This Agreement may also be subject to compliance monitoring and 
enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations.  It shall be Consultant’s sole 
responsibility to comply with all applicable registration and labor compliance requirements.  Any 
stop orders issued by the Department of Industrial Relations against Consultant or any 
subconsultant that affect Consultant’s performance of Services, including any delay, shall be 
Consultant’s sole responsibility.  Any delay arising out of or resulting from such stop orders shall 
be considered Consultant caused delay and shall not be compensable by the Town.  Consultant 
shall defend, indemnify and hold the Town, its officials, officers, employees and agents free and 
harmless from any claim or liability arising out of stop orders issued by the Department of 
Industrial Relations against Consultant or any subconsultant. 

 18. Verification of Employment Eligibility 

 By executing this Agreement, Consultant verifies that it fully complies with all 
requirements and restrictions of state and federal law respecting the employment of 
undocumented aliens, including, but not limited to, the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 
1986, as may be amended from time to time, and shall require all subconsultants and sub-
subconsultants to comply with the same.   

 19. Cost Principles and Administrative Requirements  

  a. Consultant agrees that the Contract Cost Principles and Procedures, 48 
CFR, Federal Acquisition Regulations System, Chapter 1, Part 31.000 et seq., shall be used to 
determine the cost allowability of individual items. 

  b. Consultant also agrees to comply with federal procedures in accordance 
with 2 CFR, Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards. 

  c. Any costs for which payment has been made to Consultant that are 
determined by subsequent audit to be unallowable under 2 CFR, Part 200 and 48 CFR, Federal 
Acquisition Regulations System, Chapter 1, Part 31.000 et seq., are subject to repayment by 
Consultant to the Town. 



  

 

25977.00100\31901980. 1 16 

 

 

 20. Laws and Venue 

This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of 
California.  If any action is brought to interpret or enforce any term of this Agreement, the action 
shall be brought in a state or federal court situated in the County of San Mateo, State of 
California.   

21. Termination  

a. The Town reserves the right to terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice to Consultant with the reasons for termination stated in the notice.  

b. The Town may terminate this Agreement with Consultant should 
Consultant fail to perform the covenants herein contained at the time and in the manner herein 
provided. In the event of such termination, the Town may proceed with the work in any manner 
deemed proper by the Town. If the Town terminates this Agreement with Consultant, the Town 
shall pay Consultant the sum due to Consultant under this Agreement prior to termination, 
unless the cost of completion to the Town exceeds the funds remaining in the Agreement. In 
which case the overage shall be deducted from any sum due Consultant under this Agreement 
and the balance, if any, shall be paid to Consultant upon demand.  

c. Upon termination, Consultant shall provide to Town all Project 
Documents, as defined below, to which Town would have been entitled at the completion of 
Consultant’s Services under this Agreement.  Upon payment of the amount required to be paid 
to Consultant pursuant to the termination provisions of this Agreement, Town shall have the 
rights, as provided in this Agreement hereinafter, to use such Project Documents prepared by or 
on behalf of Consultant under this Agreement.  Consultant shall make such documents 
available to Town upon request and without additional compensation other than as may be 
approved as a reimbursable expense.   

22. Project Documents   

 a. All original field notes, written reports, drawings and specifications and 
any other documents prepared pursuant to this Agreement, including, but not limited to, any 
other works of authorship fixed in any tangible medium of expression such as writings, physical 
drawings and data magnetically or otherwise recorded on computer diskettes (hereinafter 
referred to as the “Project Documents”) shall be and remain the property of Town.  Although the 
official copyright in all Project Documents shall remain with the Consultant or other applicable 
subconsultants, the Project Documents shall be the property of Town whether or not the work 
for which they were made is executed or completed.  Within thirty (30) calendar days following 
completion of the Project, Consultant shall provide to Town copies of all Project Documents 
required by Town.  In addition, Consultant shall retain copies of all Project Documents on file for 
a minimum of fifteen (15) years following completion of the Project, and shall make copies 
available to Town upon the payment of reasonable duplication costs.  Before destroying the 
Project Documents following this retention period, Consultant shall make a reasonable effort to 
notify Town and provide Town with the opportunity to obtain the documents.  This Agreement 
creates a non-exclusive and perpetual license for Town to copy, use, modify or reuse any and 
all Project Documents and any intellectual property rights therein for any purpose related to the 
Project.  Consultant shall require any and all subconsultants to agree in writing that Town is 



  

 

25977.00100\31901980. 1 17 

 

 

granted a non-exclusive and perpetual license for the work of such subconsultants performed 
pursuant to this Agreement.  Consultant represents and warrants that Consultant has the legal 
right to license any and all copyrights, designs and other intellectual property embodied in the 
Project Documents that Consultant prepares or causes to be prepared pursuant to this 
Agreement.  Consultant shall indemnify and hold Town harmless pursuant to the indemnification 
provisions of this Agreement for any breach of this Section.   

 b. It is understood and agreed that all calculations, drawings and 
specifications, whether in hard copy or machine-readable form, are intended for one-time use in 
the construction of the project for which this Agreement has been entered into. 

 c. Consultant is not liable for claims, liabilities, or losses arising out of, or 
connected with the modification, or misuse by the Town of the machine-readable information 
and data provided by Consultant under this Agreement; further, Consultant is not liable for 
claims, liabilities, or losses arising out of, or connected with any use by the Town of the Project 
Documents on other projects for additions to this Project, or for the completion of this Project by 
others, except only such use as many be authorized in writing by Consultant.  

 d. Applicable patent rights provisions regarding rights to inventions shall be 
included in the contracts as appropriate (48 CFR 27, Subpart 27.3 - Patent Rights under 
Government Contracts for federal-aid contracts). 

 e. The Town may permit copyrighting reports or other agreement products.  
If copyrights are permitted; the agreement shall provide that Caltrans shall have the royalty-free 
nonexclusive and irrevocable right to reproduce, publish, or otherwise use; and to authorize 
others to use, the work for government purposes. 

23. Confidentiality 

a. All Project Documents, either created by or provided to Consultant in connection 
with the performance of this Agreement, shall be held confidential by Consultant to the extent 
they are not subject to disclosure pursuant to the Public Records Act.  All Project Documents 
shall not, without the written consent of Town, be used or reproduced by Consultant for any 
purposes other than the performance of the Services.  Consultant shall not disclose, cause or 
facilitate the disclosure of the Project Documents to any person or entity not connected with the 
performance of the Services or the Project.  Nothing furnished to Consultant which is otherwise 
known to Consultant or is generally known, or has become known, to the related industry shall 
be deemed confidential.  Consultant shall not use Town’s name or insignia, photographs of the 
Project, or any publicity pertaining to the Services or the Project in any magazine, trade paper, 
newspaper, television or radio production or other similar medium without the written consent of 
Town. 

b. All financial, statistical, personal, technical, or other data and information relative 
to the Town’s operations, which are designated confidential by the Town and made available to 
Consultant in order to carry out this Agreement, shall be protected by Consultant from 
unauthorized use and disclosure. 



  

 

25977.00100\31901980. 1 18 

 

 

c. Permission to disclose information on one occasion, or public hearing held by the 
Town relating to the Agreement, shall not authorize Consultant to further disclose such 
information, or disseminate the same on any other occasion.  

d. Consultant shall not comment publicly to the press or any other media regarding 
the Agreement or the Town’s actions on the same, except to the Town’s staff, Consultant’s own 
personnel involved in the performance of this Agreement, at public hearings or in response to 
questions from a Legislative committee.  

e. All information related to the construction estimate is confidential, and shall not 
be disclosed by Consultant to any entity other than the Town. 

24. Disputes 

 a. Any dispute, other than audit, concerning a question of fact arising under 
this Agreement that is not disposed of by agreement shall be decided by a committee consisting 
of the Town’s Contract Administrator and City Manager, who may consider written or verbal 
information submitted by Consultant. 

 b. Not later than 30 days after completion of all deliverables necessary to 
complete the plans, specifications and estimate, Consultant may request review by the City 
Manager of unresolved claims or disputes, other than audit. The request for review will be 
submitted in writing. 

 c. Neither the pendency of a dispute, nor its consideration by the committee 
will excuse Consultant from full and timely performance in accordance with the terms of this 
Agreement. 

25. Claims Filed by the Town’s Construction Contractor 

 a. If claims are filed by the Town’s construction contractor relating to work 
performed by Consultant’s personnel, and additional information or assistance from 
Consultant’s personnel is required in order to evaluate or defend against such claims; 
Consultant agrees to make its personnel available for consultation with the Town’s construction 
contract administration and legal staff and for testimony, if necessary, at depositions and at trial 
or arbitration proceedings.  

b. Consultant’s personnel that the Town considers essential to assist in defending 
against construction contractor claims will be made available on reasonable notice from the 
Town.  Consultation or testimony will be reimbursed at the same rates, including travel costs 
that are being paid for Consultant’s personnel services under this Agreement. 

c. Services of Consultant’s personnel in connection with the Town’s construction 
contractor claims will be performed pursuant to a written amendment, if necessary, extending 
the termination date of this Agreement in order to resolve the construction claims.  

26. The Town’s Contract Administrator  



  

 

25977.00100\31901980. 1 19 

 

 

The Town hereby designates Brad Donohue, Director of Public Works or his or her 
designee, to act as its Contract Administrator for the performance of this Agreement (“Town’s 
Contract Administrator ”).  Town’s Contract Administrator shall have the power to act on behalf 
of the Town for all purposes under this Agreement.  Consultant shall not accept direction or 
orders from any person other than the Town’s Contract Administrator or his or her designee. 

27. Limitation of Agreement 

 This Agreement is limited to and includes only the work included in the Project described 
above. 
 
 28. Equipment Purchase 
 
  a. Prior authorization in writing, by the Town’s Contract Administrator shall 
be required before Consultant enters into any unbudgeted purchase order, or subcontract for 
supplies, equipment, or Consultant services. Consultant shall provide an evaluation of the 
necessity or desirability of incurring such costs.  
 
  b. For purchase of any item, service or consulting work not covered in 
Consultant’s Cost Proposal and exceeding $5,000 prior authorization by the Town’s Contract 
Administrator is required.  Three competitive quotations must be submitted with the request for 
such purchase, or the absence of bidding must be adequately justified.  
 

 c. Any equipment purchased as a result of this Agreement is subject to the 
following:  Consultant shall maintain an inventory of all nonexpendable property. 
Nonexpendable property is defined as having a useful life of at least two years and an 
acquisition cost of $5,000 or more. If the purchased equipment needs replacement and is sold 
or traded in, the Town shall receive a proper refund or credit at the conclusion of this 
Agreement, or if this Agreement is terminated, the Town may either keep the equipment and 
credit the Town in an amount equal to its fair market value, or sell such equipment at the best 
price obtainable at a public or private sale, in accordance with established Town procedures; 
and credit the Town in an amount equal to the sales price. If Consultant elects to keep the 
equipment, fair market value shall be determined at Consultant’s expense, on the basis of a 
competent independent appraisal of such equipment. Appraisals shall be obtained from an 
appraiser mutually agreeable to the Town and Consultant.  If Consultant determines to sell the 
equipment, the terms and conditions of such sale must be approved in advance by the Town.  2 
CFR, Part 200 requires a credit to federal funds when participating equipment with a fair market 
value greater than $5,000 is credited to the project. 
 

29. Statement of Compliance 
 
 a. Consultant’s signature affixed herein, and dated, shall constitute a 

certification under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that Consultant 
has, unless exempt, complied with, the nondiscrimination program requirements of Government 
Code Section 12990 and Title 2, California Administrative Code, Section 8103. 

 
 b. During the performance of this Agreement, Consultant and its 

subconsultants shall not unlawfully discriminate, harass, or allow harassment against any 
employee or applicant for employment because of sex, race, color, ancestry, religious creed, 



  

 

25977.00100\31901980. 1 20 

 

 

national origin, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition 
(e.g., cancer), age (over 40), marital status, and denial of family care leave. Consultant and 
subconsultants shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and applicants 
for employment are free from such discrimination and harassment. Consultant and 
subconsultants shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. 
Code §12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations promulgated there under (California 
Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285 et seq.). The applicable regulations of the Fair 
Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), 
set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are 
incorporated into this Agreement by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. 
Consultant and its subconsultants shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause 
to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other agreement.  

 
 c. If this Agreement is federally funded, the Consultant shall comply with 

regulations relative to Title VI (nondiscrimination in federally-assisted programs of the 
Department of Transportation – Title 49 Code of Federal Regulations, Part 21 - Effectuation of 
Title VI of the 1964 Civil Rights Act). Title VI provides that the recipients of federal assistance 
will implement and maintain a policy of nondiscrimination in which no person in the state of 
California shall, on the basis of race, color, national origin, religion, sex, age, disability, be 
excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of or subject to discrimination under any 
program or activity by the recipients of federal assistance or their assignees and successors in 
interest. 

 
 d. If this Agreement is federally funded, the Consultant, with regard to the 

work performed by it during the Agreement shall act in accordance with Title VI. Specifically, the 
Consultant shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, religion, sex, age, or 
disability in the selection and retention of subconsultants, including procurement of materials 
and leases of equipment. The Consultant shall not participate either directly or indirectly in the 
discrimination prohibited by Section 21.5 of the U.S. DOT’s Regulations, including employment 
practices when the Agreement covers a program whose goal is employment. 

 
30. Debarment and Suspension Certification  
 
 a. Consultant’s signature affixed herein, shall constitute a certification under 

penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California, that Consultant has complied with 
Title 2 CFR, Part 180, “OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Government wide Debarment and 
Suspension (nonprocurement)”, which certifies that he/she or any person associated therewith 
in the capacity of owner, partner, director, officer, or manager, is not currently under 
suspension, debarment, voluntary exclusion, or determination of ineligibility by any federal 
agency; has not been suspended, debarred, voluntarily excluded, or determined ineligible by 
any federal agency within the past three (3) years; does not have a proposed debarment 
pending; and has not been indicted, convicted, or had a civil judgment rendered against it by a 
court of competent jurisdiction in any matter involving fraud or official misconduct within the past 
three (3) years. Any exceptions to this certification must be disclosed to the Town. 

 
 b. Exceptions will not necessarily result in denial of recommendation for 

award, but will be considered in determining Consultant responsibility. Disclosures must indicate 
to whom exceptions apply, initiating agency, and dates of action. 

 



  

 

25977.00100\31901980. 1 21 

 

 

 c. Exceptions to the Federal Government Excluded Parties List System 
maintained by the General Services Administration are to be determined by Caltrans. 

 
31. Inspection of Work.  
 
Consultant and any subconsultant shall permit the Town and the state to review and 

inspect the project activities and files at all reasonable times during the performance period of 
this Agreement including review and inspection on a daily basis. 

 
32. National Labor Relations Board Certification  

 In accordance with Public Contract Code Section 10296, Consultant hereby 
states under penalty of perjury that no more than one final unappealable finding of contempt of 
court by a federal court has been issued against Consultant within the immediately preceding 
two-year period, because of Consultant’s failure to comply with an order of a federal court that 
orders Consultant to comply with an order of the National Labor Relations Board. 

 
33. Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) Participation  
 
[Reserved]  
 
34. Notice 

 
Any notice or instrument required to be given or delivered by this Agreement may be 

given or delivered by depositing the same in any United States Post Office, certified mail, return 
receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed to: 

TOWN: 
Town of Colma 
1198 El Camino Real 
Colma, CA 94014 
Attn:  Brian Dossey, City Manager 

CONSULTANT: 
Fehr & Peers 
332 Pine Street, 4th Floor 
San Francisco, CA 94104 
Attn: Bob Grandy, Principal 

 
and shall be effective upon receipt thereof. 

35. Third Party Rights 

Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to give any rights or benefits to anyone 
other than the Town and the Consultant. 

36. Equal Opportunity Employment 

Consultant represents that it is an equal opportunity employer and that it shall not 
discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, 
national origin, ancestry, sex, age or other interests protected by the state or federal 
Constitutions.  Such non-discrimination shall include, but not be limited to, all activities related to 
initial employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff 
or termination. 



  

 

25977.00100\31901980. 1 22 

 

 

37. Labor Certification 

By its signature hereunder, Consultant certifies that it is aware of the provisions of 
Section 3700 of the California Labor Code which require every employer to be insured against 
liability for Worker’s Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the 
provisions of that Code, and agrees to comply with such provisions before commencing the 
performance of the Services. 

38. Entire Agreement 

This Agreement, with its exhibits, represents the entire understanding of Town and 
Consultant as to those matters contained herein, and supersedes and cancels any prior or 
contemporaneous oral or written understanding, promises or representations with respect to 
those matters covered hereunder.  Each Party acknowledges that no representations, 
inducements, promises or agreements have been made by any person which are not 
incorporated herein, and that any other agreements shall be void. This Agreement may not be 
modified or altered except in writing signed by both Parties hereto. This is an integrated 
Agreement. 

39. Severability 

The unenforceability, invalidity or illegality of any provision(s) of this Agreement shall not 
render the provisions unenforceable, invalid or illegal. 

40. Successors and Assigns 

This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the successors in 
interest, executors, administrators and assigns of each Party to this Agreement.  However, 
Consultant shall not assign or transfer by operation of law or otherwise any or all of its rights, 
burdens, duties or obligations without the prior written consent of Town.  Any attempted 
assignment without such consent shall be invalid and void. 

41. Non-Waiver 

None of the provisions of this Agreement shall be considered waived by either Party, 
unless such waiver is specifically specified in writing. 

42. Time of Essence 

Time is of the essence for each and every provision of this Agreement. 

43. Town’s Right to Employ Other Consultants 

Town reserves its right to employ other consultants in connection with this Project or 
other projects. 

44. Prohibited Interests 

  a. Contingent Fee   



  

 

25977.00100\31901980. 1 23 

 

 

 Consultant warrants by execution of this Agreement that no person or selling agency has 
been employed, or retained, to solicit or secure this Agreement upon an agreement or 
understanding, for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee, excepting bona fide 
employees, or bona fide established commercial or selling agencies maintained by Consultant 
for the purpose of securing business.  For breach or violation of this warranty, the Town has the 
right to annul this Agreement without liability; pay only for the value of the work actually 
performed, or in its discretion to deduct from the contract price or consideration, or otherwise 
recover the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee.  For the 
term of this Agreement, no director, official, officer or employee of Town, during the term of his 
or her service with Town, shall have any direct interest in this Agreement, or obtain any present 
or anticipated material benefit arising therefrom. 

  b. Conflict of Interest 

   1. Consultant shall disclose any financial, business, or other 
relationship with Commission that may have an impact upon the outcome of this Agreement, or 
any ensuing Town construction project. Consultant shall also list current clients who may have a 
financial interest in the outcome of this Agreement, or any ensuing Town construction project, 
which will follow.  

   2. Consultant hereby certifies that it does not now have, nor shall it 
acquire any financial or business interest that would conflict with the performance of Services 
under this Agreement. 

   3. Consultant hereby certifies that neither Consultant, nor any firm 
affiliated with Consultant will bid on any construction contract, or on any contract to provide 
construction inspection for any construction project resulting from this Agreement. An affiliated 
firm is one, which is subject to the control of the same persons through joint-ownership, or 
otherwise. 

   4. Except for subconsultants whose services are limited to providing 
surveying or materials testing information, no subconsultant who has provided design services 
in connection with this Agreement shall be eligible to bid on any construction contract, or on any 
contract to provide construction inspection for any construction project resulting from this 
Agreement.  

  c. Rebates, Kickbacks or Other Unlawful Consideration. 

 Consultant warrants that this Agreement was not obtained or secured through rebates 
kickbacks or other unlawful consideration, either promised or paid to any Town employee. For 
breach or violation of this warranty, Town shall have the right in its discretion; to terminate this 
Agreement without liability; to pay only for the value of the work actually performed; or to deduct 
from the Agreement price; or otherwise recover the full amount of such rebate, kickback or other 
unlawful consideration. 

  d. Prohibition of Expending Town, State, or Federal Funds for Lobbying.   

1. The Consultant certifies that to the best of his or her knowledge 
and belief that:  



  

 

25977.00100\31901980. 1 24 

 

 

    A. No state, federal or local agency appropriated funds have 
been paid, or will be paid by or on behalf of the Consultant to any person for influencing or 
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any state or federal agency; a Member of the 
State Legislature or United States Congress; an officer or employee of the Legislature or 
Congress; or any employee of a Member of the Legislature or Congress, in connection with the 
awarding of any state or federal contract; the making of any state or federal grant; the making of 
any state or federal loan; the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, 
continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any state or federal contract, grant, loan, 
or cooperative agreement. 

    B. If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have 
been paid, or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or 
employee of any federal agency; a Member of Congress; an officer or employee of Congress, or 
an employee of a Member of Congress; in connection with this federal contract, grant, loan, or 
cooperative agreement; Consultant shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure 
Form to Report Lobbying”, attached hereto as Exhibit “F” and incorporated herein by this 
reference, in accordance with its instructions. 

   2. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which 
reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this 
certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 
1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject 
to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure. 

   3. Consultant also agrees by signing this document that he or she 
shall require that the language of this certification be included in all lower-tier subcontracts, 
which exceed $100,000 and that all such sub recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 

45. Paper Waste Reduction Policy 

Consultant shall utilize double-sided printing and recycled paper for all Project 
Documents, notices and correspondence placed on standard Letter sized paper (ANSI A - 
8.5”x11”) or equivalent whenever practicable.  Consultant shall endeavor to utilize electronic 
correspondence in the performance of the Services, the Project and this Agreement except 
where written notice is expressly required under the terms of this Agreement in which case 
Consultant shall comply with the notice requirements set forth above. 

46. Assignment 

Consultant shall not assign, sublet, or transfer this Agreement or any rights under or 
interest in this Agreement without the written consent of the Town, which may be withheld for 
any reason.  Any attempt to so assign or so transfer without such consent shall be void and 
without legal effect and shall constitute grounds for termination. 

47. Evaluation of Consultant  
 
Consultant ’s performance will be evaluated by the Town. A copy of the evaluation will 

be sent to Consultant for comments.  The evaluation together with the comments shall be 
retained as part of the Agreement record. 



  

 

25977.00100\31901980. 1 25 

 

 

 

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 



  

 

25977.00100\31901980. 1 26 

 

 

SIGNATURE PAGE FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE TOWN OF COLMA 

AND FEHR & PEERS 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first 
written above. 

TOWN OF COLMA    FEHR & PEERS 

 

 

 

By:                                 By:       

Brian Dossey, City Manager    

      Its:       

 

     Printed Name:      

ATTEST: 

 

By:      

 Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

By:      

 Christopher J. Diaz, City Attorney 

 

  



  

 

25977.00100\31901980. 1 27 

 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

Scope of Services 
 
[INSERT SCOPE OF SERVICES] 
  



El Camino Real Bicycle and Pedestrian 

Improvement Plan   
Prepared for 

Town of Colma 

 

February 20, 2019 (Revised March 18, 2019) 

 

 

 

 

 



El Camino Real Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan 

February 20, 2019 (Revised March 18, 2019) 

| 2 | 

Scope of Work 

 Project Initiation 

Task 1.1 Staff Coordination/Progress Meetings 
We will participate in monthly half hour calls with Town staff to provide updates on work activity and 
milestones, as well as to discuss upcoming deliverables and outreach activities. Additionally, we will 

participate in six one-hour in-person meetings with Town staff, aligned with key project milestones. 

Our project manager, Dana Weissman, will ensure that Town staff are updated and involved in key decisions 
throughout the project by way of the check-in calls and in-person meetings, as well as through emails and 

phone conversations, as needed. 

Task 1.2 Task 1.2 Project Kick-off Meeting 
Fehr & Peers will facilitate an in-person, one-hour project kick-off meeting with key Town staff and Caltrans 
staff to initiate the project (distinct from the six in-person meetings with Town staff for project coordination). At 

this meeting, we will review with Caltrans and Town staff the final scope of work determined during the pre-
contracting phase. Drawing on our experience with the Grand Boulevard Safe and Healthy Corridor 

Communities Studies, we will develop a flexible work flow under the terms of the Caltrans Sustainable 

Transportation Planning Grant framework. This will serve as the first opportunity to establish a shared vision 
between the Town and Caltrans, through a cohesive set of goals that will be refined through the first outreach 

phase. 

We will also engage our Visual Communications Team to establish a branding template at the outset of the 

project, through the development of the first set of graphics under Task 1.3 (story maps). The branding 
template will be used for graphic deliverables throughout the project.  

Task 1.3 Identify Existing Conditions 

REVIEW BACKGROUND STUDIES & PLANNING DOCUMENTS 
Fehr & Peers will review the background studies and planning documents identified in the work directive scope of 

services to identify relevant parameters and goals for the visioning process. We will document key takeaways 

from each plan/study related to its impact or application to the study corridor. We will create a map of the 

locations and extents of planned streetscape or safety improvements that overlap with our study area. This will 
help provide context for the public and other stakeholders during the outreach stage, illustrating opportunities to 

expand and incorporate these improvements into our vision and design to create a consistent look and feel in the 

area. 

GATHER DATA  
We will collect and compile existing data along the corridor, including traffic counts, parking data, and relevant 

GIS layers.  

DATA COLLECTION (COMPILED BY FEHR & PEERS)   
Fehr & Peers will collect a series of data that we see as critical for successful project execution.  



El Camino Real Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan 

February 20, 2019 (Revised March 18, 2019) 

| 3 | 

One important set of data will be multimodal traffic volumes to understand the existing use of the corridor and 
to inform potential roadway reconfiguration alternatives developed in a later phase of the project. To the 

extent possible, we will use count data available from other recent projects and will only collect new counts 

where necessary. Prior to scheduling counts, we will confirm the locations and types of data collection with 

Town staff. We anticipate collecting the following:  

● Daily Hose Counts – Daily volume, vehicle classification, and travel speeds for all vehicles over a 7-day 

period using pneumatic hoses at specific locations along the corridor.    

● Peak Period Multimodal Intersection Turning Movement Counts – Weekday AM, weekday PM, and 

weekend midday peak period intersection turning movement counts at major intersections along the 
corridor. 

 

In addition to the multimodal traffic volume counts, we will collect and compile the following data:  

● On-street parking supply along the corridor, as well as weekday AM, weekday PM, and weekend 

midday peak periods 

● Existing bicycle and pedestrian facilities along the corridor  

● Field observations during weekday AM, weekday PM, and weekend midday peak periods along the 
corridor, including intersection operations, queuing, and multimodal behavioral patterns 

● GIS layers with community demographics information to identify Communities of Concern, defined 

based on ATP guidelines (to supplement available layers from the Town) 

ADDITIONAL DATA ELEMENTS (AS AVAILABLE)   
We will incorporate the following data into our base maps and other project graphics, as available from the 
Town, Caltrans, or SamTrans. These data would be helpful, but they are non-essential for successful project 

execution.   

● Right of way limits (GIS or CAD format)  

● As-builts or topographic survey within the study areas (CAD format)  

● Transit GTFS files that show existing bus routes, stops, and headways; bus ridership by stop 
(geocoded)   

● Other information in GIS format, including:  

○ Roadway centerlines  

○ Sidewalk inventory  

○ Curb inventory  

○ Lighting inventory  

○ Land-use data, such as zoning files 

○ Bike facilities (existing and proposed) 



El Camino Real Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan 

February 20, 2019 (Revised March 18, 2019) 

| 4 | 

EVALUATE EXISTING CONDITIONS & RECOMMENDATIONS FROM BACKGROUND STUDIES    
Our Feasibility & Design Team will review existing pedestrian and bicycle infrastructure, as well as the 
proposed designs for intersections along El Camino Real from the Systemic Safety Analysis Report (SSAR) and 

the Serramonte Boulevard and Collins Ave Master Plan, to ensure feasibility, adequacy, and consistency with 

current design standards and best practices. We will evaluate compliance with ADA Accessibility Guidelines 

(ADAAG), Caltrans design standards, and Town design standards. In addition, for this task and throughout the 

development of the plan, we will reference a set of design guidelines for El Camino Real that we developed as 
part of the Grand Boulevard Safe and Healthy Corridor Communities Studies. These design guidelines include, 

among other elements, intersection guidelines for protected bike lanes. Finally, for this evaluation we will 

leverage our team’s access to companywide expertise through the Complete Streets Design Group, which 

holds monthly design review meetings.  

CREATE STORY MAPS 
With this information, we will create a series of story maps that illustrate existing conditions on the corridor, to 
be used for the final plan and outreach efforts. We envision creating four story maps, which have proven to be 

useful resources on previous corridor studies. We assume that four maps will be sufficient to illustrate the 
following existing conditions information, but we will prepare a fifth if needed for legibility: 

● Project purpose 

● Transportation facilities, adjacent land uses, and community demographics 

● Existing travel conditions and constrains/opportunities 

● Parking occupancy  

● Background studies and plans    

STATE OF THE CORRIDOR MEMORANDUM  
We will prepare a State of the Corridor memorandum to summarize the key takeaways from the existing 

conditions assessment. This memorandum will be brief and, to the extent possible, will include the 
information in a visual manner through a set of graphics or story maps to illustrate the context for each 

corridor and set the stage for the subsequent project work.  

In the process of preparing this proposal, we completed an initial review of recent transportation studies in 

Colma (i.e. the Systemic Safety Analysis Report (SSAR) and the Serramonte Boulevard and Collins Ave Master 
Plan), selected local and regional plans (e.g. San Mateo County Comprehensive Bicycle and Pedestrian Master 

Plan, Caltrans District 4 Bicycle Plan), and collected a series of publicly available data to develop an initial El 

Camino Real State of the Corridor map.  

DEVELOP BASE MAPS  
We will create a base map in CAD using high resolution aerials and available as-builts to draw the locations of 

existing curb and gutter, striping, etc. to serve as the foundation for the conceptual improvement drawings 
developed during a later stage of the project.  

Deliverables 

● Agendas and minutes for monthly calls and six in-person meetings with Town staff (Task 1.1) 

● Kick-off meeting agenda, facilitation and minutes (Task 1.2) 

● State of the Corridor memo, including (Task 1.3): 



El Camino Real Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan 

February 20, 2019 (Revised March 18, 2019) 

| 5 | 

○ Summary of background documents and planning studies relevant for the corridor 

○ Summary of data collection findings 

○ Evaluation of existing design conditions and feasibility assessment of the SSAR and the 

Serramonte Boulevard and Collins Ave Master Plan design recommendations 

○ Four story maps documenting existing conditions, community demographics, and context for the 

corridor 

● Base map of the corridor in CAD  

 Community Outreach 
The Town of Colma’s El Camino Real Bike and Pedestrian Improvement Plan must reflect the diverse voices of 

Colma and nearby communities. We will draw from our experience with the Grand Boulevard Safe and Healthy 
Corridor Communities Studies, the Story-Keyes Study, and various other corridor studies to develop an 

outreach plan that combines in-person strategies with a robust online presence, all focused on an equitable 
approach.  

In addition to the outreach activities specified in the RFP’s scope of work (Tasks 2.1-2.3), we recommend the 

following enhancements to maximize participation and diversity of input strategies. Each of these 

enhancements will occur for every stage of outreach. 

PUBLIC MEETING PROMOTION AND ADVERTISING 
To inform the community about upcoming opportunities to participate in the project, we will prepare 

announcements to be included in the Live Wire and distributed through the Town’s existing social media 

channels. To reach community members who do not follow these channels, we will develop business cards 

with meeting dates and the project website URL and distribute them to local businesses, at the Colma and 
South San Francisco BART stations, at Sterling Park Rec Center, at the Colma Community Center, and at 

community events, such as the Colma and South San Francisco annual Streets Alive celebrations.  

ONLINE OUTREACH 
Our partner EnviroIssues will create a robust project website to be used through all stages of the process, 
where interested community members may find updated information as the project progresses. Additionally, 

EnviroIssues will use its online public participation platform, partcipate.online (https://participate.online), 
which translates in-person outreach events into an online workshop format to engage people digitally 

anywhere and at any time. This platform emulates an in-person open house where participants can visit virtual 

“stations” to learn about a project and provide feedback along the way through embedded surveys or 

interactive maps. Online open house information also can be translated into multiple languages and 

optimized for accessibility to maximize the experience for people with disabilities.  

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 
We plan to conduct three meetings with the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC), one after each outreach 

phase, to ensure that key stakeholders, including Caltrans, are involved in the decision-making process 

throughout the project. We will use our experience on the Grand Boulevard Safe and Healthy Corridor 
Communities Studies to determine the most appropriate topics to cover during these meetings, taking 

advantage of the stakeholder collaboration time to identify multi-agency performance measures, shared 
concerns, and key design decisions. For each meeting, we will coordinate with attendees for scheduling, 

develop a plan (agenda and materials needed), facilitate the meeting, and provide meeting minutes. 



El Camino Real Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan 

February 20, 2019 (Revised March 18, 2019) 

| 6 | 

In coordination with Town staff, we will determine the participants of the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC), 
which could include representation from the Town of Colma, the City Council, Caltrans, South San Francisco, 

Daly City, BART, SamTrans, Managers Mobility Partner, and the Silicon Valley Bike Coalition.   

Each of the three phases of outreach will include participation in a City Council meeting, distinct from the three 
TAC meetings. 

Task 2.1 Community Workshop #1 – Neighborhood-Based Workshops 
For this first stage of outreach, we will host two neighborhood-based workshops: one in the neighborhood at 
the north end of the town, near the Colma BART station, and one towards the south edge of the town. Each 

workshop will include an introduction to the project, an introduction to basic streetscape improvements 

concepts with the aid of a visual glossary, and a walking audit of a section of the corridor near the 

neighborhood meeting point. Participants will have the opportunity to learn about the project and provide 

input on current constraints and opportunities along the corridor. 

Prior to the workshops, we will work with the Town to define a set of performance measures that align with 

local and regional goals. At the workshops, we will gather input from the community on which performance 
measures are most important to them and how they feel the corridor meets those measures. The same 

performance measures will be discussed at the first TAC meeting for stakeholders to weigh in as well. 

EnviroIssues will provide an interactive webmap on the project website where community members can 
provide input on current constraints and opportunities. The website also will include a survey where 

community members can comment on the performance measures. 

Task 2.2 Community Workshop #2 – Community Events Pop-Up Meetings 
During this second round of outreach, we will present the three design alternatives developed as part of Task 

3.2, request input on the design elements, and generate feedback on the community’s preferred alternative.  

To “meet people where they are,” we will host a table at three community events: one in Colma, one in South 

San Francisco, and one in Daly City. Events in the spring or summer could include the Colma Super Bowl Party 
or summer concerts, national night out events, South City’s Concert in the Park, local farmers’ markets, or Daly 

City’s summer kick-off or summer luau events. In the fall and winter, pop-up meetings could occur at the 280 
Metro Center’s Snow Day, winter/holiday events in Colma, Daly City, or South City, a City or Town council 

meeting, or at the Serra Center on a holiday shopping weekend.  

In addition, to help reach business owners and employees, we will implement a business-focused meeting in 

Colma at a location such as Molloy’s Tavern, which is near the corridor and central to many Colma businesses. 

For this effort to be successful, it is critical that the ideas presented be communicated effectively. Our Visual 

Communications Team will prepare a series of graphics to help the public understand even the most 
complex streetscape design concepts. For each alternative, we will prepare plan view conceptual designs 
(Task 3.2) and 3D cross-section graphics, allowing the public to fully visualize the designs. We will prepare 
two cross-section graphics per alternative – one for the northern portion of the El Camino Real corridor 
and another for the southern portion of the El Camino Real corridor near the Mission Road “Y” 
intersection. Exact cross-section locations will be determined in coordination with Town staff through the 
project process. 



El Camino Real Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan 

February 20, 2019 (Revised March 18, 2019) 

| 7 | 

To complement the in-person events, EnviroIssues will include on the project website a survey where 
community members may vote for their preferred alternative and provide further comments. 

Task 2.3 Community Workshop #3 – Living Preview 
For the final phase of outreach, we will lead a “Living Preview” project installation at one intersection or one 
block of the corridor. The installation will demonstrate key design features of the preferred alternative design 

concept, as determined in Task 3.3, through a “tactical urbanism” approach which uses inexpensive materials 

and community support. Design features may include a separated bikeway, pedestrian improvements such as 

bulb-outs, or other improvements of interest to the community. We will use our experience working with 

Caltrans on the Living Preview in Redwood City during the Grand Boulevard Safe and Healthy Corridor 
Communities Study to determine what location and what design features would be best suited for the event, in 

coordination with the Town and Caltrans staff. 

The Living Preview event also will serve as a pop-up workshop where the community may provide feedback on 

the preferred alternative design concept.  

Through our experience implementing a Living Preview on El Camino Real in Redwood City, we will use our 
knowledge of the Caltrans permitting process to assist the Town with the planning process early and 

efficiently. In addition to finalizing the layout and materials for the temporary installation, our budget includes 
preparation of necessary materials for the required encroachment permit, such as route maps and traffic 

control plans, and assumes that the Town will complete and submit the completed Encroachment Permit 

Application and form. Well in advance of the event, we will work with Town staff to determine final 
assignments for planning the event; for example, the Town may prefer to have Town or Caltrans staff develop 

traffic control plans and use Fehr & Peers’ staff time to work on more focused advertising and coordination 
with the community. 

On the project website, EnviroIssues will embed the preferred alternative design concept into a webmap, 
where community members can leave comments on specific features.  

Deliverables 

● Project website and online tool (Tasks 2.1-2.3) 

● Promotional materials for public meetings (Tasks 2.1-2.3) 

● Support in convening of Technical Advisory Committee and facilitation of three TAC meetings, 

including scheduling, meeting agendas, meeting materials (e.g., brief project overview PowerPoint 

Presentation slides) and meeting minutes (Tasks 2.1-2.3) 

● Brief presentation at three City Council meetings, including brief project overview PPT slides for first 

meeting (Tasks 2.1-2.3) 

● Facilitation of Community Workshop #1 – Neighborhood-Based Workshops – and development of 

event materials, including boards, visual glossary, walking audit guides, and brief project overview 

PowerPoint Presentation slides (Task 2.1); photo documentation and summary of input 

● Facilitation of Community Workshop #2 – Community Events & Business-Focused Pop-Up Meetings – 

and development of event materials, including boards and two 3D cross-section graphics per 

alternative (Task 2.2); photo documentation and summary of input 



El Camino Real Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan 

February 20, 2019 (Revised March 18, 2019) 

| 8 | 

● Facilitation of Community Workshop #3 – Living Preview – and preparation of event materials, 
including boards, living preview materials, traffic control plans and permits, and staff time for set-up 

(Task 2.3); photo documentation and summary of input  

 Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan 

Task 3.1 Develop Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Design Concept 
Fehr & Peers will summarize the fundamental needs and potential improvements for the corridor in a 
preliminary design concept graphic based on findings from the existing conditions assessment (Task 1.3) and 

input received during the first phase of community outreach (Task 2.1), including input from the TAC. We also 

will refine the performance measures for the corridor, which will guide the development of the design 

alternatives, based on input from the community and the TAC (Task 2.1).   

Task 3.2  Develop Conceptual Design Alternatives 
Fehr & Peers will develop the preliminary improvement design concept into three design alternatives for the 

corridor, each illustrating two potential cross-sections (one for the north end and one for the south end of the 
corridor) and recommended bicycle and pedestrian improvements. We will evaluate the alternatives according 

to the performance measures refined in Task 3.1. The design alternatives and their tradeoffs, based on the 
performance measure evaluations, will be presented to the community during the second phase of outreach 

(Task 2.2). For this task, we recommend maintaining the design alternatives as concepts with high-level 

tradeoffs, thereby providing the appropriate high level of detail and context for this stage of the input-seeking 
and decision-making process. 

Task 3.3 Draft Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan 
Fehr & Peers will work with Town staff to identify a preferred alternative based on guidance from the TAC and 

feedback from the second phase of outreach (Task 2.2). We will develop a conceptual design plan of the 

preferred alternative using AutoCAD software (CAD) with a conceptual color template. The plan will be in a 
format that may easily be refined and modified to develop subsequent design plans in the next phase of the 

project after this contract.  

If a topographic survey and right-of-way mapping are not available from the data provided by others in Task 

1.3, we will develop the conceptual design plan of the preferred alternative over a traced aerial, using the aerial 
base map from Task 1.3. We will include locations of the proposed streetscape and green infrastructure 

changes through colored patterns/hatching in CAD. 

As part of this task, Fehr & Peers also will develop a detailed concept design of the two intersections identified 

as high risk in the Town’s recent SSAR: Collins Avenue and Mission Road. The detailed designs will consider the 

feasibility assessment conducted for Task 1.3 and input from the community during the first two phases of 

outreach.  

Fehr & Peers will develop a preliminary construction cost estimate for the preferred design alternative. As part 
of the Fehr & Peers DG efforts, we have developed a planning-level cost-estimating tool that has been reviewed 

and vetted by experts from across the company and has been designed specifically for these types of 

applications.  



El Camino Real Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan 

February 20, 2019 (Revised March 18, 2019) 

| 9 | 

Finally, Fehr & Peers will prepare a Draft Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan focused on the concept 
design drawings and outlining a realistic implementation plan, incorporating previous deliverables into the 

appendices (state of corridor memo, outreach results). 

Task 3.4 Joint Coordination with Caltrans 
Caltrans will be involved from the kick-off meeting, through the decision-making process, and to the final 

design. In addition to the kick-off meeting, six in-person meetings with Town staff, three TAC meetings and four 

City Council meetings, we will organize two meetings with Caltrans at the District office. We have a strong 

working relationship with Caltrans staff through longstanding relationships, and we have a clear 

understanding of specific needs and processes unique to Caltrans through our work on projects such as the 
Grand Boulevard Safe and Healthy Corridor Communities Studies and the San Pablo Avenue Multimodal 
Corridor Study.  

We recommend that the first meeting with Caltrans be held after the second round of public outreach to 

present the three alternatives and identify Caltrans’ preferred option. This meeting will occur before the TAC 
and Council meetings so that the team, including Town staff, may understand Caltrans’ needs and preferences 

before presenting alternatives to the larger group of stakeholders.  

The second meeting with Caltrans will occur after the draft plan has been developed, potentially the same day 
as the final TAC meeting, to review the concept plans closely with Caltrans staff and discuss design feasibility. 

The purpose of this meeting will be to identify design refinements based on Caltrans feedback and develop a 

draft list of anticipated design exceptions requiring future Caltrans approval. The final list of design exceptions 
will be included as part of the final plan in Task 3.6. 

Task 3.5 Identify Potential Funding Sources 
Our Feasibility & Design Team members will utilize their experience on recent studies such as the Grand 

Boulevard Safe and Healthy Corridor Communities Studies and the Bancroft Protected Bikeway to refine the 
preliminary cost estimate from Task 3.3, and will provide a reliable and context-based cost estimate for 

implementation of the plan. The cost estimate will include project administration, preparation of plans, 
specifications and estimates, mobilization, traffic control, construction costs and contingency. We typically 

account for these as percentages of the overall construction costs. 

Carrie Modi, lead of the Planning & Outreach pillar, is our grants expert and will develop a list of potential 

funding sources tailored to this project.  

We will include the cost estimates and potential funding sources in a section of the plan. 

Task 3.6 Final Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan 
Fehr & Peers will develop a final Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan for El Camino Real. The final version 

will address community input from the third round of outreach (Task 2.3) and Caltrans’ comments from the 

design review meeting (Task 3.4). 

Our Visual Communications Team will ensure that the final plan is consistent with the project branding 

developed at the onset of the project.   



El Camino Real Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan 

February 20, 2019 (Revised March 18, 2019) 

| 10 | 

Task 3.7 City Council Adoption 
Fehr & Peers will present the Final El Camino Real Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan at the fourth and 

final City Council meeting and will address any critical issues to aid in the adoption of the plan. 

Deliverables 

● Graphic summarizing public and stakeholder input on the corridor from Task 2.1 (Task 3.1) 

● Three design concept alternatives with cross sections (two per alternative) and 3D illustrations (Task 

3.2) 

● Draft El Camino Real Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan with preferred design alternative (Task 

3.3) 

● Facilitation and preparation of materials for two Caltrans meetings, as well as meeting notes (Task 3.4) 

● Summary of planning-level cost estimates and funding sources to be included in the plan (Task 3.5) 

● Final El Camino Real Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan: 10 hard copies and one electronic 
copy (Task 3.6) 

● Participation in City Council meeting for adoption of Final Plan (Task 3.7) 

 

 



  

 

25977.00100\31901980. 1 28 

 

 

EXHIBIT “B” 

Schedule of Charges/Payments 
 

[INSERT APPROVED COST PROPOSAL FOR CONSULTANT AND SEPARATE COST 
PROPOSALS FOR EACH SUBCONSULANT] 

 

For the satisfactory performance and completion of the Services under this Agreement, Town 

will pay Consultant compensation as set forth herein. 

 

1. INVOICING 

 

Consultant shall submit invoices in accordance with the following requirements: 

 

1.1 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

 

1.1.1 Consultant shall prepare invoices on a monthly basis for each complete calendar 

month.  Invoices shall be submitted as soon as possible, but no later than forty-

five (45) calendar days after month’s end. 

 

1.1.2 Charges shall be billed in accordance with the terms and rates included herein. 

 

1.1.3 Base services and additional services shall be charged separately, and the 

charges for each task listed in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, shall be listed 

separately.  The charges for each individual assigned under this Agreement shall 

be listed separately. 

 

1.1.4 Each invoice submittal should bear the following identification: 

 

1.1.4.1 Town’s Agreement number. 

 

1.1.4.2 Town’s Purchase Order number. 

 

1.1.4.3 The sequential billing number under the Agreement (1, 2, 3, etc.). 

 

1.1.4.4 Consultant’s internal invoice number. 

 

1.1.4.5 Date of invoice. 

 

1.1.4.6 Calendar period covered by invoice. 

 

1.1.4.7 Name and phone for Point of Contact for invoice inquiries. 



  

 

25977.00100\31901980. 1 29 

 

 

 

1.1.4.8 Remittance Address 

 

1.1.5 The invoice submittal should bear the following certification signed by an officer 

of the firm: 

 

“I hereby certify that the hours and salary rates charged in 

this invoice are the actual hours and rates worked and paid 

to the employees listed.” 

 

Signed 

Title         

Date         

Invoice No.        

 

1.1.6 The invoice submittal shall consist of the following:  

 

1.1.6.1 A transmittal letter, stating the period covered and briefly highlighting 

overall project status and any significant scope, schedule or budget 

issues.   

 

1.1.6.2 Monthly progress report. 

 

1.1.6.3 Invoice as outlined and specified in paragraph 1.1.4 above.   

 

1.1.7 Invoices furnished by Consultant under this Agreement must be submitted on 

Consultant letterhead, specify Consultant’s address for purposes of payment 

delivery, and be in a form acceptable to Town.   

 

1.1.8 In addition to a paper copy of the invoice submittal, at Town’s request, 

Consultant will also submit an electronic version in .pdf format of the invoice 

and the items identified in paragraph 1.1.6 above. 

 

2. PAYMENT 

 

2.1 Payment will be made in accordance with Section 2 of the Agreement and this Exhibit 

“B.” 

 

2.2 The total amount payable by Town shall not exceed Total Compensation shown 

under Section 2 of this Agreement. 

 



  

 

25977.00100\31901980. 1 30 

 

 

[INSERT EXHIBIT 10-H1 COST PROPOSAL FROM CHAPTER 10 – LOCAL ASSISTANCE 
PROCEDURE MANUAL] 
 
 

  
  



Local Assistance Procedures Manual EXHIBIT 10-H1
Cost Proposal

Consultant: Subconsultant
Project No. Contract No. TBD Date: 3/27/2019

Direct Labor

Hours Actual Hourly Rate Total
186.0 $53.85 $10,016.10

8.0 $117.79 $942.32
36.0 $68.27 $2,457.72
36.0 $54.33 $1,955.88
90.0 $47.12 $4,240.80
378.0 $42.79 $16,174.62
340.0 $36.54 $12,423.60
165.0 $44.83 $7,396.95

1,239.0 $55,607.99

LABOR COSTS

a) Subtotal Direct Labor Costs $55,607.99
b) Anticipated Salary Increases $1,758.46

c) TOTAL DIRECT LABOR COSTS [(a)+(b)] $57,366.45

INDIRECT COSTS
d) Fringe Benefits (Rate): 74.40% e) Total Fringe Benefits [(c)  × (d)]    $42,680.64
f) Overhead (Rate): 52.49% g) Overhead [(c)  × (f)]          $30,111.65
h) 47.95% i) Gen & Admin [(c)  × (h)]         $27,507.21

j) $100,299.51

FIXED FEE k) 10% $15,766.60

l) CONSULTANT'S OTHER DIRECT COSTS (ODC) - ITEMIZE (Add additional pages if necessary)
Unit Unit Cost Total

lump sum $500.00

lump sum at rate $3,000.00

lump sum $1,183.00

$4,683.00
m)  SUBCONSULTANT'S COSTS (add additional pages if necessary)

$20,992.53

$20,992.53

$25,675.53

$199,108.09

NOTES:

January 2018

Colma ECR Bike and Pedestrian Plan

Classification/Title Name

EXHIBIT 10-H  COST PROPOSAL Page 1 of 3

ACTUAL COST-PLUS-FIXED FEE OR LUMP SUM (FIRM FIXED PRICE) CONTRACTS

(DESIGN, ENGINEERING, AND ENVIRONMENTAL STUDIES)

Note: Mark-ups are Not Allowed

Fehr & Peers Prime Consultant 2nd Tier Subconsultant

Senior Engineer Kendra Rowley

Associate Dana Weissman (Project Manager)

Associate Geoff Rubendall

Planner Thao Nguyen
Engineer Ingrid Ballús Armet

Principal Bob Grandy

Associate

AutoCAD Operator, Designer

Mileage and Travel Costs 1

Total

General and Administrative (Rate):

TOTAL INDIRECT COSTS   [(e) +(g) + (i)]                       

TOTAL FIXED PROFIT                               [(c) + (j)] × Fixed 
Fee                           

Description Quantity

l) TOTAL OTHER DIRECT COSTS

Subconsultant 1: EnviroIssues

Equipment Rental and Supplies
Permit Fees
Plan Sheets

1

TOTAL COST [(c) + (j) + (k) + (n)] 

Carrie Modi

•   Key Personnel must be marked with an asterisk (*) and employees that are subject to prevailing wage requirements must be marked with two asterisks (**). All costs must 
comply with the Federal Cost Principles. Subconsultants will provide their own cost proposals.

• The cost proposal format shall not be amended. Indirect cost rates shall be updated on an annual basis in accordance with the consultant's annual accounting period and established 
by a cognized agency or accepted by Caltrans.

• Anticipated salary increases calculation (page 2) must accompany.

Subconsultant 3:
Tier Subconsultant 4:

m) TOTAL 2nd TIER SUBCONSULTANT'S COSTS

n) TOTAL OTHER DIRECT COSTS INCLUDING 2nd TIER SUBCONSULTANTS [(l) + (m)] 

Subconsultant 2:

Data Collection (traffic counts, 
parking studies) 1
Reproduction

X



Local Assistance Procedures Manual EXHIBIT 10-H1
Cost Proposal

1.  Calculate Average Hourly Rate for 1st year of the contract (Direct Labor Subtotal divided by total hours)#REF!

Avg Hourly 5 Year Contract 
Rate Duration

$55,607.99 = $44.88 Year 1 Avg Hourly Rate

Avg Hourly Rate 

Year 1 $44.88 + = $46.45 Year 2 Avg Hourly Rate

Year 2 $46.45 + = $48.08 Year 3 Avg Hourly Rate

Year 3 $48.08 + = $49.76 Year 4 Avg Hourly Rate

Year 4 $49.76 + = $51.50 Year 5 Avg Hourly Rate

Total Hours 
per Year

Year 1 20.00% * = 247.8 Estimated Hours Year 1

Year 2 70.00% * = 867.3 Estimated Hours Year 2

Year 3 10.00% * = 123.9 Estimated Hours Year 3

Year 4 * = Estimated Hours Year 4

Year 5 * = Estimated Hours Year 5

Total 100%  = 1239.0

Year 1 $44.88 * = $11,121.60 Estimated Hours Year 1

Year 2 $46.45 * = $40,287.99 Estimated Hours Year 2

Year 3 $48.08 * = $5,956.87 Estimated Hours Year 3

Year 4 $49.76 * = Estimated Hours Year 4

Year 5 $51.50 * = Estimated Hours Year 5

 = $57,366.45 
 = $55,607.99 
 = $1,758.46 Transfer to Page 1

NOTES:
·         This is not the only way to estimate salary increases. Other methods will be accepted if they clearly indicate the % increase, 

the # of years of the contract, and a breakdown of the labor to be performed each year.  
·         An estimation that is based on direct labor multiplied by salary increase % multiplied by the # of years is not acceptable.  

(i.e. $250,000 x 2%  x  5 yrs = $25,000 is not an acceptable methodology)
·         This assumes that one year will be worked at the rate on the cost proposal before salary increases are granted.

January 2018

EXHIBIT 10-H  COST PROPOSAL   Page 2 of 3
ACTUAL COST-PLUS-FIXED FEE OR LUMP SUM (FIRM FIXED PRICE) CONTRACTS

(CALCULATIONS FOR ANTICIPATED SALARY INCREASES)

Direct Labor Subtotal Total Hours
per Cost Proposal  per Cost Proposal

1,239

2.  Calculate hourly rate for all years (Increase the Average Hourly Rate for a year by proposed escalation %

Proposed Escalation 

3.50%

3.50%

3.50%

3.50%

Total

3.  Calculate estimated hours per year (Multiply estimate % each year by total hours)

Estimated % Total Hours 
Completed Each Year per Cost Proposal

1239.0

1239.0

1239.0

1239.0

1239.0

4.  Calculate Total Costs including Escalation (Multiply Average Hourly Rate by the number of hours)

Avg Hourly Rate Estimated hours
 Cost per Year

(calculated above) (calculated above)

 Direct Labor Subtotal before Escalation
Estimated total of Direct Labor Salary Increase 

247.8

867.3

123.9

 Total Direct Labor Cost with Escalation



dweissman
Text Box
3/27/2019



Local Assistance Procedures Manual EXHIBIT 10-H1
Cost Proposal

Consultant: Subconsultant
Project No. Contract No. TBD Date: 3/27/2019

Direct Labor

Hours Actual Hourly Rate Total
65.0 $53.00 $3,445.00
45.0 $34.00 $1,530.00
48.0 $39.00 $1,872.00
5.0 $45.02 $225.10

163.0 $7,072.10

LABOR COSTS

a) Subtotal Direct Labor Costs $7,072.10
b) Anticipated Salary Increases $84.87

c) TOTAL DIRECT LABOR COSTS [(a)+(b)] $7,156.96

INDIRECT COSTS
d) Fringe Benefits (Rate): 77.81% e) Total Fringe Benefits [(c)  × (d)]    $5,568.83
f) Overhead (Rate): g) Overhead [(c)  × (f)]          
h) 82.49% i) Gen & Admin [(c)  × (h)]         $5,903.78

j) $11,472.61

FIXED FEE k) 10% $1,862.96

l) CONSULTANT'S OTHER DIRECT COSTS (ODC) - ITEMIZE (Add additional pages if necessary)
Unit Unit Cost Total

$250.00 $250.00
$250.00

$500.00
m)  SUBCONSULTANT'S COSTS (add additional pages if necessary)

$500.00

$20,992.53

NOTES:

January 2018

Classification/Title Name

EXHIBIT 10-H  COST PROPOSAL Page 1 of 3

ACTUAL COST-PLUS-FIXED FEE OR LUMP SUM (FIRM FIXED PRICE) CONTRACTS

(DESIGN, ENGINEERING, AND ENVIRONMENTAL STUDIES)

Note: Mark-ups are Not Allowed

Fehr & Peers Prime Consultant 2nd Tier Subconsultant

Graphic Designer

Senior Associate Katie DeLeuw

Web Developer
Associate Alison Brown

Social Pinpoint mapping tool 1

Total

General and Administrative (Rate):

TOTAL INDIRECT COSTS   [(e) +(g) + (i)]                       

TOTAL FIXED PROFIT                               [(c) + (j)] × Fixed 
Fee                           

Description Quantity

Printing

Subconsultant 2:

l) TOTAL OTHER DIRECT COSTS

Subconsultant 1:

TOTAL COST [(c) + (j) + (k) + (n)] 

•   Key Personnel must be marked with an asterisk (*) and employees that are subject to prevailing wage requirements must be marked with two asterisks (**). All costs must 
comply with the Federal Cost Principles. Subconsultants will provide their own cost proposals.

• The cost proposal format shall not be amended. Indirect cost rates shall be updated on an annual basis in accordance with the consultant's annual accounting period and established 
by a cognized agency or accepted by Caltrans.

• Anticipated salary increases calculation (page 2) must accompany.

Subconsultant 3:
Tier Subconsultant 4:

m) TOTAL 2nd TIER SUBCONSULTANT'S COSTS

n) TOTAL OTHER DIRECT COSTS INCLUDING 2nd TIER SUBCONSULTANTS [(l) + (m)] 

X



Local Assistance Procedures Manual EXHIBIT 10-H1
Cost Proposal

1.  Calculate Average Hourly Rate for 1st year of the contract (Direct Labor Subtotal divided by total hours)#REF!

Avg Hourly 5 Year Contract 
Rate Duration

$7,072.10 = $43.39 Year 1 Avg Hourly Rate

Avg Hourly Rate 

Year 1 $43.39 + = $44.69 Year 2 Avg Hourly Rate

Year 2 $44.69 + = $46.03 Year 3 Avg Hourly Rate

Year 3 $46.03 + = $47.41 Year 4 Avg Hourly Rate

Year 4 $47.41 + = $48.83 Year 5 Avg Hourly Rate

Total Hours 
per Year

Year 1 60.00% * = 97.8 Estimated Hours Year 1

Year 2 40.00% * = 65.2 Estimated Hours Year 2

Year 3 * = Estimated Hours Year 3

Year 4 * = Estimated Hours Year 4

Year 5 * = Estimated Hours Year 5

Total 100%  = 163.0

Year 1 $43.39 * = $4,243.26 Estimated Hours Year 1

Year 2 $44.69 * = $2,913.70 Estimated Hours Year 2

Year 3 $46.03 * = Estimated Hours Year 3

Year 4 $47.41 * = Estimated Hours Year 4

Year 5 $48.83 * = Estimated Hours Year 5

 = $7,156.96 
 = $7,072.10 
 = $84.87 Transfer to Page 1

NOTES:
·         This is not the only way to estimate salary increases. Other methods will be accepted if they clearly indicate the % increase, 

the # of years of the contract, and a breakdown of the labor to be performed each year.  
·         An estimation that is based on direct labor multiplied by salary increase % multiplied by the # of years is not acceptable.  

(i.e. $250,000 x 2%  x  5 yrs = $25,000 is not an acceptable methodology)
·         This assumes that one year will be worked at the rate on the cost proposal before salary increases are granted.

January 2018

EXHIBIT 10-H  COST PROPOSAL   Page 2 of 3
ACTUAL COST-PLUS-FIXED FEE OR LUMP SUM (FIRM FIXED PRICE) CONTRACTS

(CALCULATIONS FOR ANTICIPATED SALARY INCREASES)

Direct Labor Subtotal Total Hours
per Cost Proposal  per Cost Proposal

163

2.  Calculate hourly rate for all years (Increase the Average Hourly Rate for a year by proposed escalation %

Proposed Escalation 

3.00%

3.00%

3.00%

3.00%

Total

3.  Calculate estimated hours per year (Multiply estimate % each year by total hours)

Estimated % Total Hours 
Completed Each Year per Cost Proposal

163.0

163.0

163.0

163.0

163.0

4.  Calculate Total Costs including Escalation (Multiply Average Hourly Rate by the number of hours)

Avg Hourly Rate Estimated hours
 Cost per Year

(calculated above) (calculated above)

 Direct Labor Subtotal before Escalation
Estimated total of Direct Labor Salary Increase 

97.8

65.2

 Total Direct Labor Cost with Escalation



dweissman
Text Box
3/27/2019



Fee Proposal for El Camino Real Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan
March 27, 2019 Fehr & Peers (Prime) EnviroIssues (Subconsultant)

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
D

an
a 

W
ei

ss
m

an

Pr
in

ci
pa

l
Bo

b 
G

ra
nd

y

A
ss

oc
ia

te
G

eo
ff

 R
ub

en
da

ll

Se
ni

or
 E

ng
in

ee
r

Ke
nd

ra
 R

ow
le

y

A
ss

oc
ia

te
 

Ca
rr

ie
 M

od
i

En
gi

ne
er

In
gr

id
 B

al
lú

s 
A

rm
et

Pl
an

ne
r

Th
ao

 N
gu

ye
n

A
ut

oC
A

D
 O

pe
ra

to
r, 

D
es

ig
ne

r

Labor 
Hours

Direct 
Costs

Fehr & Peers 
Total Se

ni
or

 A
ss

oc
ia

te
Ka

tie
 D

eL
eu

w

A
ss

oc
ia

te
A

lis
on

 B
ro

w
n

W
eb

 D
ev

el
op

er

G
ra

ph
ic

 D
es

ig
ne

r

Labor 
Hours

Direct 
Costs

EnviroIssues 
Total Total Costs

10-H Billing Rate $167.95 $367.37 $212.92 $146.96 $169.45 $133.46 $113.96 $139.82 $153.58 $98.52 $113.01 $130.45

Tasks
Task 1 -  Project Initiation

1.1 Staff Coordination/Progress Meetings 72 8 84 20 184 $26,758 13 13 $1,997 $28,754

1.2 Project Kick-off Meeting 6 6 12 $1,808 0 $0 $1,808

1.3 Identify Existing Conditions 10 1 12 10 40 24 30 127 $3,000 $21,338 0 $0 $21,338

Task 2 - Community Outreach

2.1 Community Workshop #1 12 1 8 10 34 10 75 $300 $11,489 20 20 28 5 73 $400 $9,259 $20,747

2.2 Community Workshop #2 12 1 8 10 36 10 77 $383 $11,839 22 15 10 0 47 $100 $6,087 $17,925

2.3 Community Workshop #3 12 1 4 8 10 42 20 10 107 $500 $15,887 10 10 10 0 30 $3,651 $19,538

Task 3 - Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan

3.1 Develop Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Design Concept 4 1 2 2 6 20 30 30 95 $13,058 0 $0 $13,058

3.2 Develop Conceptual Design Alternatives 8 10 16 40 100 30 204 $26,753 0 $0 $26,753

3.3 Draft Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan 12 3 2 16 30 84 15 162 $21,568 0 $0 $21,568

3.4 Joint Coordination with Caltrans 14 4 16 34 $5,075 0 $0 $5,075

3.5 Identify Potential Funding Sources 4 4 4 12 46 70 $8,955 0 $0 $8,955

3.6 Final Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan 12 2 6 10 16 30 76 $500 $11,176 0 $0 $11,176

3.7 City Council Adoption 8 8 16 $2,411 0 $0 $2,411

Total for all Tasks 186 8 36 90 36 378 340 165 1,239 $4,683 $178,116 65 45 48 5 163 $500 $20,993 $199,108

Notes: 
This fee proposal is valid for a period of 90 days from the proposal submittal date.
Actual billing rate at the time of service may vary depending on the final staffing plan at the time the project starts; the overall fee will not be exceeded.
Direct costs include mileage/travel, materials, and reproduction charges.



  

 

25977.00100\31901980. 1 31 

 

 

EXHIBIT “C” 

Activity Schedule 
 

[INSERT ACTIVITY SCHEDULE] 
 

 
  



Project Timeline
El Camino Real Pedestrian Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan
March 22, 2019
Task # Task Title Apr‐19 May‐19 Jun‐19 Jul‐19 Aug‐19 Sep‐19 Oct‐19 Nov‐19 Dec‐19 Jan‐20 Feb‐20 Mar‐20 Apr‐20 May‐20 Jun‐20 Jul‐20 Aug‐20 Sep‐20 Oct‐20 Nov‐20 Dec‐20 Jan‐21 Feb‐21

1 Project Initiation

1.1 Staff Coordination/Progress Meetings

1.2 Project Kick‐off Meeting

1.3 Identify Existing Conditions

2 Public Outreach

2.1 Community Workshop #1

2.2 Community Workshop #2

2.3 Community Workshop #3

3 Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan

3.1 Develop Bike & Ped Improvement Design Concept

3.2 Develop Conceptual Design Alternatives

3.3 Draft Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan

3.4 Joint Coordination with Caltrans

3.5 Identify Potential Funding Sources

3.6 Final Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan

3.7 City Council Adoption

F&P working period Town review period In‐person meeting with Town (6) TAC meeting (3) Caltrans meeting (2) Council meeting (4)



  

 

25977.00100\31901980. 1 32 

 

 

EXHIBIT “D” 
 

SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES GRANTS (STATE – SB1) 
 

RESTRICTED GRANT AGREEMENT 
 
 

[ATTACHED] 
 

  











































  

 

25977.00100\31901980. 1 33 

 

 

EXHIBIT “E” 
 

Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) Participation  
 

[RESERVED]  
  



25977.00100\31901980. 133 

EXHIBIT “F” 
Disclosure of Lobbying Activities  

COMPLETE THIS FORM TO DISCLOSE LOBBYING ACTIVITIES PURSUANT TO 31 U.S.C. 1352 
   

1. Type of Federal Action: 2. Status of Federal Action: 3. Report Type:

a. contract a. bid/offer/application a. initial
b. grant b. initial award b. material change
c. cooperative agreement c. post-award
d. loan For Material Change Only: 
e. loan guarantee year _____   quarter _________ 
f. loan insurance date of last report __________ 

  

4. Name and Address of Reporting Entity 5. If Reporting Entity in No. 4 is Subawardee,
Enter Name and Address of Prime:

  Prime   Subawardee 
  Tier ______ , if known 

Congressional District, if known Congressional District, if known 
 

  

6. Federal Department/Agency: 7. Federal Program Name/Description:

CFDA Number, if applicable ____________________
  

8. Federal Action Number, if known: 9. Award Amount, if known:

   

10. Name and Address of Lobby Entity 11. Individuals Performing Services  (including
  (If individual, last name, first name, MI) address if different from No. 10a)

(last name, first name, MI)

(attach Continuation Sheet(s) if necessary) 
  

12. Amount of Payment (check all that apply) 14. Type of Payment (check all that apply)

$ ______________     actual  planned  a. retainer
b. one-time fee

13. Form of Payment (check all that apply): c. commission
a. cash  d. contingent fee
b. in-kind; specify: nature _______________  e  deferred

  Value _____________ f. other, specify _________________________
  

15. Brief Description of Services Performed or to be performed and Date(s) of Service, including
officer(s), employee(s), or member(s) contacted, for Payment Indicated in Item 11:

(attach Continuation Sheet(s) if necessary) 

16. Continuation Sheet(s) attached:  Yes  No  X  
 

17. Information requested through this form is authorized by Title
31 U.S.C. Section 1352.  This disclosure of lobbying reliance
was placed by the tier above when his transaction was made or
entered into.  This disclosure is required pursuant to 31 U.S.C.
1352.  This information will be reported to Congress
semiannually and will be available for public inspection.  Any
person who fails to file the required disclosure shall be subject
to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than
$100,000 for each such failure.

Signature: _________________________________________ 

Print Name: _______________________________________ 

Title: ____________________________________________ 

Telephone No.: ____________________ Date: __________ 

Authorized for Local Reproduction 

Federal Use Only: Standard Form - LLL 

Standard Form LLL Rev. 04-28-06 

Bob Grandy

Principal 

415-348-0300 3/19/19





 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Staff Report –Salaries – Recreation Leader & Facility Attendant Page 1 of 2 

4/10/2019  

STAFF REPORT

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Cynthia Morquecho, Recreation Manager 

VIA: Brian Dossey, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: April 10, 2019 

SUBJECT: Salary Schedule Adjustment for Recreation Leader and Facility Attendant 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the following resolution: 

RESOLUTION INCREASING SALARIES FOR RECREATION LEADER POSITIONS, AND 
INCREASING SALARIES FOR FACILITY ATTENDANT POSITIONS. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Recent salary surveys show that Recreation Leader and Facility Attendants’ hourly wages were 
below the San Mateo County average for similar positions.  Staff has seen a significant drop off 
in the number of applicants for Recreation Leader and Facility Attendant positions and has lost 
staff to higher paying jobs. 

To ensure the Department attracts and retains top talent, functions at a high level and 
continues to offer programs and services for all populations, Staff recommends that the City 
Council adopt a resolution increasing salaries for Recreation Leader and Facility Attendant 
positions.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

The proposed wages are estimated to increase the Recreation Services Department part-time 
salaries to $196,000 or approximately $6,000 over budget; however, the overage can be 
absorbed by the Department’s full-time staff budget due to a two-month vacancy in the 
Recreation Manager position in fiscal year 2018-19.   

In fiscal year 2019-20 staff anticipates an increase of $20,000 in part-time salaries due to the 
proposed increase in hourly wages.   

BACKGROUND 

On April 4, 2016, California Governor Jerry Brown signed legislation (SB 3, Leno) which will 
raise California’s minimum wage in increments of $1 each year until it reaches $15 per hour by 

Item #7



Staff Report –Salaries – Recreation Leader & Facility Attendant Page 2 of 2 

4/10/2019  

2022.  In September of 2018, Council adopted a resolution complying with State Law and 
increased the Part Time Recreation Staff wages to meet minimum wage standards.   

Even though the Town is meeting the States minimum wage standard, the Recreation 
Department has struggled to recruit and retain top talent.  Recently, Staff reviewed the salary 
schedules of other cities in San Mateo County as well as local businesses, and discovered the 
Town was once again below the hourly wage average for similar positions.  Therefore, staff is 
recommending an adjustment to the part-time Recreation department salary schedule.  

ANALYSIS 

The proposed pay ranges for the Recreation Leader & Facility Attendant positions are in 
alignment with the salary ranges for the same positions within San Mateo County as well as 
local businesses.  Please see below for the proposed salary schedule. 

Step I Step II Step III Step IV 

Recreation Leader 13.00 13.65 14.33 15.06 

Senior Recreation Leader 16.46 17.28 18.14 19.05 

Facility Attendant 16.46 17.28 18.14 19.05 

Staff recommends the proposed salary increase in an effort to stay ahead of the County 
averages, and to have an advantage in recruiting and retaining key part-time staff.   

Council Adopted Values 
Adoption of the attached resolution is the fair course of action because the City Council will be 
bringing the salaries for these two positions in alignment with similar positions in San Mateo 
County.  Adoption of the resolution is also the responsible course of action because the 
Council has considered the long term fiscal implications of this decision and the importance of 
attracting and retaining staff at all levels.  

Alternatives 
The Council could choose to not adopt the proposed resolution, or to request modifications to 
the proposed salary ranges. Doing so is not recommended, however, because the salary ranges 
are based on comparable entities within San Mateo County.  

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends adoption of the attached resolution. 

ATTACHMENTS 
A. Resolution 



Res. 2019-XX, Salary Increases Recreation Leader and Facility Attendant Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-XX 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION INCREASING SALARIES FOR RECREATION LEADER POSITIONS, AND 
INCREASING SALARIES FOR FACILITY ATTENDANT POSITIONS 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve as follows: 

1. Background.

(a) In September 2018, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2018-41 to provide salary
increases for part-time recreation staff in order to meet state minimum wage standards, and to 
continually adjust salaries on an annual basis to ensure continued compliance with the state 
minimum wage law.   

(b) Despite the adjustment, the Town continues to struggle to attract and retain top talent 
for part-time recreation staff positions. 

(c) Staff reviewed the salary schedules of similar positions in other cities and local businesses 
in the County of San Mateo, and found that the Town’s pay ranges are below the hourly wage 
average for similar positions in the County.   

(d) The City Manager is now recommending that the City Council approve salary increases for 
recreation leader position and facility attendant positions as provided for in this Resolution. 

2. Salary Scale for Part-Time Recreation Staff (including Recreation Leader,
Senior Recreation Leader, and Facility Attendant). 

(a) The Town shall pay the respective hourly salaries shown below, with the City Manager 
determining the appropriate step in accordance with Subchapter 3.02 of the Colma Administrative 
Code relating to Employment: 

Step I Step II Step III Step IV 

Recreation Leader 13.00 13.65 14.33 15.06 

Senior Recreation Leader 16.46 17.28 18.14 19.05 

Facility Attendant 16.46 17.28 18.14 19.05 

3. Salary Schedule Adopted.

(a) The City Council hereby directs staff to amend the pay or salary schedule to memorialize
the changes proposed by this Resolution, with the applicable pay or salary for each position listed, 
in compliance with Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations Section 570.5.  

4. No Contract. Nothing herein shall be construed as a contract with any employee, and
the City Council shall have the discretion to modify the respective salaries in accordance with any 
applicable state or local provisions. 

Attachment A



Res. 2019-XX, Salary Increases Recreation Leader and Facility Attendant Page 2 of 2 

5. Effective Date.  This resolution shall become effective upon adoption. 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2019-XX was duly adopted at a regular meeting of said 
City Council held on April 10, 2019 by the following vote: 

 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 

  Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor      

John Irish Goodwin       

Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez       

Diana Colvin      

Helen Fisicaro      

Voting Tally      

 
 
Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 
 



Staff Report re: MOU Approvals  Page 1 of 4 

STAFF REPORT

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Brian Dossey, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: April 10, 2019 

SUBJECT: Approval of MOUs and Cost of Living Increases 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the following Resolutions: 

RESOLUTION APPROVING MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING  
BETWEEN THE TOWN OF COLMA AND THE COLMA PEACE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION 
FOR THE PERIOD OF APRIL 7, 2019 TO JUNE 30, 2022;  

RESOLUTION APPROVING MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING  
BETWEEN THE TOWN OF COLMA AND THE COLMA POLICE 
COMMUNICATION/RECORDS ASSOCIATION FOR THE PERIOD OF April 7, 2019 TO JUNE 
30, 2022; and, 

RESOLUTION APPROVING COST OF LIVING SALARY INCREASES FOR CERTAIN 
UNREPRESENTED EMPLOYEES AND MODIFYING THE TOWN’S SALARY SCHEDULE 

RESOLUTION AMENDING SUBCHAPTER 3.02 AND 3.06 OF THE COLMA 
ADMINISTRATIVE CODE, RELATING TO RETENTION PAY AND SICK LEAVE 
CONVERSION 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The attached resolutions: (1) approve the memorandum of understanding (MOU) between the 
Town and the Colma Peace Officers Association; (2) approve the MOU between the Town and 
Colma Police Communications/Record Association;  (3) approve cost of living increases for 
certain unrepresented employees; and (4) amend the Colma Administrative Code to establish 
retention pay for unrepresented employees. As discussed by the City Council throughout the 
course of negotiations, the general parameters of the MOUs are as follows:  

1. Two percent pay increases every six months for all affected employees for the duration
of the MOUs (April 7, 2019 through June 30, 2022). Two percent pay increase for July 1,
2021 and January 1, 2022 are contigent on FY2021-22 revenue projections exceeding
operational expenditures for the FY2021-22 Budget.

Item #8



 

Staff Report re: MOU Approvals   Page 2 of 4 

2. 2.5% rentention pay salary increase for 10 years of service and 2.5% retention pay 
salary increase for 20 years of service.  

3. A modification to the Town’s existing sick leave payout option upon retirement.  New 
employees hired after July 1, 2019 will be able to convert their accrued unsed sick leave 
to additional CALPers service credit; however, the accrued unused sick leave will have 
no cash value.    

FISCAL IMPACT 

The approval of the attached resolutions will increase Town salaries and benefits by a cost of 
approximately $894,063 over the life of the MOUs and Unrepresented employees. This amount 
has been calculated into the Town’s long term financial forecast and can be accommodated. 
The Town will see significant long term savings from the modifications to the Town-wide 
accrued unused sick leave policy changes.    
 
BACKGROUND 

The Town’s MOUs with the Peace Officers Association and the Dispatch/Records Association is 
scheduled to expire on June 30, 2019. Upon direction from the City Council, the City Manager 
and the Town’s labor negotiator were directed to begin labor negotiations prior to the expiration 
on the existing contract in an effort to complete negotiations prior to the June 30, 2019 
contract expiration.  Negotiations on the successor agreement with each association began in 
February and due to both sides working diligently together, an agreement has been reached.  
The results of the negotiations, which are governed by the Meyers Milias Brown Act (a State law 
that requires specific actions related to public employee negotiations), are now presented to 
Council for approval in the form of the two MOUs, Administrative Code changes, and salary 
schedule modifications.  
 
Upon conclusion of the negotitaions with the POA and Dispatchers Group, the City Council 
directed the City Manager to implement the same salary & benefit changes or “me too” clause 
for the unrepresented employees. 
 
ANALYSIS 

Living and working in the Bay Area has become increasingly challenging over the past several 
years, and recruiting and retaining employees has been difficult with the unemployment rate for 
the San Francisco Bay Area at 2.9%.1  Because of this, the City Council directed staff to begin 
labor negotiations prior to the expiration of the existing contract.  The City Council wanted to 
address concerns regarding exisiting employees ability to make a living wage for their families 
and retention of employees for their commitment to the Town, rewarding them for their years 
of service.  

A key issue Town Staff and the City Council wanted to address during negotiations was how to 
safeguard the Town’s long term financial picture by controlling cash payout benefits upon 
retirement, specifically the paying out of accrued unused sick leave. If the MOUs and changes 
to the Administrtive Code are approved, all new hires (as of July 1, 2019) are no longer eligible 

                                           
1 Bureau of Labor Statistics January 2019 



 

Staff Report re: MOU Approvals   Page 3 of 4 

for sick leave payout upon retirement. Employees hired after July 1, 2019 will still be able to 
apply their accrued unused sick leave towards CALPers service credit.     

Through the course of negotiations, the City Council came to the following agreements with the 
employee associations:    

Peace Officer Association:  

1. Each employee in the POA will receive two percent pay increase every six months for 
the life of the agreement. This amounts to a 12 percent pay increase over three years.2  

2. Each employee in the POA will receive 2.5% rentention pay salary increase for 10 years 
of service and 2.5% retention pay salary increase for 20 years of service.  

3. All new employees in the POA hired after July 1, 2019 will no longer be eligible to 
receive a cash payout from their accrued unused sick leave upon retirement; however, 
the sick leave can be applied to CALPers service credit, not to exceed 1,092 hours.   

Dispatch/Records Association:  

1. Each employee in the Association will receive two percent pay increases every six 
months for the life of the agreement. This amounts to a 12 percent pay increase over 
three years. 3 

2. Each employee in the Association will receive 2.5% rentention pay salary increase for 10 
years of service and 2.5% retention pay salary increase for 20 years of service.  

3. All new employees in the Association hired after July 1, 2019 will no longer be eligible to 
receive a cash payout from their accrued unused sick leave upon retirement; however, 
the sick leave can be applied to CALPers service credit, not to exceed 1,040 hours. 

Unrepresented Employees:  

The unrepresented employees are not members of any employee association. The Town has 
had an informal policy for some time that the unrepresented employees should be treated 
similarly to the POA and Dispatch Association. As a result, the City Council authorized the City 
Manager to provide the same increases/changes to the unrepresented employees, which was 
conveyed during a meeting with the unrepresented employees in March as follows:  

1. Each employee (with the exception of the City Manager and Police Chief) will receive 
two percent pay increase every six months through June 2022. This amounts to a 12 
percent pay increase over three years. 4 

2. Each Full Time employee will receive 2.5% rentention pay salary increase for 10 years of 
service and 2.5% retention pay salary increase for 20 years of service.  Each Part Time 
employee will receive a 2.5% retention salary increase based on the hours worked 
equaling 10 years of service and each Part Time employee will receive an additional  
2.5% retention salary increase based on the hours worked equaling 20 years of service. 

                                           
2 Year 3 salary increase are contigent upon revenues exceeding operational expenditures for the FY2021-

22 Budget. 
3 Year 3 salary increase are contigent upon revenues exceeding operational expenditures for the FY2021-

22 Budget. 
4 Year 3 salary increase are contigent upon revenues exceeding operational expenditures for the FY2021-

22 Budget. 



 

Staff Report re: MOU Approvals   Page 4 of 4 

3. All new employees hired after July 1, 2019 will no longer be eligible to receive a cash 
payout from their accrued unused sick leave upon retirement; however, the sick leave 
can be applied to CALPers service credit, not to exceed 1,040 hours 

If the proposed resolutions are approved, the salary increase will take affect retroactively on 
April 7, 2019.  

COUNCIL ADOPTED VALUES 

The Staff recommendation is consistent with the Council adopted values of: 

• Responsibility: Making decisions after prudent consideration of their financial impact, 
taking into account the long-term financial needs of the agency, especially its financial 
stability. 

• Fairness: Treat all persons, claims and transactions in a fair and equitable manner. 

ALTERNATIVES 

The City Council could choose to not adopt the resolutions approving the MOUs and 
unrepresented salary increases, or could chose to direct Staff to renegotiate any items within 
the MOUs. Doing so is not recommended.  

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the attached resolutions. 

ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. Resolution Approving Memorandum of Understanding Between the Town of Colma and 
the Colma Police Officers Association for the Period of April 7, 2019 to June 30, 2022 

B. Memorandum of Understanding Between the Town of Colma and the Colma Police 
Officers Association for the Period of April 7, 2019 to June 30, 2022 

C. Resolution Approving Memorandum of Understanding Between the Town of Colma and 
the Colma Police Communications/Records Association for the period of April 7, 2019 to 
June 30, 2022  

D. Memorandum of Understanding Between the Town of Colma and the Colma Police 
Communications/Records Association for the period of April 7, 2019 to June 30, 2022 

E. Resolution Approving Cost of Living Salary Increases for Certain Unrepresented 

Employees and Modifying the Town’s Salary Schedule 

F. Resolution Amending Colma Administrative Code Subchapter 3.02 and 3.06 Relating to 
Retention Pay and Sick Leave Conversion. 

 



Res 2019-__, Approving POA MOU 2019-2022 Page 1 of 1 
25977.00100\31948883.1 

RESOLUTION 2019-__ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION APPROVING MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING  
BETWEEN THE TOWN OF COLMA AND THE COLMA PEACE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION 

FOR THE PERIOD OF APRIL 7, 2019 TO JUNE 30, 2022 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve as follows: 

1. Findings. The City Council finds that the Town’s Negotiating Team met and conferred
with the POA’s Negotiating Team several times over the past year, that the POA has ratified the 
proposed MOU, and that it is in the best interest of the Town of Colma to enter into the 
proposed agreement to secure the continued public safety services. 

2. Order.

(a) The City Council hereby approves the Memorandum of Understanding between the 
Town of Colma and the Colma Peace Officers Association for the time period of April 7, 2019 to 
June 30, 2022, which is attached to the Staff Report for the April 10, 2019 City Council meeting. 

(b) The Mayor shall be, and hereby is, authorized to execute the Memorandum of 
Understanding, subject to any changes in form or technical language approved by the City 
Manager and City Attorney. 

Certification of Adoption 
I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2019-__ was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
said City Council held on April 10, 2019 by the following vote: 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 

Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 

Joanne del Rosario, Mayor 

John Irish Goodwin 

Diana Colvin 

Helen Fisicaro 

Rae Gonzalez 

Voting Tally 

Dated ______________________ ___________________________________ 
Joanne del Rosario, Mayor 

Attest:   ____________________________ 
  Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 

Attachment A



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

BETWEEN 

THE TOWN OF COLMA 

AND 

THE COLMA PEACE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION 

April 7, 2019 to June 30, 2022 

Attachment B



  

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

ARTICLE   1 PURPOSE AND INTENT ...........................................................1 

ARTICLE   2 REPRESENTATION……………………………………………………. ...........1 

ARTICLE   3 RIGHTS RESERVED .................................................................1 

ARTICLE   4 MANAGEMENT OBLIGATIONS ..................................................2 

ARTICLE   5 SEVERABILITY ........................................................................2 

ARTICLE   6 WAIVER …………………. ............................................................2 

ARTICLE   7 MAINTENANCE OF BENEFITS ..................................................2 

ARTICLE   8 DURATION AND RENEWAL ......................................................3 

ARTICLE   9 WORK PERIOD AND HOURS ....................................................3 

ARTICLE  10 STAFFING LEVELS ...................................................................3 

ARTICLE  11 SHIFT SELECTION ..................................................................4 

ARTICLE  12 SHIFT EXCHANGE ...................................................................4 

ARTICLE  13 SALARIES ...............................................................................4 

ARTICLE  14 OVERTIME AND COMPENSATORY PAY .....................................6 

ARTICLE  15 HOLIDAY PAY ………………………………………………………... ........... 8 

ARTICLE  16 LEAVES ………………………………………………………………... .............8 

ARTICLE  17 REIMBURSEMENTS .................................................................9 

ARTICLE  18 RETIREMENT, HEALTH AND WELFARE BENEFITS .....................10 

ARTICLE  19 PAYROLL ERRORS ...................................................................12 

ARTICLE  20 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE ........................................................13 

ARTICLE  21 SAFETY VESTS …………………………………………………………. ..........13 

ARTICLE  22 DEFINITIONS ………………………………………………………... ............13



 
 

Peace Officers Association MOU 2019-2022  Page 1 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

[See Article 22 for definitions] 

ARTICLE 1 - PURPOSE AND INTENT 

A. It is the intent and purpose of the parties that this Memorandum of Understanding shall 
set forth rules of pay, hours of work, and other terms and conditions of employment to be 
observed by the parties in connection with the Peace Officers Unit.  The provisions of this 
Memorandum of Understanding shall apply only to the Members of the Peace Officers Unit 
(Member) and shall in no way establish terms and conditions of employment of other 
employees of the Town of Colma who are not Members of that Unit.  The classifications 
included in that Unit are all sworn officers of the Colma Police Department except Reserve 
Police Officers, Police Recruits, the Commander, and the Police Chief.  This agreement has been 
developed in the interest of promoting and improving employee relations between the Town of 
Colma (hereinafter referred to as the Town) and the Colma Peace Officers Association 
(hereinafter referred to as the Association). 

B. This Memorandum is entered into pursuant to the Meyers-Milias-Brown Act (GOVERNMENT 

CODE sections 3500, et seq.) and Subchapter 3.09 of the Administrative Code of the Town. 

ARTICLE 2 - REPRESENTATION 

A. The Town hereby recognizes the Association as the Recognized Employee Organization 
to act as bargaining agent for the Peace Officers Unit. 

B. The Town shall deduct the Association dues from the Members’ pay checks and transmit 
such monies to the duly authorized and designated employee organization representative or by 
direct deposit to the Association’s bank account. 

ARTICLE 3 - RIGHTS RESERVED 

A. The Association recognizes that the Town has and will continue to retain, whether 
exercised or not, the unilateral and exclusive right to operate, administer and manage its 
municipal services and work force performing those services in all respects subject to this 
Memorandum. 

B. The City Manager and Police Chief have and will continue to retain exclusive decision-
making authority on matters not officially and expressly modified by specific provisions of this 
Memorandum and such decision-making shall not be subject in any way, directly or indirectly, 
to the grievance procedure contained herein. 

C. The exclusive rights of the Town shall include, but not be limited to, the right to 
determine the organization of Town government and the purpose and mission of its constituent 
agencies, to set standards of service to be offered to the public, and through its management 
officials to exercise control and discretion over its organization and operations, to establish and 
effect Administrative Regulations and Employment Rules and Regulations consistent with law 
and the specific provisions of this Memorandum to direct its employees, to take disciplinary 



 
 

Peace Officers Association MOU 2019-2022  Page 2 

action for just cause, to relieve its employees from duty because of lack of work or for other 
legitimate reasons, to determine whether goods or services shall be made, purchased or 
contracted for, to determine the methods, means and personnel by which the Town’s services 
are to be provided, including the right to schedule and assign work and overtime, and to 
otherwise act in the interest of efficient service to the community. 

ARTICLE 4 - MANAGEMENT OBLIGATIONS 

The Town shall, at its own expense, provide to every Member a copy of this Memorandum and 
all rules, regulations, general and special orders. 

ARTICLE 5 - SEVERABILITY 

If any article or section of this Memorandum of Understanding or if any chapter or section of 
the Town’s Personnel Policies referred to in this Memorandum should be found invalid, unlawful, 
or unenforceable by reason of any existing or subsequent enacted legislation by a court of 
competent jurisdiction, all other articles and sections of this Memorandum shall remain in full 
force and effect for the duration of this Memorandum.  In the event of invalidation of any article 
or section, the Town and Association may negotiate regarding that section or article on the 
anniversary of this Memorandum as provided by Article 8.  However, in the event the legislation 
or decision referred to above affects wages, hours or working conditions, the Town and 
Association agree to meet and confer within sixty days of the effective date of the legislation or 
decision to renegotiate said article or section. 

ARTICLE 6 - WAIVER  

The parties acknowledge that, during the negotiations which resulted in this agreement, each 
had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals with respect to any 
subject or matter not removed by law from the area of collective bargaining, and that the 
understandings and agreements arrived at by the parties after the exercise of that right and 
opportunity are set forth in this agreement.  Therefore, the Town and the Association, for the 
life of this agreement, each voluntarily and unqualifiedly waives the right and each agrees that 
the other shall not be obligated to bargain collectively with respect to any subject or matter 
referred to or covered in this agreement (except as provided in Article 5), even though such 
subject or matter may not have been within the knowledge and contemplation of either or both 
parties at the time they negotiated or signed this agreement.  However, in the event the Police 
Chief, the City Manager or the City Council imposes a change in policy regarding the Association 
which substantially affects wages, hours or other terms and conditions of employment not 
covered by this Memorandum of Understanding, the Association may request that the Town 
meet and confer regarding that change. 

ARTICLE 7 - MAINTENANCE OF BENEFITS 

A. The status of all existing benefits and conditions of employment now enjoyed by 
classifications represented by the Association shall not be deemed affected by this agreement, 
except as specifically modified by provisions of this Memorandum.   



 
 

Peace Officers Association MOU 2019-2022  Page 3 

B. Except as expressly stated in this Memorandum, where this Memorandum refers to a 
benefit in the Town’s Personnel Policies, that benefit may only be modified by the Town after 
meeting and conferring with the Association. 

ARTICLE 8 - DURATION AND RENEWAL 

Unless otherwise specifically provided herein, this Memorandum of Understanding shall run 
from _April 7, 2019 to June 30, 2022.  It shall be automatically renewed from year to year 
thereafter, with no scheduled salary increases, unless either party shall have notified the other, 
in writing, at least sixty days prior to the expiration date that it desires to modify the 
Memorandum of Understanding.  In the event that such notice is given, negotiations shall begin 
within thirty days of delivery of the notice of intent to modify the Memorandum of 
Understanding.  

ARTICLE 9 - WORK PERIOD AND HOURS 

A. The work period established for Members is a regularly recurring period of eighty-four 
(84) hours in fourteen consecutive days.  The Police Chief may, in writing, establish the 
beginning and ending day and time of a work period. 

B. Except as provided in paragraph 9.C, all Members will be on the same fourteen day work 
period and will be scheduled to work up to eighty-four (84) hours in fourteen consecutive 
workdays.  Members may be assigned to a team concept, working three days one week and 
four days the following week.   

C. The work schedule shall include paid time for meal breaks, except for Members 
attending training classes and Members attending court sessions, in which case meal breaks 
shall not be compensable time. 

D. Daylight Savings-Standard Time Transition 

(1) In the spring when transitioning to Daylight Savings Time, Members working 
during the one hour transition from Standard Time to Daylight Savings Time will be paid 
for actual hours worked.  Members working on a shift that includes the one hour 
transition may be granted an option by the Chief to work an additional hour at his or her 
base hourly rate or use compensatory time or vacation time to make up for the lost 
work hour. 

(2) In the fall when transitioning to Standard Time, Members working during the one 
hour transition from Daylight Savings Time to Standard Time will be paid for actual 
hours worked and overtime pay, if actual hours worked or counted as worked in that 
work period exceed eighty-four (84) hours in a work period. 

ARTICLE 10 - STAFFING LEVELS 

The Police Chief shall maintain a minimum of two sworn employees on each shift for patrol 
purposes. 



 
 

Peace Officers Association MOU 2019-2022  Page 4 

ARTICLE 11 - SHIFT SELECTION 

Members will sign up for shifts by seniority in 6-month increments, for a one-year time frame 
(January through December).  Shifts will rotate in January and July of every year and each 
Member must work six consecutive months on an alternative shift every two years.  The police 
Chief or his designee may assign a Member to an alternate shift at any time for the good of the 
organization.  Members who have not rotated after eighteen months will be assigned to an 
alternative shift by the Chief or his or her designee.  

ARTICLE 12 - SHIFT EXCHANGE 

A. All Members may be permitted to substitute for another of equal rank during scheduled 
work hours, as herein provided.   Trading shall be limited to one shift in any calendar week and 
any Member requesting a trade shall submit a written request to the Police Chief or designee 
seven days prior to the first day of the trade.   No trade shall be made unless the Police Chief or 
designee approves the trade in writing.   The traded shift shall be paid back within the same 
fourteen-day work period.   This shift trading is strictly voluntary on the part of Members and is 
for their benefit, not the benefit of the Town.  The Town shall exclude the hours worked as a 
trade in calculating overtime. 

B. Once the exchange has been signed by both Members and approved by the Police Chief 
or his or her designee, it will be the responsibility of the person agreeing to work the shift to 
cover that shift. 

ARTICLE 13 – SALARIES 

  
A. Effective in the first pay period beginning after the Council ratifies this MOU, the Town 
shall pay each Member an amount determined by multiplying the number of hours worked in a 
pay period by the applicable hourly base rate of pay shown for the Member in Appendix A.   
However, the increases scheduled for July 1, 2021 and January 1, 2022 are expressly 
contingent upon, and will not be implemented unless, the Town’s projected revenues exceed its 
operation expense projections for FY 2021-22 as set forth in the FY2021-22 Budget upon 
adoption on June 9, 2021. 
 
B. FICA and PERS Member Contributions 
Each Member shall pay the employee share of FICA (Social Security and Medicare) taxes and 
the employee's contributions to the Public Employees Retirement System (PERS). 

C. Educational Incentive Program 

(1) Except as provided in this section, there are no incentive pays. 

(2) This Program is adopted for the benefit of the Members in recognition of certain 
specified educational achievements.  Eligible Members shall receive the specified 
additional compensation only under one of the formulas: 

(a) A four percent increase of his or her hourly base rate shall be provided to 
Members who possess an Associates of Arts Degree in Administration of Justice, 



 
 

Peace Officers Association MOU 2019-2022  Page 5 

Police Science, or a related field, or an Intermediate POST Certificate.  Members 
with this incentive shall be classified as Police Officer 2 or Police Sergeant 2 and 
compensated according to Appendix A.  Once this salary increase is awarded it 
shall continue regardless of future promotions to higher non-management 
positions.   However, it shall not be added to the incentive paid for more 
advanced degrees provided in subsections (b) and (c) below. 

(b)   A six percent increase of his or her hourly base rate shall be provided to 
Members who possess a Baccalaureate Degree in Administration of Justice, 
Police Science, or a related field, or an Advanced POST Certificate. Members with 
this incentive shall be classified as Police Officer 3 or Police Sergeant 3 and 
compensated according to Appendix A.  Once this salary increase is awarded it 
shall continue regardless of future promotions to higher non-management 
positions.   However, it shall not be added to the incentive paid for a more 
advanced degree provided in subsection (c) below. 

 (3) The following Members are eligible for Education Incentive Pay: 

(a) A Member who is a regular, non-probationary employee of the Town and 
has had at least twelve months of sworn law enforcement experience in a 
municipal law enforcement agency; or 

(b) A lateral hire with five years of law enforcement experience when the 
Police Chief has determined in his or her discretion to grant Education Incentive 
prior to the conclusion of the Member’s probationary period. 

(4) Documentation must be provided in order to receive the incentive.  It is the 
Member’s responsibility to forward to the Police Chief the documents which certify 
eligibility for educational incentives.  The incentive will commence on the first day of the 
pay period following the award date of the degree and/or certificate.  

D. Field Training Officer 

A Member assigned to serve as a Field Training Officer will receive a five percent differential of 
his or her base rate as shown in salary tables above for actual hours worked as Field Training 
Officer, which may be less than an entire shift. 

E. Detective 

A Member assigned to serve as a Detective will receive a five percent differential of his or her 
base rate as shown in salary tables above for all hours compensated during the assignment. 

F. Officer in Charge 

A Police Officer assigned to serve as Officer in Charge will receive a five percent differential of 
his or her base rate as shown in salary tables above for actual hours worked, which may be less 
than an entire shift. The Officer in Charge (OIC) assignment and duration is made at the 
discretion of the Police Chief.  Members who are currently under a performance improvement 
plan, received a sub-standard rating in one or more categories on his or her most recent annual 



 
 

Peace Officers Association MOU 2019-2022  Page 6 

evaluation, or received a written reprimand or more serious discipline within six months from 
assignment may be restricted from applying for the OIC assignment.  A minimum of at least 
two years of sworn Police Officer experience with the Colma Police Department is preferred.   

G. Retention Pay 

Effective in the first pay period beginning after Council ratification of this Agreement, eligible 
Members may begin to receive Retention Pay in the amount of 2.5% for continuous 10 years of 
Town of Colma service, and an additional 2.5% for 20 years of continuous Town of Colma 
service, to a combined maximum of 5% Retention Pay.  The percentage of Retention Pay shall 
be calculated on the Members base pay (not including incentive pay or any other differential 
pay).  After the effective date above, Members are eligible for Retention Pay beginning in the 
first pay period following their anniversary date in which the employee meets its 10 year or 20 
year of continuous Town service.  For purposes of this section, “continuous” service shall 
include Town-approved leaves of absence and other leaves required by law.  

ARTICLE 14 – OVERTIME AND COMPENSATORY PAY 

A. Members will be routinely scheduled to work eighty-four (84) hours in a fourteen-day 
work period.   Members will receive overtime when a Member has worked in excess of eighty-
four (84) hours during the fourteen day work period, subject to the provisions below.   For 
purposes of this section, vacation leave that was scheduled and approved at least twenty-eight 
(28) days prior to the date taken off, sick leave, bereavement leave and training hours will 
count towards hours worked.   Vacation leave not scheduled and approved at least twenty-eight 
(28) days prior to the date taken off, administrative leave and compensatory time used will not 
count as hours worked for purposes of this section. 

(1) Overtime must be approved in advance by the Police Chief or Designee. 

(2) The overtime pay rate will be paid as defined in the FLSA. 

(3) All overtime worked which is less than one hour increments in a work shift shall 
be compensated in fifteen-minute increments. 

B. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Member may, in his or her sole discretion, take or 
bank Compensatory Time Off at the rate of one and one-half hours for each hour of overtime 
worked.  A Member’s Compensatory Time Leave Bank will be established with a maximum leave 
balance of eighty hours. 

C.  A Member who is subpoenaed to testify on his or her day off at any judicial, civil or 
administrative hearing, including but not limited to Superior Court, Municipal Court, Traffic 
Court, DMV hearing, civil deposition or parole hearing, on a matter arising out of the Member's 
course and scope of employment, shall earn overtime as follows:  

(1)  While at the place of the hearing, the Member shall earn overtime from the time 
first required to be there until the time released, except for meal breaks. The Member 
will be paid for only one block of time in a day, regardless of the number of matters that 
may require the Member's appearance. Except for the circumstances described in 



 
 

Peace Officers Association MOU 2019-2022  Page 7 

paragraphs (2) and (3), the Member will earn a minimum of four hours of overtime for 
the day. 

(2)  If placed on telephone standby by the District Attorney, the Member shall earn 
two hours of overtime for all time on standby. If the Member is called to court, he or she 
will receive overtime from the time first required to be there until the time released, 
except for meal breaks. The Member called to court will receive court overtime in lieu of 
standby overtime.  In all cases, Members must have authorization from a supervisor 
prior to accepting the telephone standby. 

(3)  When a Member is required to be at the place of the hearing within four hours 
prior to his or her shift, the Member shall earn overtime from the time first required to 
be at the hearing until the beginning of his or her scheduled shift, except for meal 
breaks. When a Member is required to be at the place of the hearing within one hour 
after his or her shift, the Member shall earn overtime from the end of his or her shift 
until the time released, except for meal breaks. 

(4)  While testifying by telephone, Members shall earn overtime for the time the 
Member is required to be on the telephone. 

D.  A Member who is called to work within four hours of the start of his or her shift will 
receive at least one hour of regular pay, if actual time worked is less than one hour, and 
overtime pay, if actual hours worked or counted as worked in a work period exceed eighty-four 
(84) hours.  

E. A Member, who is called to work on his or her day off, or after having been relieved of 
duty for the day at least one hour prior, shall earn overtime for the time the Member is called 
back, with a minimum of four hours of overtime.  If the callback shift exceeds four hours, the 
Member will be compensated overtime on an hour for hour basis after the first four hours.    

F.  All training scheduled on a Member’s day off will be compensated on an hour for hour 
basis and overtime pay, if actual hours worked or counted as worked in a work period exceed 
eighty-four (84) hours. Firearms training will normally be conducted while the Member is on 
duty. If the Member must attend the range while off duty, he or she will be limited to two hours 
per quarter and will be compensated on an hour for hour basis and overtime pay as required by 
FLSA. The first quarter begins in January of every year. 

G. K-9 handlers will receive seven hours of overtime pay per pay period to compensate for 
any work after scheduled hours that may be required to feed and care for the canine unit in 
Member’s charge.  

ARTICLE 15 - HOLIDAY PAY 

A. In lieu of holiday pay, Members will be paid additional compensation at the rate of five 
percent of his or her base hourly rate of pay according to his or her classification as shown in 
salary tables above for all hours except overtime.  Said compensation shall be paid at the same 
time and manner as the Member is usually paid his or her salary, without regard for the number 
of holidays occurring or worked during the pay period and will be included in the FLSA overtime 



 
 

Peace Officers Association MOU 2019-2022  Page 8 

calculation.  This policy is in lieu of the holiday schedule and holiday leave policy set forth in the 
Town’s Personnel Policies. 

B. Notwithstanding the above, Members who work on designated significant holiday shifts 
will be compensated at one and a half (1.5) times his/her base rate as defined in the salary 
tables. The designated significant holiday shifts are 6:00pm to 6:00am on Thanksgiving, 
December 24 and December 31 and 6:00am to 6:00pm on Thanksgiving, December 25 and 
January 1. 

ARTICLE 16 - LEAVES 

A. Vacation Leave 

(1) Sign up for vacation periods for the upcoming calendar year shall be completed 
by December 31.  Any Member who has not signed up for all vacation time he or she is 
entitled to by midnight on December 31 shall lose all priority he or she is entitled to 
because of higher seniority.   

(2) A Member may accrue unused vacation time up to two times the number of 
hours the Member may earn in one year.  For example, a Member with two years of 
service may accrue up to one hundred-sixty (160) hours of unused vacation time while a 
Member with more than fifteen years of service may accrue up to four hundred (400) 
hours.  

(3) Once a Member has accrued the maximum number of unused vacation hours set 
forth in Article 16A (2) above, the Member shall not earn any additional vacation hours 
until vacation is utilized to bring the amount of accrued vacation below the applicable 
cap or vacation is cashed out as permitted by this policy. 

4) A Member may cash out a portion of his/her accrued vacation hours in 
accordance with Town’s Personnel Policies.  

B. Personnel Leave 

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town’s Personnel Policies regarding Leaves:  

(1) A Member shall accrue personal leave (as defined in the Town's Personnel 
Policies) while on disability leave of absence under Labor Code section 4850. 

(2) Members will accrue sick leave at a rate of eight hours per month. 

(3) Upon separation of employment with the Town, a Member is not entitled to be 
paid for his or her accrued and unused sick leave except as follows:  

 (i)  a Member hired prior to or on July 1, 2019 who is eligible for and who has 
applied for retirement under the California Public Employees Retirement System within 
four (4) months of separation from the Town (as required by the Administrative Code) 
may, at the Member's option, convert unused and accrued sick leave to additional PERS 



 
 

Peace Officers Association MOU 2019-2022  Page 9 

service credit or be paid for unused and accrued sick leave, provided that the number of 
hours to be converted or paid shall not exceed 1,092 hours.  

 (ii) a Member hired after July 1, 2019 who is eligible for and who has applied for 
retirement under the California Public Employees Retirement System within four (4) 
months of separation from the Town (as required by the Administrative Code) may, at 
the Member's option, convert unused and accrued sick leave to additional PERS service 
credit provided that the number of hours to be converted shall not exceed 1,092 hours.  
Accrued but unused sick leave shall have no cash value at separation for such Members. 

(4) Nothing herein shall prevent a Member from accruing sick leave beyond 1,092 
hours and, while employed, taking paid sick leave from the total amount of accrued sick 
leave in accordance with the Town’s Sick Leave Policy. 

C. The Town will administer Family Leave in accordance with state and federal law. 

ARTICLE 17 - REIMBURSEMENTS 

A. Uniform and Equipment Allowance 

(1)  The Town agrees to pay to full-time Members a uniform allowance. The amount 
of the annual allowance shall be one thousand and twenty-five dollars 
($1,025). Payment of the uniform allowance shall be paid a pro-rata amount on each 
paycheck (for example $1,025 divided by 26 = $39.43 per pay period). A one-time 
payment shall be issued on the next regular pay period after ratification of this 
MOU which shall equal to amounts earned March 1, 2016 to the date of contract 
ratification.  This uniform allowance is not CalPERS reportable compensation for 
Members hired on or after January 1, 2013, who were never members of a public 
employee retirement system or who had a break in service of more than six months. 

(2)  A Member shall not be required to purchase any item that the Town is required 
by law to provide to peace officers. 

(3) The service weapon for new Members or for current Members who need to 
replace their existing personal weapon, shall be the service weapon provided and 
maintained by the Town at the Town’s own expense, or a weapon provided and 
maintained by the Member which the Police Chief has approved.  Upon termination of 
employment for any reason, a Member using a service weapon provided by the Town 
shall return the weapon to the department. 

(4) The Town shall provide, at the Town’s own expense, new full-time Members an 
initial uniform consisting of the items determined by the Chief and approved by the City 
Manager. 

B. Damage to Personal Property and Uniforms 

(1) The Town shall reimburse a Member for damage to uniforms that are damaged 
during duty hours or while stored in their locker at a Town facility, providing that the 



 
 

Peace Officers Association MOU 2019-2022  Page 10 

Member made a reasonable effort to safeguard the uniform.   This reimbursement shall 
be made on approval of the Police Chief. 

(2) The Town shall reimburse a Member for damage of personal property in the 
performance of his/her duty, subject to the following restrictions: 

(a) The maximum reimbursement for items of personal property necessity 
such as eye glasses and hearing aids shall be two hundred dollars ($200.00). 

(b) The maximum reimbursement for the damage of all other personal 
property shall be fifty dollars ($50.00). 

(c) Requests for reimbursement for the damage of personal property must 
be made within the shift in which the damage occurs. 

(d) Reimbursement of damaged property must be approved by the Police 
Chief. 

C.  Tuition Reimbursement  

Regular, full-time Members shall be entitled to the Tuition Reimbursement benefits as 
described in the Town’s Personnel Policies. 

ARTICLE 18 - RETIREMENT, HEALTH AND WELFARE BENEFITS 

A.       PERS Retirement  

(1)      Classic – Tier One Hired before August 1, 2012 

Members hired before August 1, 2012, that are enrolled in the California Public 
Employees Retirement System (PERS) shall receive a retirement allowance under the 
“3% at 50 Modified," formula, One-Year Final Compensation retirement plan, to the 
extent provided by law.  

(2)      Classic – Tier Two Hired on or after August 1, 2012 
  
Members hired on or after August 1, 2012, including Members hired on or after January 
1, 2013 who are not classified as “new members” (as defined in Gov’t Code 7522.04(f)) 
under Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act (PEPRA), that are enrolled in PERS shall 
receive a retirement allowance under the “3% at 55 Modified” formula, Three-Year Final 
Compensation retirement plan, to the extent provided by law.  

  
(3)      PEPRA - Hired on or after January 1, 2013  
  
Members hired on or after January 1, 2013, who are classified as “new members” (as 
defined in Gov’t Code 7522.04(f)) under PEPRA, that are enrolled in PERS shall receive a 
retirement allowance under the “2.7% @ 57 formula”, Three-Year Final Compensation 
retirement plan, to the extent provided by law.  
  



 
 

Peace Officers Association MOU 2019-2022  Page 11 

(4)      Each Member shall contribute to PERS the employee’s rate of contribution 
required by law relevant to his/her retirement formula, as may be amended from time to 
time by the State of California.  The Member does not have the right to directly receive 
the Member’s PERS contribution in lieu of payment to PERS.  The Town shall contribute 
all other costs and contributions necessary to implement this plan.  If the Employer’s 
contribution required by PERS increases over the present contribution, the Town shall 
pay the increase; if the Employer’s contribution decreases, the Town shall keep the 
savings. 

B. Deferred Compensation Plan 

As to any Member who participates in the Town’s deferred compensation plan, the Town will 
pay a sum equal to the amount withheld from salary by the Member and contributed to the 
Plan, up to one hundred dollars ($100) per month.  The City Manager may establish reasonable 
rules and procedures for implementing this plan.  If the additional sum contributed by the Town 
causes the Member’s contribution to exceed the maximum amount allowed under federal law as 
deferred compensation, then such sum shall be reported as taxable income of the Member. 

C. Dental, Vision, and Life Insurances 

Dental, vision, and life insurance are as provided in the Town’s Personnel Policies, except that 
Members hired on or after January 1, 2008, will not receive Town-paid dental benefits upon 
retirement.  Members hired prior to January 1, 2008, will continue to receive Town-paid dental 
benefits upon retirement to the same extent as other miscellaneous Town employees. 

D. Medical Insurance  

(1)  PEMHCA Minimum Contribution  

The Town contracts with PERS pursuant to the Public Employees Medical and 

Hospital Care Act (PEMHCA) for the purpose of providing eligible Members, dependents 

and annuitants with access to medical insurance.  The Town shall revise its current 

PEMHCA contract with CalPERS through the adoption of a new PEMHCA resolution to 

provide that the Town shall pay to PERS, on behalf of each eligible active Member and 

each retired Member who qualifies for retiree medical benefits, a monthly employer 

contribution equal to the minimum contribution required under Section 22892(b)(2) of 

PEMHCA (PEMHCA Minimum).  This amount is established by CalPERS and may change 

annually. 

Pursuant to PEMHCA and relevant PERS regulations, a retired Member will qualify 

for retiree medical benefits if his or her retirement from the Town is effective within 120 

days of his or her separation from employment with the Town and the retired Member 

receives a retirement allowance from CalPERS resulting from his or her service with the 

Town (Annuitant).  Annuitants are eligible to continue health coverage under PEMHCA.  

An Annuitant will receive the PEMHCA Minimum regardless of hire date.   



 
 

Peace Officers Association MOU 2019-2022  Page 12 

Supplemental benefits will be provided to Active Members and Annuitants in 

accordance with the terms set forth in Sections (2), (3) and (4) below.   

(2)  Supplemental Benefit for Active Members 

The Town offers an Internal Revenue Code Section 125 Plan (Plan) which 

contains premium conversion, health care reimbursement and dependent care 

reimbursement as available benefits.  The availability of the Plan is contingent on 

compliance with State and Federal rules and regulations.  The Town and Association 

agree to meet and confer if any part of the Plan is found to be noncompliant regarding a 

replacement provision.  In addition to the PEMHCA Minimum, the Town contributes for 

eligible Active Members an additional amount to be used to pay for premiums for Health 

Insurance Coverage through the Plan. The amount of the additional monthly 

contribution for each Active Member’s PERS health insurance premium is based on the 

date of hire.  An Active Member may not use the contribution for other reasons. 

 

(i) Active Members Hired Prior to June 1, 2008 (Tier A) 

 Active Members hired prior to June 1, 2008, will receive a contribution 

under the Plan equal to the full cost of the PERS health plan selected, for which 

he or she and his or her dependents are eligible and enrolled, minus the PEMHCA 

minimum contribution. 

 The Town may not require Tier A Active Members to pay or contribute 

premiums for medical or hospital insurance unless the Town has first met with 

and obtained the agreement of the Association. 

(ii)   Active Members Hired on or after June 1, 2008 but on or before June 30, 

2012 (Tier B) 

Active Members hired on or after June 1, 2008 and on or before June 30, 

2012, will receive a contribution under the Plan equal to the cost of the PERS 

health plan in which he or she and his or her dependents are eligible and 

enrolled but not to exceed the cost of second most costly plan offered by 

CalPERS, minus the PEMHCA Minimum.  Members may select enrollment in a 

plan that exceeds the maximum Employer contribution and the difference in cost 

will be paid by the Member through payroll deductions.    

(iii) Active Members Hired on or after July 1, 2012 but on or before December 

31, 2016 (Tier C) 

Active Members hired on or after July 1, 2012 and on or before December 

31, 2016, will receive a contribution under the Plan in the same amount and 

manner as Active Members described in Tier B (section ii) above. 



 
 

Peace Officers Association MOU 2019-2022  Page 13 

(iv) Active Members Hired on or after January 1, 2017 (Tier D) 

Active Members hired on or after January 1, 2017, will receive a 

contribution under the Plan in the same amount and manner as Active Members 

described in Tier B (section ii) above. 

(3) Supplemental Benefit for Annuitants Originally Hired Before January 1, 2017 

 In addition to the PEMHCA Minimum, each Annuitant hired by the Town on or 

before December 31, 2016 is eligible for an Employer contribution, as set forth below, to 

be used for reimbursement of additional medical costs under a Retiree Health 

Reimbursement Arrangement (HRA) established by the Employer.  Receipt of 

Reimbursements may be made through a third-party administrator and subject to 

administrative requirements.   

(i) Annuitants Who Were Originally Hired Prior to June 1, 2008 (Tier A) 

Annuitants hired by the Town prior to June 1, 2008, will receive a 

monthly HRA contribution equal to the monthly cost of the PERS health plan 

selected, for which he or she and his or her dependents are eligible and enrolled, 

minus the PEMHCA Minimum.   

 The Town may not require Tier A Annuitants to pay or contribute 

premiums for medical or hospital insurance unless the Town has first met with 

and obtained the agreement of the Association. 

(ii) Annuitants Who Were Originally Hired on or after June 1, 2008, but on or 

before June 30, 2012 (Tier B) 

Annuitants hired by the Town on or after June 1, 2008, but on or before 

June 30, 2012, will receive an HRA contribution equal to the cost of the PERS 

health plan in which he or she and his or her dependents are eligible and 

enrolled but not to exceed the cost of second most costly plan offered by 

CalPERS, minus the PEMHCA Minimum. 

(iii)  Annuitants Who Were Originally Hired on or after July 1, 2012 but on or 

before December 31, 2016 (Tier C) 

Annuitants hired by the Town on or after July 1, 2012, but on or before 

December 31, 2016, who have five years of service with the Town and at least 

ten years of total PERS service credit, will receive an HRA contribution equal to 

the “applicable percentage” of the cost of the PERS health plan in which he or 

she and his or her dependents are eligible and enrolled but not to exceed the 

cost of the second most costly plan offered by PERS, as adjusted by the 

“applicable percentage”, minus the PEMHCA Minimum.  



 
 

Peace Officers Association MOU 2019-2022  Page 14 

The “applicable percentage” shall be determined on the basis of the 

Annuitant’s years of service (with a minimum of five years of service with the 

Town) pursuant to the following vesting schedule: 

CREDITED YEARS OF 
SERVICE 

 APPLICABLE PERCENTAGE 

10  50% 

11  55% 

12  60% 

13  65% 

14  70% 

15  75% 

16  80% 

17  85% 

18  90% 

19  95% 

20 or More  100% 

Notwithstanding the preceding service requirement, the contribution 
payable by the Town shall be equal to 100 percent of the cost of the PERS health 
plan in which he or she and his or her dependents are eligible and enrolled but 
not to exceed the cost of second most costly plan offered by CalPERS, minus the 
PEMHCA Minimum, on behalf of any annuitant who retired for industrial 
disability. 

This benefit is structured in accordance with the PERS statutory vesting 

schedule in Government Code Section 22893 such that Tier C Annuitants will 

receive retiree medical benefits calculated in accordance with the statutory 

vesting schedule and related provisions of Section 22893, as it may from time to 

time be amended, provided that only the PEMHCA Minimum will be paid directly 

to CalPERS and the remaining amount, as described in the first paragraph of this 

Section (D)(3)(iii), will be provided to Tier C Annuitants in the form of a 

reimbursement under the terms of the HRA.   

(iv)  Retiree Health Benefit Preserved in Event of Reinstatement and 

Subsequent Retirement  

In accordance with AB 410 (2013), as codified in Government Code 

Section 22838, an Annuitant eligible for retiree health benefits pursuant to 

Section (D)(3)(i), (ii) or (iii) who reinstates from retirement may, upon his or her 

subsequent retirement, elect to enroll in a health benefit plan approved or 

maintained by CalPERS as an annuitant of the Town and receive the applicable 

benefit under Section (D)(3)(i), (ii) or (iii), if all of the following apply: 

(a)  The subsequent retirement occurs on or after January 1, 2014; 



 
 

Peace Officers Association MOU 2019-2022  Page 15 

(b) The Annuitant is eligible for retiree health coverage through the 

Town prior to reinstatement from retirement; 

(c) The subsequent retirement occurs within 120 days of separation; 

and  

(d) The retiree health contribution available from the Town is higher 

than the retiree health contribution from the employer through 

which the subsequent retirement occurs.   

 To the extent that the Town’s conversion to the PEMHCA Minimum 

causes the requirement at (d) above to fail and, as a result, the Annuitant enrolls 

in a PERS health benefit plan through the subsequent employer, the Town shall 

cause the difference between the total benefit described in Section (D)(3)(i), (ii) 

or (iii), as applicable, and the retiree health benefit to which he or she is entitled 

under the subsequent employer, to be paid to the Annuitant in the form of a 

reimbursement under the HRA of substantiated expenses for a PERS health 

insurance plan in which he or she has enrolled.   

(4) Retirement Health Savings Program (RHSP) 

As soon as administratively possible, the Town will establish a Retirement Health 

Savings Program (RHSP).  The RHSP will use a third-party administrator selected by the 

Town.  The design of the RHSP is intended to be a tax advantaged savings plan to be 

used exclusively for qualifying medical expenses during retirement.  

(i) Mandatory Participation - Members Hired on or after January 1, 2017 

 
Members hired on or after January 1, 2017 receive a monthly Employer 

contribution to an individual account under the RHSP. The Town shall contribute 
to the Member’s individual RHSP account an amount equivalent to one and one-
half percent (1.5%) of the Member’s monthly base salary as shown in the Town’s 
adopted salary schedule.  The base salary for the initial month of service and 
final month of service shall be prorated based on actual base salary paid in those 
months.  

 
(ii) Optional Participation - Members Hired Prior to January 1, 2017 
 
 Members hired prior to January 1, 2017 may exercise a one-time 
irrevocable election and waiver as defined in the RHSP Plan Document. Any 
Member who elects to receive the RHSP benefit shall receive the same benefit as 
described in Section (D)(4)(i) above and will no longer receive the benefits in 
Section (D)(3) above.   

 
E. Health Club Membership 

Health Club Membership benefits are as provided in the Town’s Personnel Policies. 



 
 

Peace Officers Association MOU 2019-2022  Page 16 

F. Funeral Expenses  

The Town shall pay fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000) to the executor, administrator or 
personal representative of the estate of, or to the trustee authorized to pay funeral expenses 
for, any Member killed in the line of duty. 

ARTICLE 19 - PAYROLL ERRORS 

A. To ensure that system or other errors which affect a Members pay are processed in an 
efficient and effective manner, the Town shall notice the affected Member as soon as 
practicable.   

B. Payroll errors detected by a Member shall, as soon as practicable, be communicated to 
the City Manager, or his or her designee.  In the case of under payment, the City Manager or 
his or her designee will process the appropriate adjustments as soon as practicable.   

C. Payroll errors identified by the City Manager or his or her designee will be communicated 
to the Member either directly or through the Police Chief.  

D. Under payments will be processed as soon as practicable. 

E. In the event of an overpayment, the City Manager or his or her designee will determine 
a reasonable repayment schedule and inform the Member of the schedule directly or through 
the Police Chief.  The affected Member shall be given an opportunity to discuss the repayment 
schedule and, if necessary, to request a reasonable adjustment to it.  Factors considered in 
determining a reasonable adjustment to the repayment schedule include but are not limited to, 
the Member’s normal salary, and other financial obligations of the Member.  The Town and the 
Association agree that the Town will use any and all legal remedies to recover any salary 
overpayment made to the Member from the Member’s wages in the event that (1) the Member 
does not respond within five working days of being notified of the overpayment or (2) mutual 
agreement on the repayment schedule is not achieved within ten working days of the Member 
being notified of the overpayment. 

ARTICLE 20 - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 

Grievance procedures are provided as stated in the Town’s Personnel Policies.   

ARTICLE 21 - SAFETY VESTS 

The parties have met and conferred and agreed to the Town’s Safety Vest Policy. 

ARTICLE 22 – DEFINITIONS 

As used in this Memorandum: 

“Base rate” means the hourly rate of pay, by each job classification shown in the tables in 
Appendix A of this Memorandum. 



 
 

Peace Officers Association MOU 2019-2022  Page 17 

“Personnel Policies” means the provisions, policies and regulations adopted by the City Council 
as Chapter Three of the Colma Administrative Code, or its successor, and the procedures and 
regulations adopted by the City Manager to implement the provisions of Chapter Three of the 
Colma Administrative Code or its successor. 

“Designated Significant Holiday Shifts” are defined in paragraph 15.B. 

ARTICLE 23 - TRANSITION 

A. Upon execution, this Memorandum of Understanding will supersede the Memorandum of 
Understanding between the parties and for the period from July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2019. 

/// 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF: 

Dated __________________  COLMA PEACE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION 
 
                         By _________________________________ 
 

     _________________________________ 
Print Name and Title 

  
 Attest  _______________ ______________ 
 

     _________________________________ 
Print Name and Title 

       
Dated _________________ TOWN OF COLMA 
                                           
 By _________________________________ 
      Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor 
 
 Attest  _______________ ______________ 

Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 
 
 



 

 

Appendix A 

BASE RATE SALARY TABLES  

 
 
April 7, 2019 through December 28, 2019 
 
Increased 2% 
 

 Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 

Police Officer 1 
   

48.67  
   

51.11  
   

53.66  
   

56.35  

Police Officer 2 
   

50.62  
   

53.15  
   

55.81  
   

58.60  

Police Officer 3 51.60 54.18 56.88 59.73 

 
Increased 2% 
 

 Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 

Police Sergeant 1 
   
61.69  

   
62.97  

   
64.27  

   
67.82  

Police Sergeant 2 
   
64.16  

   
65.48  

   
66.83  

   
70.54  

Police Sergeant 3 
   
65.38  

   
66.73  

   
68.11  

   
71.90  

 
 
 
December 29, 2019 through June 27, 2020 
 
Increased 2% 
 

 Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 

Police Officer 1 49.64 
   
52.13  54.74 

   
57.47  

Police Officer 2 
   
51.63  

   
54.21  

   
56.92  

   
59.77  

Police Officer 3 
   
52.63  

   
55.26  

   
58.02  

   
60.92  

 

 Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 

Police Sergeant 1 
   
62.92  

   
64.23  

   
65.55  

   
69.18  

Police Sergeant 2 
   
65.44  66.79 

   
68.17  

   
71.95  

Police Sergeant 3 
   
66.69  

   
68.07  

   
69.47  

   
73.34  

 
 



 

 

BASE RATE SALARY TABLES  

 
 
June 28, 2020 through December 26, 2020 
 

Increased 2% 
 

 Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 

Police Officer 1 
   
50.64  53.17 55.83 58.62 

Police Officer 2 
 
52.66 55.30 58.06 60.97 

Police Officer 3 
   
53.68  56.37 59.18 62.14 

 

 Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 

Police Sergeant 1 64.18 65.51 66.86 70.56 

Police Sergeant 2 
   
66.75  68.13 69.53 73.39 

Police Sergeant 3 
   
68.02  69.43 70.86 74.81 

 
 
 
 
December 27, 2020 through June 26, 2021 
 

Increased 2% 
 

 Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 

Police Officer 1 
   
51.65  54.23 56.95 59.79 

Police Officer 2 
   
53.71  56.40 59.22 62.19 

Police Officer 3 
   
54.75  57.50 60.37 63.38 

 

 Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 

Police Sergeant 1 
   
65.47  66.82 68.20 71.97 

Police Sergeant 2 
   
68.08  69.49 70.92 74.85 

Police Sergeant 3 
   
69.38  70.82 72.28 76.30 

 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 

BASE RATE SALARY TABLES  

 
 
June 27, 2021 through December 25, 2021 
 

Increased 2% 
 

 Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 

Police Officer 1 
   
52.68  55.32 58.09 60.99 

Police Officer 2 
   
54.79  57.53 60.41 63.43 

Police Officer 3 
   
55.85  58.65 61.57 64.65 

 

 Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 

Police Sergeant 1 
   
66.78  68.16 69.57 73.41 

Police Sergeant 2 
   
69.44  70.88 72.34 76.35 

Police Sergeant 3 
   
70.77  72.23 73.72 77.83 

 
 
 
 
 
December 26, 2021 through June 25, 2022 
 

Increased 2% 
 

 Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 

Police Officer 1 
   
53.73  56.42 59.25 62.21 

Police Officer 2 
   
55.88  58.68 61.62 64.70 

Police Officer 3 
   
59.97  59.82 62.81 65.94 

 

 Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 

Police Sergeant 1 
   
68.11  

   
69.52  70.96 74.88 

Police Sergeant 2 
   
70.83  72.30 73.79 77.88 

Police Sergeant 3 
   
72.19  73.68 75.20 79.30 

 
 
 
 
 



Res 2019-__, Approving Dispatch MOU 2019-2022 Page 1 of 2 
25977.00100\31948885.1 

RESOLUTION 2019-__ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION APPROVING MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING  
BETWEEN THE TOWN OF COLMA AND THE COLMA POLICE 

COMMUNICATION/RECORDS ASSOCIATION FOR THE PERIOD OF APRIL 7, 
2019 TO JUNE 30, 2022 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve as follows: 

1. Findings.

The City Council finds that the Town’s Negotiating Team met and conferred with the Colma 
Police Communication/Records Association (Dispatch) Negotiating Team several times over the 
past year, that the Dispatch has ratified the proposed MOU, and that it is in the best interest of 
the Town of Colma to enter into the proposed agreement to secure the continued public safety 
services. 

2. Order.

(a) The City Council hereby approves the Memorandum of Understanding between the 
Town of Colma and the Colma Police Communication/Records Association (Dispatch) for the 
time period of April 7, 2019 to June 30, 2022, which is attached to the Staff Report for the April 
10, 2019 City Council meeting.  

(b) The Mayor shall be, and hereby is, authorized to execute the Memorandum of 
Understanding, subject to any changes in form or technical language approved by the City 
Manager and City Attorney. 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

Attachment C



Res 2019-__, Approving Dispatch MOU 2019-2022  Page 2 of 2 
25977.00100\31948885.1 

Certification of Adoption 
 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2019-__ was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
said City Council held on April 10, 2019 by the following vote: 
 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 

  Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 

Joanne del Rosario, Mayor      

John Irish Goodwin       

Diana Colvin      

Helen Fisicaro      

Raquel Gonzalez      

Voting Tally 0 0    

 

 
Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Joanne del Rosario, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 

 



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

BETWEEN 

THE TOWN OF COLMA 

AND 

THE COLMA POLICE COMMUNICATIONS/RECORDS 
ASSOCIATION 

 April 7, 2019 – June 30, 2022 

Attachment D



  

Communication/Records Association MOU 2019 - 2022 Page 1 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

ARTICLE   1 PURPOSE AND INTENT ...........................................................1 

ARTICLE   2 REPRESENTATION…………………………………………………. .............1 

ARTICLE   3 RIGHTS RESERVED .................................................................1 

ARTICLE   4 MANAGEMENT OBLIGATIONS ..................................................2 

ARTICLE   5 SEVERABILITY ........................................................................2 

ARTICLE   6 WAIVER………………... ..............................................................2 

ARTICLE   7 MAINTENANCE OF BENEFITS ..................................................2 

ARTICLE   8 DURATION AND RENEWAL ......................................................3 

ARTICLE   9 WORK PERIOD AND HOURS ....................................................3 

ARTICLE  10 STAFFING LEVELS ...................................................................3 

ARTICLE  11 SHIFT SELECTION ..................................................................3 

ARTICLE  12 SHIFT EXCHANGE ...................................................................4 

ARTICLE  13 SALARIES ...............................................................................4 

ARTICLE  14 OVERTIME AND COMPENSATORY PAY .....................................5 

ARTICLE  15 HOLIDAY PAY………………………………………………………… .............6 

ARTICLE  16 LEAVES…………………………………………………………………. .............7 

ARTICLE  17 REIMBURSEMENTS .................................................................8 

ARTICLE  18 RETIREMENT, HEALTH AND WELFARE BENEFITS .....................9 

ARTICLE  19 PAYROLL ERRORS ...................................................................11 

ARTICLE  20 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE ........................................................11 

ARTICLE  21 SAFETY VESTS………………………………………………………. .............12 

ARTICLE  22 DEFINITIONS………………………………………………………… .............12



 

Communication/Records Association MOU 2019 - 2022 Page 1 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

[See Article 22 for definitions] 

ARTICLE 1 - PURPOSE AND INTENT 
 
A. It is the intent and purpose of the parties that this Memorandum of Understanding shall 
set forth rules of pay, hours of work, and other terms and conditions of employment to be 
observed by the parties in connection with the Police Clerical/Dispatching Employees Unit.  The 
provisions of this Memorandum of Understanding shall apply only to the Members of the Police 
Clerical/Dispatching Employees Unit (Member) and shall in no way establish terms and 
conditions of employment of other employees of the Town of Colma who are not Members of 
that Unit.  The classifications included in that Unit are Police Dispatcher/Clerk and Police 
Dispatch/Records Supervisor.  This agreement has been developed in the interest of promoting 
and improving employee relations between the Town of Colma (hereinafter referred to as the 
Town) and the Colma Police Communications/Records Association (hereinafter referred to as 
the Association). 
 
B. This Memorandum is entered into pursuant to the Meyers-Milias-Brown Act (GOVERNMENT 

CODE sections 3500, et seq.) and Subchapter 3.09 of the Administrative Code of the Town. 
 
ARTICLE 2 - REPRESENTATION 
 
A. The Town hereby recognizes the Association as the Recognized Employee Organization 
to act as bargaining agent for the Police Clerical/Dispatching Employees Unit. 
 
B. The Town shall deduct the Association dues from the Members’ pay checks and transmit 
such monies to the duly authorized and designated employee organization representative or by 
direct deposit to the Association’s bank account. 
 
ARTICLE 3 - RIGHTS RESERVED 
 
A. The Association recognizes that the Town has and will continue to retain, whether 
exercised or not, the unilateral and exclusive right to operate, administer and manage its 
municipal services and work force performing those services in all respects subject to this 
Memorandum. 
 
B. The City Manager and Police Chief have and will continue to retain exclusive decision-
making authority on matters not officially and expressly modified by specific provisions of this 
Memorandum and such decision-making shall not be subject in any way, directly or indirectly, 
to the grievance procedure contained herein. 
 
C. The exclusive rights of the Town shall include, but not be limited to, the right to 
determine the organization of Town government and the purpose and mission of its constituent 
agencies, to set standards of service to be offered to the public, and through its management 
officials to exercise control and discretion over its organization and operations, to establish and 
effect Administrative Regulations and Employment Rules and Regulations consistent with law 
and the specific provisions of this Memorandum to direct its employees, to take disciplinary 



 

Communication/Records Association MOU 2019 - 2022 Page 2 

action for just cause, to relieve its employees from duty because of lack of work or for other 
legitimate reasons, to determine whether goods or services shall be made, purchased or 
contracted for, to determine the methods, means and personnel by which the Town’s services 
are to be provided, including the right to schedule and assign work and overtime, and to 
otherwise act in the interest of efficient service to the community. 
 
ARTICLE 4 - MANAGEMENT OBLIGATIONS 
 
The Town shall, at its own expense, provide to every Member a copy of this Memorandum and 
all rules, regulations, general and special orders. 
 
ARTICLE 5 - SEVERABILITY 
 
If any article or section of this Memorandum of Understanding or if any chapter or section of 
the Town’s Personnel Policies referred to in this Memorandum should be found invalid, unlawful, 
or unenforceable by reason of any existing or subsequent enacted legislation by a court of 
competent jurisdiction, all other articles and sections of this Memorandum shall remain in full 
force and effect for the duration of this Memorandum.  In the event of invalidation of any article 
or section, the Town and Association may negotiate regarding that section or article on the 
anniversary of this Memorandum as provided by Article 8.  However, in the event the legislation 
or decision referred to above affects wages, hours or working conditions, the Town and 
Association agree to meet and confer within sixty days of the effective date of the legislation or 
decision to renegotiate said article or section. 
 
ARTICLE 6 - WAIVER  
 
The parties acknowledge that, during the negotiations which resulted in this agreement, each 
had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals with respect to any 
subject or matter not removed by law from the area of collective bargaining, and that the 
understandings and agreements arrived at by the parties after the exercise of that right and 
opportunity are set forth in this agreement.  Therefore, the Town and the Association, for the 
life of this agreement, each voluntarily and unqualifiedly waives the right and each agrees that 
the other shall not be obligated to bargain collectively with respect to any subject or matter 
referred to or covered in this agreement (except as provided in Article 5), even though such 
subject or matter may not have been within the knowledge and contemplation of either or both 
parties at the time they negotiated or signed this agreement.  However, in the event the Police 
Chief, the City Manager or the City Council imposes a change in policy regarding the Association 
which substantially affects wages, hours or other terms and conditions of employment not 
covered by this Memorandum of Understanding, the Association may request that the Town 
meet and confer regarding that change. 
 
ARTICLE 7 - MAINTENANCE OF BENEFITS 
 
A. The status of all existing benefits and conditions of employment now enjoyed by 
classifications represented by the Association shall not be deemed affected by this agreement, 
except as specifically modified by provisions of this Memorandum.   
 



 

Communication/Records Association MOU 2019 - 2022 Page 3 

B. Except as expressly stated in this Memorandum, where this Memorandum refers to a 
benefit in the Town’s Personnel Policies, that benefit may only be modified by the Town after 
meeting and conferring with the Association. 
 
ARTICLE 8 - DURATION AND RENEWAL 

 

Unless otherwise specifically provided herein, this Memorandum of Understanding shall run 
from April 7, 2019 to June 30, 2022.  It shall be automatically renewed from year to year 
thereafter, with no scheduled salary increases, unless either party shall have notified the other, 
in writing, at least sixty days prior to the expiration date that it desires to modify the 
Memorandum of Understanding.  In the event that such notice is given, negotiations shall begin 
within thirty days of delivery of the notice of intent to modify the Memorandum of 
Understanding.  
 
ARTICLE 9 - WORK PERIOD AND HOURS 
 
The work period established for Members is a regularly recurring period of forty hours in seven 
consecutive days beginning at 00:01 each Sunday and ending at 24:00 the following Saturday. 
 
ARTICLE 10 - STAFFING LEVELS 
 
A. The Police Chief shall determine the minimum staffing levels on each work shift. 

 
B. Open shifts may or may not be filled, depending on the ongoing safety of department 
personnel.  If the Police Chief or his/her designee decides to fill the open shift, this will be 
implemented without the use of overtime, whenever possible.  This may include altering the 
normal work shift of Members to reduce or eliminate the need for overtime.  When overtime 
must be used to fill an open shift, it will be filled by seniority, with the first choice going to the 
senior Member of the Association. 
 

(1) Open shifts are designated as any/all hours which need coverage by an 
employee due to sick leave, vacation, CTO, LOA, paid family leave, training and any 
other open hours. 

 
(2) Open shifts are defined as the normally scheduled hours for the shift had the 
Member on leave actually worked it.  
 

ARTICLE 11 - SHIFT SELECTION 
 
A. Members will sign up for shifts by seniority for a one year time frame (January through 
December).  The Police Chief or his designee may assign a Member to an alternate shift at any 
time for the good of the organization.   
 
B. In order to avoid miscommunication, the Police Dispatch/Records Supervisor will notify 
the Police Dispatcher/Clerk in person, by phone, or by official schedule change form to be 
initialed by employee, of changes they feel are necessary in the hours of the monthly schedule.  
(Days off will not be changed unless an emergency exists, or unless the employee volunteers to 
make changes.)  Every effort will be made to notify the employee as soon as the need is 



 

Communication/Records Association MOU 2019 - 2022 Page 4 

recognized for a shift change.  Messages left on answering devices or notes left in Member’s 
boxes shall not be considered adequate by themselves.   

 
C. In the interests of Supervisor-Member relations all attempts will be made to seek 
volunteers when changes in the schedule are necessary. 
 
D. Changes in a Member’s schedule shall not be used as a disciplinary action, bonus or an 
incentive.  However, if after a sustained personnel investigation it is determined that a change 
in the schedule is necessary, that change can be made at the discretion of the Police Chief. 
 
ARTICLE 12 - SHIFT EXCHANGE 
 
A. All Members may be permitted to substitute for another during scheduled work hours, as 
herein provided.   Trading shall be limited to one shift in any consecutive thirty days and any 
Member requesting a trade shall submit a written request to the Chief or designee seven days 
prior to the first day of the trade.   No trade shall be made unless the Chief or designee 
approves the trade in writing.   The traded shift shall be paid back within the same thirty days.   
This shift trading is strictly voluntary on the part of Members and is for their benefit, not the 
benefit of the Town.  The Town shall exclude the hours worked as a substitute in calculating 
overtime. 
 
B. Once the exchange has been signed by both Members and approved by the Police Chief 
or his or her designee, it will be the responsibility of the person agreeing to work the shift to 
cover that shift. 
 
ARTICLE 13 - SALARIES  
 
A. Effective in the first pay period beginning after the Council ratifies this MOU, the Town 
shall pay each Member an amount determined by multiplying the number of hours worked in a 
pay period by the applicable hourly base rate of pay shown for the Member in Appendix A.  
However, the increases scheduled for July 1, 2021 and January 1, 2022 are expressly 
contingent upon, and will not be implemented unless, the Town projected revenues exceed its 
operation expense projections for FY 2021-22 as set forth in the FY2021-22 Budget upon 
adoption on June 9, 2021. 
 
B. FICA and PERS Member Contributions 
 
Each Member shall pay the employee share of FICA (Social Security and Medicare) taxes and 
the employee's contributions to the Public Employees Retirement System (PERS). 
 
C. Training Differential 
 

(1) The Town shall pay a Member who is assigned to train new clerk/dispatchers, 
Officers or per diem employees an additional five percent differential of his or her base 
rate as shown in Appendix A for actual hours worked as a Trainer in one-half hour 
increments.  
 
(2) Members may be required to provide orientation for new employees provided 



 

Communication/Records Association MOU 2019 - 2022 Page 5 

that such orientation responsibilities do not exceed one hour per day. No additional 
compensation shall be paid for performing orientation duties under this paragraph. 
 
(3) The Police Chief or his or her designee shall have discretion to make all training 
assignments. 
 

D. CAD Administration Incentive 
 

(1) The Town shall pay a Member who is assigned duties of CAD system 
administration an additional five percent (5%) of his or her base pay as shown in 
Appendix A and shall pay the Member who is assigned backup CAD system 
administration duties an additional two and one half percent (2.5%) of his or her base 
pay. 
 
(2) The Police Chief or his or her designee shall have discretion to make CAD system 

administration assignments. 
 

E.  Retention Pay 
 
Effective in the first pay period beginning after Council ratification of this Agreement, eligible 
Members may begin to receive Retention Pay in the amount of 2.5% for continuous 10 years of 
Town of Colma service, and an additional 2.5% for 20 years of continuous Town of Colma 
service, to a combined maximum of 5% Retention Pay.  The percentage of Retention Pay shall 
be calculated on the Members base pay (not including incentive pay or any other differential 
pay).  After the effective date above, Members are eligible for Retention Pay beginning in the 
first pay period following their anniversary date in which the employee meets its 10 year or 20 
year of continuous Town service.  For purposes of this section, “continuous” service shall 
include Town-approved leaves of absence and other leaves required by law. 

 
ARTICLE 14 - OVERTIME AND COMPENSATORY PAY 
 
A. Members will be routinely scheduled to work forty hours in a seven-day work period.   
Members will receive overtime when a Member has worked in excess of forty hours during the 
seven-day work period, subject to the provisions below.   For purposes of this section, 
designated holidays not worked, floating holidays, vacation leave that was scheduled and 
approved at least twenty-eight (28) days prior to the date taken off, sick leave, bereavement 
leave and training hours will count towards hours worked.   Vacation leave not scheduled and 
approved at least twenty-eight (28) days prior to the date taken off, administrative leave and 
compensatory time used will not count as hours worked for purposes of this section. 
 

(1) Overtime must be approved in advance by the Police Chief or Designee. 
 
(2) The overtime pay rate will be paid as defined in the FLSA. 
 
(3) All overtime worked which is less than one hour increments in a work shift shall 
be compensated in fifteen-minute increments. 
 



 

Communication/Records Association MOU 2019 - 2022 Page 6 

B. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Member may, in his or her sole discretion, take or 
bank Compensatory Time Off at the rate of one and one-half hours for each hour of overtime 
worked.  A Member’s Compensatory Time Leave Bank will be established with a maximum leave 
balance of eighty hours. 
 
C. A Member who is subpoenaed to testify on his or her day off at any judicial, civil or 
administrative hearing, including but not limited to Superior Court, Municipal Court, Traffic 
Court, DMV hearing, civil deposition or parole hearing, on a matter arising out of the Member's 
course and scope of employment, shall earn overtime as follows:  
 

(1) While at the place of the hearing, the Member shall earn overtime from the time 
first required to be there until the time released, except for meal breaks. The Member 
will be paid for only one block of time in a day, regardless of the number of matters that 
may require the Member's appearance. Except for the circumstances described in 
paragraphs (2) and (3), the Member will earn a minimum of four hours of overtime for 
the day. 
 
(2) If placed on telephone standby by the District Attorney, the Member shall earn 
two hours of overtime for all time on standby. If the Member is called to court, he or she 
will receive overtime from the time first required to be there until the time released, 
except for meal breaks. The Member called to court will receive court overtime in lieu of 
standby overtime.  In all cases, Members must have authorization from a supervisor 
prior to accepting the telephone standby. 
 
(3) When a Member is required to be at the place of the hearing within four hours 
prior to his or her shift, the Member shall earn overtime from the time first required to 
be at the hearing until the beginning of his or her scheduled shift, except for meal 
breaks. When a Member is required to be at the place of the hearing within one hour 
after his or her shift, the Member shall earn overtime from the end of his or her shift 
until the time released, except for meal breaks. 
 
(4) While testifying by telephone, Members shall earn overtime for the time the 
Member is required to be on the telephone. 
 

D. A Member who is called to work within four hours of the start of his or her shift will 
receive at least one hour of regular pay, if actual time worked is less than one hour, and 
overtime pay, if actual hours worked or counted as worked in a work period exceed forty hours.  
 
E. A Member, who is called to work on his or her day off, or after having been relieved of 
duty for the day at least one hour prior, shall earn overtime for the time the Member is called 
back, with a minimum of four hours of overtime.  If the callback shift exceeds four hours, the 
Member will be compensated overtime on an hour for hour basis after the first four hours.    
 
F. All training scheduled on a Member’s day off will be compensated on an hour for hour 
basis and overtime pay, if actual hours worked or counted as worked in a work period exceed 
forty hours.  
 



 

Communication/Records Association MOU 2019 - 2022 Page 7 

ARTICLE 15 - HOLIDAY PAY 
 
Holiday leave will be provided as described in the Town Personnel Policies, except as specifically 
provided herein. 
 

(1) Members will be allowed one floating holiday per calendar year to be used as a 
personal day off. 
 
(2) The following are designated as paid holidays: New Year’s Day, Martin Luther 
King Day, Lincoln’s Birthday, Presidents’ Day, Memorial Day, 4th of July, Admission Day, 
Veteran’s Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, Day After Thanksgiving, Columbus Day, 
and December 25. 
 
(3) On a holiday, unless authorized by the Police Chief or his or her designee, the 
Dispatch Center will be staffed by one day shift and one swing shift dispatcher.  All other 
Members shall take the holiday off.  If a holiday occurs on a Member’s regular day off, 
the Member may request to take a paid day off in the same work period or be 
compensated eight hours of regular pay.  The Police Chief or his or her designee has the 
discretion to grant compensation or time off.    
 
(4) When a Member works on a designated holiday, the Member may take a paid 
day off in the same work period or be compensated eight hours of regular pay.   
 
(5) Until the Town converts to twenty-four (24) hours dispatching, the Dispatch 
Center will be closed on the following days: 
 

  (a) New Year’s Day 
 
  (b) Thanksgiving Day 
 
  (c) December 25th 
 
ARTICLE 16 - LEAVES 
 
A. Vacation Leave 
 

(1) Sign up for vacation periods for the upcoming calendar year shall be completed 
by December 31.  Any Member who has not signed up for all vacation time he or she is 
entitled to by midnight on December 31 shall lose all priority he or she is entitled to 
because of higher seniority.   
 
(2) A Member may accrue unused vacation time up to two times the number of 
hours the Member may earn in one year.  For example, a Member with two years of 
service may accrue up to one hundred-sixty (160) hours of unused vacation time while a 
Member with more than fifteen years of service may accrue up to four hundred (400) 
hours.  
 
(3) Once a Member has accrued the maximum number of unused vacation hours set 



 

Communication/Records Association MOU 2019 - 2022 Page 8 

forth in Article 16A(2) above, the Member shall not earn any additional vacation hours 
until vacation is utilized to bring the amount of accrued vacation below the applicable 
cap or vacation is cashed out as permitted by this policy. 
 
4) A Member may cash out a portion of his/her accrued vacation hours in 
accordance with Town’s Personnel Policies.  
 

B. Personnel Leave 
 
Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town’s Personnel Policies regarding Leaves:  
 

(1) Members will accrue sick leave at a rate of eight hours per month. 
 
(2) Upon separation of employment with the Town, a Member is not entitled to be 

paid for his or her accrued and unused sick leave except as follows:  
 

a. a Member hired prior to or on July 1, 2019 who is eligible for and who has 
applied for retirement under the California Public Employees Retirement 
System within four (4) months of separation from the Town (as required by 
the Administrative Code) may, at the Member's option, convert unused and 
accrued sick leave to additional PERS service credit or be paid for unused and 
accrued sick leave, provided that the number of hours to be converted or 
paid shall not exceed one thousand forty (1,040) hours.  
 

b. a Member hired after July 1, 2019 who is eligible for and who has applied for 
retirement under the California Public Employees Retirement System within 
four (4) months of separation from the Town (as required by the 
Administrative Code) may, at the Member's option, convert unused and 
accrued sick leave to additional PERS service credit provided that the number 
of hours to be converted shall not exceed 1,040 hours.  Accrued but unused 
sick leave shall have no cash value at separation for such Members. 

 
(3) Nothing herein shall prevent a Member from accruing sick leave beyond one 
thousand forty (1,040) hours and, while employed, taking paid sick from the total 
amount of accrued sick leave in accordance with the Town’s Sick Leave Policy. 

 
C. The Town will administer Family Leave in accordance with state and federal law. 
 
ARTICLE 17 - REIMBURSEMENTS 
 
A. Uniform and Equipment Allowance 

(1)  The Town agrees to pay to full-time Members a uniform allowance. The amount 
of the annual allowance shall be seven hundred, seventy-four dollars and seventy-three 
cents ($774.73).   Payment of the uniform allowance shall be paid a pro-rata amount on 
each paycheck (for example $774.73 divided by 26 = $29.80 per pay period). A one-
time payment shall be issued on the next regular pay period after ratification of this 
MOU which shall equal to amounts earned March 1, 2016 to the date of contract 



 

Communication/Records Association MOU 2019 - 2022 Page 9 

ratification.  This uniform allowance is not CalPERS reportable compensation for 
Members hired on or after January 1, 2013, who were never members of a public 
employee retirement system or who had a break in service of more than six months. 

(2) The Town shall provide, at the Town’s own expense, new full-time Members an 
initial uniform consisting of the items determined by the Chief and approved by the City 
Manager. 
 

B. Damage to Personal Property and Uniforms 
 

(1) The Town shall reimburse a Member for damage to uniforms that are damaged 
during duty hours or while stored in their locker at a Town facility, providing that the 
Member made a reasonable effort to safeguard the uniform.   This reimbursement shall 
be made on approval of the Police Chief. 
 
(2) The Town shall reimburse a Member for damage of personal property in the 
performance of his/her duty, subject to the following restrictions: 

 
(a) The maximum reimbursement for items of personal property necessity 
such as eye glasses and hearing aids shall be two hundred dollars ($200.00). 

 
(b) The maximum reimbursement for the damage of all other personal 
property shall be fifty dollars ($50.00). 

 
(c) Requests for reimbursement for the damage of personal property must 
be made within the shift in which the damage occurs. 

 
(d) Reimbursement of damaged property must be approved by the Police 
Chief. 

 
C.  Tuition Reimbursement  
 

Regular, full-time Members shall be entitled to the Tuition Reimbursement benefits as 
described in the Town’s Personnel Policies. 
 

ARTICLE 18 - RETIREMENT, HEALTH AND WELFARE BENEFITS 
 
A.       PERS Retirement  

(1)      Classic – Tier One Hired before August 1, 2012 

Members hired before August 1, 2012, that are enrolled in the California Public 
Employees Retirement System (PERS) shall receive a retirement allowance under the 
“2.5% at 55 Modified," formula, One-Year Final Compensation retirement plan, to the 
extent provided by law.  

(2)      Classic – Tier Two Hired on or after August 1, 2012 
  
Members hired on or after August 1, 2012, including Members hired on or after January 



 

Communication/Records Association MOU 2019 - 2022 Page 10 

1, 2013 who are not classified as “new members” (as defined in Gov’t Code 7522.04(f)) 
under Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act (PEPRA), that are enrolled in PERS shall 
receive a retirement allowance under the “2% at 60 Modified” formula, Three-Year Final 
Compensation retirement plan, to the extent provided by law.  

  
(3)      PEPRA - Hired on or after January 1, 2013  
 
Members hired on or after January 1, 2013, who are classified as “new members” (as 
defined in Gov’t Code 7522.04(f)) under PEPRA, that are enrolled in PERS shall receive a 
retirement allowance under the “2% @ 62 formula”, Three-Year Final Compensation 
retirement plan, to the extent provided by law.  
  
(4)      Each Member shall contribute to PERS the employee’s rate of contribution 
required by law relevant to his/her retirement formula, as may be amended from time to 
time by the State of California.  The Member does not have the right to directly receive 
the Member’s PERS contribution in lieu of payment to PERS.  The Town shall contribute 
all other costs and contributions necessary to implement this plan.  If the Employer’s 
contribution required by PERS increases over the present contribution, the Town shall 
pay the increase; if the Employer’s contribution decreases, the Town shall keep the 
savings. 

B. Deferred Compensation Plan 
 
As to any Member who participates in the Town’s deferred compensation plan, the Town will 
pay a sum equal to the amount withheld from salary by the Member and contributed to the 
Plan, up to one hundred dollars ($100) per month.  The City Manager may establish reasonable 
rules and procedures for implementing this plan.  If the additional sum contributed by the Town 
causes the Member’s contribution to exceed the maximum amount allowed under federal law as 
deferred compensation, then such sum shall be reported as taxable income of the Member. 
 
C. Dental, Vision, and Life Insurances 
 
Dental, vision, and life insurance are as provided in the Town’s Personnel Policies, except that:  
  

(1) Members hired on or after January 1, 2010, will not receive Town-paid dental 
benefits upon retirement.  Members hired prior to January 1, 2010, will continue to 
receive Town-paid dental benefits upon retirement to the same extent as other 
miscellaneous Town employees. 
 

D. Medical Insurance  

(1)  PEMHCA Minimum Contribution  

The Town contracts with PERS pursuant to the Public Employees Medical and 

Hospital Care Act (PEMHCA) for the purpose of providing eligible Members, dependents 

and annuitants with access to medical insurance.  The Town shall revise its current 

PEMHCA contract with CalPERS through the adoption of a new PEMHCA resolution to 

provide that the Town shall pay to PERS, on behalf of each eligible active Member and 



 

Communication/Records Association MOU 2019 - 2022 Page 11 

each retired Member who qualifies for retiree medical benefits, a monthly employer 

contribution equal to the minimum contribution required under Section 22892(b)(2) of 

PEMHCA (PEMHCA Minimum).  This amount is established by CalPERS and may change 

annually. 

Pursuant to PEMHCA and relevant PERS regulations, a retired Member will qualify 

for retiree medical benefits if his or her retirement from the Town is effective within 120 

days of his or her separation from employment with the Town and the retired Member 

receives a retirement allowance from CalPERS resulting from his or her service with the 

Town (Annuitant).  Annuitants are eligible to continue health coverage under PEMHCA.  

An Annuitant will receive the PEMHCA Minimum regardless of hire date.   

Supplemental benefits will be provided to Active Members and Annuitants in 

accordance with the terms set forth in Sections (2), (3) and (4) below.   

(2)  Supplemental Benefit for Active Members 

The Town offers an Internal Revenue Code Section 125 Plan (Plan) which 

contains premium conversion, health care reimbursement and dependent care 

reimbursement as available benefits.  The availability of the Plan is contingent on 

compliance with State and Federal rules and regulations.  The Town and Association 

agree to meet and confer if any part of the Plan is found to be noncompliant regarding a 

replacement provision.  In addition to the PEMHCA Minimum, the Town contributes for 

eligible Active Members an additional amount to be used to pay for premiums for Health 

Insurance Coverage through the Plan. The amount of the additional monthly 

contribution for each Active Member’s PERS health insurance premium is based on the 

date of hire.  An Active Member may not use the contribution for other reasons. 

 

(i) Active Members Hired Prior to June 1, 2008 (Tier A) 

 Active Members hired prior to June 1, 2008, will receive a contribution 

under the Plan equal to the full cost of the PERS health plan selected, for which 

he or she and his or her dependents are eligible and enrolled, minus the PEMHCA 

minimum contribution. 

 The Town may not require Tier A Active Members to pay or contribute 

premiums for medical or hospital insurance unless the Town has first met with 

and obtained the agreement of the Association. 

(ii)   Active Members Hired on or after June 1, 2008 but on or before June 30, 

2012 (Tier B) 

Active Members hired on or after June 1, 2008 and on or before June 30, 

2012, will receive a contribution under the Plan equal to the cost of the PERS 

health plan in which he or she and his or her dependents are eligible and 



 

Communication/Records Association MOU 2019 - 2022 Page 12 

enrolled but not to exceed the cost of second most costly plan offered by 

CalPERS, minus the PEMHCA Minimum.  Members may select enrollment in a 

plan that exceeds the maximum Employer contribution and the difference in cost 

will be paid by the Member through payroll deductions.    

(iii) Active Members Hired on or after July 1, 2012 but on or before December 

31, 2016 (Tier C) 

Active Members hired on or after July 1, 2012 and on or before December 

31, 2016, will receive a contribution under the Plan in the same amount and 

manner as Active Members described in Tier B (section ii) above. 

(iv) Active Members Hired on or after January 1, 2017 (Tier D) 

Active Members hired on or after January 1, 2017, will receive a 

contribution under the Plan in the same amount and manner as Active Members 

described in Tier B (section ii) above. 

(3) Supplemental Benefit for Annuitants Originally Hired Before January 1, 2017 

 In addition to the PEMHCA Minimum, each Annuitant hired by the Town on or 

before December 31, 2016 is eligible for an Employer contribution, as set forth below, to 

be used for reimbursement of additional medical costs under a Retiree Health 

Reimbursement Arrangement (HRA) established by the Employer.  Receipt of 

Reimbursements may be made through a third-party administrator and subject to 

administrative requirements.   

(i) Annuitants Who Were Originally Hired Prior to June 1, 2008 (Tier A) 

Annuitants hired by the Town prior to June 1, 2008, will receive a 

monthly HRA contribution equal to the monthly cost of the PERS health plan 

selected, for which he or she and his or her dependents are eligible and enrolled, 

minus the PEMHCA Minimum.   

 The Town may not require Tier A Annuitants to pay or contribute 

premiums for medical or hospital insurance unless the Town has first met with 

and obtained the agreement of the Association. 

(ii) Annuitants Who Were Originally Hired on or after June 1, 2008, but on or 

before June 30, 2012 (Tier B) 

Annuitants hired by the Town on or after June 1, 2008, but on or before 

June 30, 2012, will receive an HRA contribution equal to the cost of the PERS 

health plan in which he or she and his or her dependents are eligible and 

enrolled but not to exceed the cost of second most costly plan offered by 

CalPERS, minus the PEMHCA Minimum. 



 

Communication/Records Association MOU 2019 - 2022 Page 13 

(iii)  Annuitants Who Were Originally Hired on or after July 1, 2012 but on or 

before December 31, 2016 (Tier C) 

Annuitants hired by the Town on or after July 1, 2012, but on or before 

December 31, 2016, who have five years of service with the Town and at least 

ten years of total PERS service credit, will receive an HRA contribution equal to 

the “applicable percentage” of the cost of the PERS health plan in which he or 

she and his or her dependents are eligible and enrolled but not to exceed the 

cost of the second most costly plan offered by PERS, as adjusted by the 

“applicable percentage”, minus the PEMHCA Minimum.  

The “applicable percentage” shall be determined on the basis of the 

Annuitant’s years of service (with a minimum of five years of service with the 

Town) pursuant to the following vesting schedule: 

CREDITED YEARS OF 
SERVICE 

 APPLICABLE PERCENTAGE 

10  50% 

11  55% 

12  60% 

13  65% 

14  70% 

15  75% 

16  80% 

17  85% 

18  90% 

19  95% 

20 or More  100% 

Notwithstanding the preceding service requirement, the contribution 
payable by the Town shall be equal to 100 percent of the cost of the PERS health 
plan in which he or she and his or her dependents are eligible and enrolled but 
not to exceed the cost of second most costly plan offered by CalPERS, minus the 
PEMHCA Minimum, on behalf of any annuitant who retired for industrial 
disability. 

This benefit is structured in accordance with the PERS statutory vesting 

schedule in Government Code Section 22893 such that Tier C Annuitants will 

receive retiree medical benefits calculated in accordance with the statutory 

vesting schedule and related provisions of Section 22893, as it may from time to 

time be amended, provided that only the PEMHCA Minimum will be paid directly 

to CalPERS and the remaining amount, as described in the first paragraph of this 

Section (D)(3)(iii), will be provided to Tier C Annuitants in the form of a 

reimbursement under the terms of the HRA.   



 

Communication/Records Association MOU 2019 - 2022 Page 14 

(iv)  Retiree Health Benefit Preserved in Event of Reinstatement and 

Subsequent Retirement  

In accordance with AB 410 (2013), as codified in Government Code 

Section 22838, an Annuitant eligible for retiree health benefits pursuant to 

Section (D)(3)(i), (ii) or (iii) who reinstates from retirement may, upon his or her 

subsequent retirement, elect to enroll in a health benefit plan approved or 

maintained by CalPERS as an annuitant of the Town and receive the applicable 

benefit under Section (D)(3)(i), (ii) or (iii), if all of the following apply: 

(a)  The subsequent retirement occurs on or after January 1, 2014; 

(b) The Annuitant is eligible for retiree health coverage through the 

Town prior to reinstatement from retirement; 

(c) The subsequent retirement occurs within 120 days of separation; 

and  

(d) The retiree health contribution available from the Town is higher 

than the retiree health contribution from the employer through 

which the subsequent retirement occurs.   

 To the extent that the Town’s conversion to the PEMHCA Minimum 

causes the requirement at (d) above to fail and, as a result, the Annuitant enrolls 

in a PERS health benefit plan through the subsequent employer, the Town shall 

cause the difference between the total benefit described in Section (D)(3)(i), (ii) 

or (iii), as applicable, and the retiree health benefit to which he or she is entitled 

under the subsequent employer, to be paid to the Annuitant in the form of a 

reimbursement under the HRA of substantiated expenses for a PERS health 

insurance plan in which he or she has enrolled.   

(4) Retirement Health Savings Program (RHSP) 

As soon as administratively possible, the Town will establish a Retirement Health 

Savings Program (RHSP).  The RHSP will use a third-party administrator selected by the 

Town.  The design of the RHSP is intended to be a tax advantaged savings plan to be 

used exclusively for qualifying medical expenses during retirement.  

(i) Mandatory Participation - Members Hired on or after January 1, 2017 

 
Members hired on or after January 1, 2017 receive a monthly Employer 

contribution to an individual account under the RHSP. The Town shall contribute 
to the Member’s individual RHSP account an amount equivalent to one and one-
half percent (1.5%) of the Member’s monthly base salary as shown in the Town’s 
adopted salary schedule.  The base salary for the initial month of service and 



 

Communication/Records Association MOU 2019 - 2022 Page 15 

final month of service shall be prorated based on actual base salary paid in those 
months.  

 
(ii) Optional Participation - Members Hired Prior to January 1, 2017 
 
 Members hired prior to January 1, 2017 may exercise a one-time 
irrevocable election and waiver as defined in the RHSP Plan Document. Any 
Member who elects to receive the RHSP benefit shall receive the same benefit as 
described in Section (D)(4)(i) above and will no longer receive the benefits in 
Section (D)(3) above.   

 
D. Health Club Membership 
 
Health Club Membership benefits are as provided in the Town’s Personnel Policies. 
 
E. Funeral Expenses 
  
The Town shall pay fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000) to the executor, administrator or 
personal representative of the estate of, or to the trustee authorized to pay funeral expenses 
for, any Member killed in the line of duty. 
 
ARTICLE 19 - PAYROLL ERRORS 
 
A. To ensure that system or other errors which affect a Members pay are processed in an 
efficient and effective manner, the Town shall notice the affected Member as soon as 
practicable.   
 
B. Payroll errors detected by a Member shall, as soon as practicable, be communicated to 
the City Manager, or his or her designee.  In the case of under payment, the City Manager or 
his or her designee will process the appropriate adjustments as soon as practicable.   
 
C. Payroll errors identified by the City Manager or his or her designee will be communicated 
to the Member either directly or through the Police Chief.  
 
D. Under payments will be processed as soon as practicable. 
 
E. In the event of an overpayment, the City Manager or his or her designee will determine 
a reasonable repayment schedule and inform the Member of the schedule directly or through 
the Police Chief.  The affected Member shall be given an opportunity to discuss the repayment 
schedule and, if necessary, to request a reasonable adjustment to it.  Factors considered in 
determining a reasonable adjustment to the repayment schedule include but are not limited to, 
the Member’s normal salary, and other financial obligations of the Member.  The Town and the 
Association agree that the Town will use any and all legal remedies to recover any salary 
overpayment made to the Member from the Member’s wages in the event that (1) the Member 
does not respond within five working days of being notified of the overpayment or (2) mutual 
agreement on the repayment schedule is not achieved within ten working days of the Member 
being notified of the overpayment. 
 



 

Communication/Records Association MOU 2019 - 2022 Page 16 

ARTICLE 20 - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 
 
Grievance procedures are provided as stated in the Town’s Personnel Policies.   
 
ARTICLE 21 - SAFETY VESTS 
 
The parties have met and conferred and agreed to the Town’s Safety Vest Policy. 
 
ARTICLE 22 - DEFINITIONS 
 
As used in this Memorandum: 
 
“Base rate” means the hourly rate of pay, by each job classification shown in the tables in 
Appendix A of this Memorandum. 
 
“Personnel Policies” means the provisions, policies and regulations adopted by the City Council 
as Chapter Three of the Colma Administrative Code, or its successor, and the procedures and 
regulations adopted by the City Manager to implement the provisions of Chapter Three of the 
Colma Administrative Code or its successor. 
 
ARTICLE 23 - TRANSITION 

A. Upon execution, this Memorandum of Understanding will supersede the Memorandum of 
Understanding between the parties and for the period from July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2019. 

/// 
 
/// 
 
/// 
 
/// 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF: 

Dated __________________ COLMA POLICE COMMUNICATIONS/RECORDS 
ASSOCIATION 

 
                         By _________________________________ 
 

     _________________________________ 
Print Name and Title 

  
 Attest  _______________ ______________ 
 

     _________________________________ 
Print Name and Title 
 



 

Communication/Records Association MOU 2019 - 2022 Page 17 

       
Dated _________________  TOWN OF COLMA 
                                           
 By _________________________________ 
      Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor 
 
 Attest  _______________ ______________ 
      Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 



 

 

Appendix A 

BASE RATE SALARY TABLES  

 
April 7, 2019 through December 28, 2019 
 
Increased 2% 
 

 Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 

Police Dispatch/Records 
Supervisor 52.42 53.86 55.33 56.79 58.24 

Police Dispatcher/Clerk 43.49 44.70 45.91 47.11 48.31 

 
 
December 29, 2019 through June 27, 2020 
 
Increased 2% 
 

 Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 

Police Dispatch/Records 
Supervisor 53.46 54.94 56.44 57.92 59.41 

Police Dispatcher/Clerk 44.36 45.60 46.83 48.06 49.29 

 
 
June 28, 2020 through December 26, 2020 
 

Increased 2% 
 

 

 Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 

Police Dispatch/Records 
Supervisor 54.53 56.04 57.57 59.08 60.60 

Police Dispatcher/Clerk 45.25 46.51 47.77 49.02 50.27 

 
 
December 27, 2020 through June 26, 2021 
 

Increased 2% 
 

 

 Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 

Police Dispatch/Records 
Supervisor 55.62 57.16 58.72 60.26 61.81 

Police Dispatcher/Clerk 46.15 47.44 48.72 50.00 51.27 

 
 



 

 

 
 
BASE RATE SALARY TABLES  

 
 
June 27, 2021 through December 25, 2021 
 

Increased 2% 
 

 

 Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 

Police Dispatch/Records 
Supervisor 56.74 58.30 59.89 61.47 63.05 

Police Dispatcher/Clerk 47.08 48.39 49.70 51.00 52.30 

 
 
December 26, 2021 through June 25, 2022 
 

Increased 2% 
 

 Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 

Police Dispatch/Records 
Supervisor 57.87 59.47 61.09 62.70 64.31 

Police Dispatcher/Clerk 48.02 49.35 50.69 52.02 53.34 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Res. 2019-__, Cost of Living Increase Unrepresented Employees; Modifying Salary Schedule Page 1 of 2 
25977.00100\31948887.1  

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-__ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION APPROVING COST OF LIVING SALARY INCREASES FOR CERTAIN 
UNREPRESENTED EMPLOYEES AND MODIFYING  

THE TOWN’S SALARY SCHEDULE  

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve as follows: 

1. Background.

(a) The Town has been in active negotiations since February 2019 to address potential
salary increases for both represented and unrepresented employees. 

(b) The City Council has recently concluded negotiations with both the Colma Peace Officers 
Association and the Colma Police Communications/Record Association. 

(c) The City Manager is now recommending that the City Council approve cost of living 
increases for certain unrepresented employees consistent with Town’s past practice of treating 
the unrepresented employees consistent with the Colma Peace Officers Association and the 
Colma Police Communications/Record Association, and because the City Council has been 
contemplating potential salary increases for both represented and unrepresented employees 
since February 2019.  The City Manager is recommending that these salary increases be 
retroactive to April 7, 2019. 

2. Order; Cost of Living Salary Increases for Certain Unrepresented Employees

(a) The City Council hereby approves a cost of living increase for certain unrepresented
employees, excluding the City Manager and Police Chief who both have separate employment 
agreements with the Town.  This approval also excludes Casual Part-Time Recreation positions 
that will be addressed by separate City Council action through Resolution No. 2019-__. 

(b) All unrepresented employee positions, excluding the City Manager, Police Chief, and 
Casual Part-Time Recreation positions, shall receive a 2 percent pay increase every six months 
beginning April 7, 2019 through June 1, 2022 for a total increase of 12 percent over the three- 
year period.  

3. Salary Schedule Adopted.

(a) The City Council hereby amends the Town’s salary schedule to implement the salary
increases for both represented and unrepresented employees consistent with the City Council’s 
approval of the represented employees respective MOUs and the adoption of this Resolution 
implementing increases for certain unrepresented employees. 

(b) The amended salary schedule is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and is hereby 
incorporated by this reference. 

Attachment E



Res. 2019-__, Cost of Living Increase Unrepresented Employees; Modifying Salary Schedule Page 2 of 2 
25977.00100\31948887.1  

4. No Contract. Nothing herein shall be construed as a contract with any employee, and 
the City Council shall have the discretion to modify the respective salaries in accordance with 
any applicable state or local provisions. 

5. Effective Date.  This resolution shall become effective upon adoption. 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2019-__ was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
said City Council held on April 10, 2019 by the following vote: 
 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 

  Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 

Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor      

Helen Fisicaro        

Raquel Gonzalez      

Diana Colvin      

John Irish Goodwin      

Voting Tally 0 0    

 

 

Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 
 



Res. 2019-__ Retention Pay and Sick Leave Conversion Page 1 of 3 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-__ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION AMENDING SUBCHAPTER 3.02 AND 
3.06 OF THE COLMA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE, 

RELATING TO RETENTION PAY AND SICK LEAVE 
CONVERSION 

The City Council of the Town of Colma hereby resolves: 

 CAC SECTION 3.02.305 ADDED. 

Section 3.02.305 of the Colma Administrative Code is hereby amended to state as follows: 

3.02.305 Retention Pay 

Effective in the first pay period after April 10, 2019, employees will be eligible for retention pay 
as follows:   

(a) Full-time employees will be eligible for retention pay in the amount of 2.5% for 
continuous ten (10) years of Town of Colma service, and an additional 2.5% for twenty (20) 
years of continuous Town of Colma service, to a combined maximum of 5% retention pay.  The 
percentage of retention pay shall be calculated on the employee’s base pay (not including 
incentive pay or any other differential pay). After the effective date above, employees are 
eligible for retention pay beginning in the first pay period following their anniversary date in 
which the employee meets the 10 year or 20 year of continuous Town service.  For purposes of 
this section, “continuous” service shall include vacation, sick leave, other paid time off, as well 
as Town-approved leaves of absence and other leaves required by law.   

(b) Part-time employees will be eligible for retention pay based on actual hours worked.  
Once a part-time employee has worked 2,080 hours, the part-time employee will be credited 
with one year of service credit for purposes of determining eligibility for retention pay.  For 
purposes of applying this provision, “part-time employee” means an employee who normally 
works a schedule of less than 40 hours per week whether classified as “part-time” or “casual.” 
For purposes of this section, “continuous” service shall include vacation, sick leave, other paid 
time off, as well as Town-approved leaves of absence and other leaves required by law.  When 
applying service credit for any approved leaves of absence for part-time and casual employees, 
only the employee’s anticipated scheduled hours will be credited. For casual employees who 
work intermittently, any periods of the year when work is not assigned will not be counted.  

[History: Adopted by Res 2019-__, 4/10/19] 

 CAC SECTION 3.06.130 AMENDED.  

Section 3.06.130 of the Colma Administrative Code is hereby amended to state as follows: 

Attachment F



Res. 2019-__ Retention Pay and Sick Leave Conversion Page 2 of 3 
 

3.06.130 Conversion or Payment for Unused Sick Leave 

Upon separation of employment with the Town, an employee is not entitled to be paid for his or 
her accrued and unused sick leave except as follows:  

(a) an employee who is eligible for and who has applied for retirement under CalPERS 
within four (4) months of separation from the Town of Colma may, at the employee's option, 
convert unused and accrued sick leave to additional PERS service credit or be paid for unused 
and accrued sick leave, provided that the number of hours to be converted or paid shall not 
exceed 1,040 hours. 

(b) An employee hired after July 1, 2019 who is eligible for and who has applied for 
retirement under the California Public Employees Retirement System within four (4) months of 
separation from the Town may, at the employee’s option, convert unused and accrued sick 
leave to additional PERS service credit provided that the number of hours to be converted shall 
not exceed 1,040 hours.  Accrued but unused sick leave shall have no cash value at separation 
for such employees.   

[Originally, 3.06.110; History: Res 2008-03, 2/13/08; Res 2014-04, 2/13/14; Res 2014-
39, 9/10/14; Res 2019-__, 4/10/19]] 

 SEVERABILITY. 

Each of the provisions of this resolution is severable from all other provisions. If any article, 
section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this resolution is for any reason 
held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity 
of the remaining portions of this resolution. 

 NOT A CEQA PROJECT. 

The City Council finds that adoption of this resolution is not a "project," as defined in the 
California Environmental Quality Act because it does not have a potential for resulting in either 
a direct physical change in the environment or a reasonably foreseeable indirect physical 
change in the environment and concerns general policy and procedure making. 

 EFFECTIVE DATE. 

This resolution shall take effect upon adoption. 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 



Res. 2019-__ Retention Pay and Sick Leave Conversion Page 3 of 3 
 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2019-__ was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
said City Council held on April 10, 2019 by the following vote: 
 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 

  Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 

Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor      

John Irish Goodwin       

Helen Fisicaro       

Diana Colvin      

Raquel Gonzalez      

Voting Tally 0 0    

 

 

Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Staff Report re: Green Infrastructure Study Session  Page 1 of 3 

STAFF REPORT 

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM: Michael Laughlin, City Planner 

Jonathan Kwan, Associate Planner 

Katherine Sheehan, Stormwater Program Manager 

VIA: Brian Dossey, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: April 10, 2019 

SUBJECT: Green Infrastructure Study Session 

RECOMMENDATION 

This item is a study session for informational purposes only. No City Council action is required; 
however, staff seeks comments, questions, impressions and opinions from each Council 
member regarding issues and concerns. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Town of Colma is required to develop a Green Infrastructure Plan that demonstrates how 
the Town will improve storm drain infrastructure to manage and reduce pollutants in 
stormwater runoff by September 2019.  This study session will provide an informational update 
on the progress of the Green Infrastructure Plan, including a brief background on green 
infrastructure.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

Costs associated with the development of the Green Infrastructure Plan are part of the Town’s 
approved budget.  

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS 

In May of 2017, The City Council approved moving forward in the development of a Green 
Infrastructure Work Plan.  This study session is intended to present an update on the status of 
the Green Infrastructure plan, while also providing an opportunity to the City Council and 
members of the public the opportunity to ask questions about the plan and what does it mean to 
Colma moving forward. 

Item #9



Staff Report re: Green Infrastructure Study Session  Page 2 of 3 

The San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board’s Municipal Regional Permit (MRP) 
identifies and regulates the control of various pollutants in stormwater runoff from municipal 
storm drain systems throughout San Mateo, Santa Clara, Alameda, and Contra Costa Counties. 
Provision C.3.j of the MRP requires each jurisdiction subject to the MRP, including the Town of 
Colma The MRP mandate instructs each jurisdiction within the San Francisco Bay Area region to 
develop a Green Infrastructure Plan that demonstrates how each jurisdiction will gradually shift 
from traditional “gray” storm drain infrastructure—which channels polluted runoff directly into 
receiving waters without treatment—to a more resilient and sustainable storm drain system 
comprised of “green” infrastructure facilities and sustainable practices to  capture, store and treat 
stormwater using specially designed landscape systems before the runoff enters the bay or ocean.  

The Green Infrastructure Plan: 

• Includes a mapping and prioritization mechanism to identify and prioritize both private 
and public green infrastructure project opportunities; 

• Identifies locations and timeframes for implementing green infrastructure, including 
numeric targets for retrofitting impervious areas to achieve mandated pollutant load 
reductions; 

• Utilizes a regionally consistent process for tracking and mapping completed projects to 
ensure progress towards meeting the pollutant load reduction targets; 

• Includes and/or reference design and construction guidelines and standard specifications 
and details for green infrastructure to guide and enable the completion of projects; 

• Integrates with other planning efforts, including updating relevant plans, policies, codes, 
and ordinances to incorporate green infrastructure for stormwater management to 
support the implementation of project opportunities; 

• Evaluates long-term funding options for design, construction, and long-term operations 
and maintenance, from the Town and other sources; 

• Incorporates any necessary legal mechanisms to enable implementation of the plan and 
projects within and by the Town; and, 

• Includes public outreach on development and implementation of the plan. 

For the Town to be compliant to the requirements of the MRP, the Town’s Green Infrastructure 
Plan must be completed and then submitted to the Water Board by September of 2019.  

Council Adopted Values 

The consideration of the Green Infrastructure Plan is consistent with the Council value of vision 
because it considers the future health, safety and welfare of town and its residents. 

Sustainability Impact 

The ultimate approval of the Green Infrastructure Plan will promote the development of green 
infrastructure through future private and public projects within the Town. Having a plan in place 



Staff Report re: Green Infrastructure Study Session  Page 3 of 3 

that guided projects to build sustainable storm water treatment facilities will enhance water 
quality into the bay and the benefits that come with a healthy bay and ocean.  

Alternatives 

None 

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends the City Council listen to a presentation given by staff and ask questions on 
about the preparation of the plan.  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Staff Report re FY 2019-20 Budget Study Session  Page 1 of 7 

STAFF REPORT 

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Pak Lin, Administrative Services Director 

VIA: Brian Dossey, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: April 10, 2019 

SUBJECT: FY 2019-20 Budget Study Session 

RECOMMENDATION 

This item is a study session for informational purposes only. No City Council action is required; 
however, Staff seeks City Council feedback on the following: 

1. Reclassify part-time HR Manager position to full-time HR Analyst,
2. Offer Intern/Student Aide program for FY 2019-20, which includes a Public Information

Officer Intern, a Recreation Intern, and a part-time year-round Student Aide for office
administration,

3. Begin making additional contributions in FY 2019-20 to PARS Pension Trust based on
CalPERS 6 percent discount rate,

4. Appropriate $125,000 in FY 2018-19 towards consultants cost to research and investigate
the opportunity for new taxes or fees to prepare for operating deficit projected for FY
2021/22,

5. Consider amending the Investment Policy to add Bank Certificate of Deposit and sign
agreement with broker/dealer company to begin the rolling CD investment strategy, as
described in the Analysis section of the Staff Report.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The projected operating surplus for the Town’s General Fund is $2,661,175 for FY 2018-19 and 
$696,857 for FY 2019-20. The surplus accounts for the following: 

• Slow down in the economy resulting in conservative projections for sales tax and cardroom
tax revenues;

• New investment strategies to maintain the current investment earnings level in FY
2019/20;

• New planning, building and engineering fees and deposits, effective May 1, 2019;

• Cost of Living Adjustments and other personnel benefits per the recent negotiations; and
• Reduction in contribution to OPEB Trust, per 2017 OPEB Valuation Report.

Major increases are summarized in Attachment A and the “Analysis” section of the Staff Report. 

Item #10



 

Staff Report re FY 2019-20 Budget Study Session  Page 2 of 7 

FISCAL IMPACT 

City Council review and direction on the 2019-20 Budget and Financial Plan preliminary report will 
not impact the current 2018-19 City Budget.  It will inform the development of the Proposed 
2019-20 Budget and Financial Plan that will be considered by the City Council in May and June. 

BACKGROUND 

The budget is an annual planning tool that communicates priorities and sets the Town’s operating 
and spending policy for the year. The City Manager is responsible for presenting a budget to the 
City Council, in accordance with Colma Administrative Code Section 4.01 Division 2. The financial 
objective of the budget is to ensure that there are sufficient funds to meet ongoing spending. 
Special projects, where spending is generally one-time in nature, can utilize reserves. 

The Budget Process really begins at the beginning of each fiscal year on July 1st. Upon adoption 
of the 2018-19 Budget, Town Staff reviews and monitors monthly expenditure reports and 
address any issues or discrepancies immediately. In January, departments were asked to review 
their mid-year numbers and provide preliminary assessments on whether budget adjustments are 
needed. As presented in the February 27, 2019 City Council meeting, no budget adjustments 
were needed. The Mid-Year Budget Revenue agenda item included a summary of City Council 
approved budget amendments for the first half of the fiscal year, including the addition of and 
appropriation for the El Camino Real Bicycle and Pedestrian Project, the creation of seven new 
funds and the related transfers, the budget increase for the Dispatch Furniture Upgrade project, 
and the implementation of the 2018 Unfunded Liabilities Strategies – where $1.05 million was 
paid to CalPERS as a supplemental contribution, $1.00 million was transferred to the PARS 
Pension Trust, and $650,000 was transferred to the Accrued Leave Reserve addressing Leave 
Payouts upon retirement. 

The development of the FY 2019-20 budget began shortly after the February City Council meeting. 
Departments were given total expenditures through February and budget instructions. 
Departments were also tasked to project year ending expenditures for FY 2018-19 and “hold the 
line” for FY 2019-20 expenditure budget. Aside from utility increases and selected contract 
services, the Departments were diligent in holding the line on their respective budgets.  

The Finance Team was responsible for projecting the departmental personnel costs and non-
departmental revenues. The personnel cost projection was finalized after the tentative labor 
agreements were reached. The personnel cost accounted for separations, vacancies and other 
departmental personnel changes.  

Finance continues to use HdL for sales tax revenue projections, State and County reports for 
grants and other distributions, and historical average for Cardroom Tax, rentals and investment 
earnings. Finance also hosted a county financial officer group (SAMFOG) in March and polled 
other Finance Director’s form the County on what they foresee for the next five years and their 
projection method for General Fund revenues and expenditures.  

  



 

Staff Report re FY 2019-20 Budget Study Session  Page 3 of 7 

ANALYSIS 

Based on our analysis, the General Fund is projected to have an operating surplus of $2,661,175 
for FY 2018-19 and $696,857 for FY 2019-20. 

 [a] [b] [b] / [a] [c] [c] - [b] [c] / [b]-1 

Financial Summary 
General Fund 
(in millions) 

2018/19 
Amended 

Budget 

2018/19 
Estimated 

Actual 

% of 
Estimated 
Actual to 

Budget 

2019/20 
Proposed 

Budget 

$ Change 
Budget to 
Estimated 

Actual 

% of 
Budget to 
Estimated 

Actual 

Revenues $ 17.53 $ 17.75 101% $ 17.83 $ 0.26 2% 

Expenditures  15.48  15.08 97%  17.13  2.04 11% 

Operating Surplus / 
(Deficit) 

$ 2.06 $ 2.67 -- $ 0.70 -- -- 

Total General Fund revenues are expected to exceed the FY 2018-19 budget by $212,000, 
bringing the projected estimated revenue from $17,534,322 to $17,751,276. The FY 2019-20 
General Fund revenues are projected to increase by $264,555 from the FY 2018-19 Estimated 
Actuals. The main drivers for these increases are in “sales and cardroom taxes”, “licenses and 
permits”, and “use of money & property”. 

Sales and Cardroom Taxes 

As shown in Attachment B, sales tax revenue is projected to be $11,690,000 in FY 2018-19 and 
$11,550,000 in FY 2019-20. This is driven by two elements. Roughly $300,000 of the sales tax 
received in FY 2018-19 should have been received in FY 2017-18. Due to a system change, the 
California Department of Tax and Fee Administration (CDTFA) could not distribute sales tax timely 
to all California agencies. The second driver is from auto sales, where HdL noticed that auto 
purchases and transfers have plateaued in FY 2018-19 and is assumed to reduce in FY 2019-20.   

Cardroom taxes have consistently hoovered over $4.2 million and $4.4 million and is projected 
conservatively at $4,300,000 in FY 2018-19 and $4,250,000 in FY 2019-20.  

Licenses & Permits 

The FY 2018-19 License & Permit budget accounts for the development of two specific commercial 
lots, which did not occur in FY 2018-19. As a result, the FY 2018-19 License & Permit revenue is 
$20,939 less than the FY 2018-19 Budget. Assuming the projects will begin in FY 2019-20 plus 
the newly City Council approved fees and related charges for Planning, Building, and Engineering 
Divisions, the FY 2019-20 License & Permit revenue is expected to be $160,154 more than  
FY 2018-19 Estimated Actual. The Planning, Building and Engineering Divisions have also began 
noticing a decline in permit activities in FY 2018-19. This is an early indicator of an economic 
slowdown and will require continued monitoring to assert whether this is a trend or a blip.  

Use of Money & Property 

The Town invests all its excess funds into State and County Pools, LAIF and SMC Pool respectively. 
The goal of these investment pools is to secure public funds by investing in short term, more 
security, and liquid assets. The types of assets are also governed by California Government Code 



 

Staff Report re FY 2019-20 Budget Study Session  Page 4 of 7 

Section 53600, et seq. As a result, investment returns are usually 3 percent to 4 percent lower 
than the market. The average return has been between 1.0% to 1.7%.  

Because Wall Street has been extremely reactive to the suggested changes to federal and 
international policies, investment earnings have experienced unusual growth, regardless of types. 
As a result, the Town’s investment earning is projected to be $400,904 in FY 2018-19, or $187,904 
more than budget. To ensure the Town will weather the upcoming economic adjustment, Town 
Staff has met with an investment company to diversify the Town’s portfolio. One viable option is 
to invest $5,000,000 into Bank Certificate of Deposits (CD) where a million dollars will be invested 
in 1-Year CDs, 2-Year CDs, 3-Year CDs, 4-Year CDs, and 5-Year CDs. There will be a $250,000 
limit for each CD so that it can be FDIC/NDUA insured. The FY 2019-20 Investment Earnings 
assume that the Town will embark on this rolling CDs investment strategy and thereby setting 
the budget at $500,904 in FY 2019-20. Staff is anticipating that the new investment strategy may 
push the anticipated operating deficit from FY 2021/22 to FY 2022/23. 

General Fund Expenditures 

As shown in Attachment B, total FY 2018-19 General Fund Expenditures will be $15,079,100, 
or 97% of budget. The FY 2019-20 Budget is $17,128,973, or an increase of 14% from the FY 
2018-19 Estimated Actual. The numbers below include all “Proposed Increases” and “Other 
Discussion Matters” sections below. To provide a highlight of the changes in the expenditure 
budget, these items are mentioned as it applies to the expenditure categories. The items are 
discussed in more detail in the “Proposed Increases” and “Other Discussion Matters” sections 
below.  

 [a] [b] [b] / [a] [c] [c] - [b] [c] / [b]-1 

General Fund 

Expenditures 
(in millions) 

2018/19 

Amended 
Budget 

2018/19 

Estimated 
Actual 

% of 
Estimated 

Actual to 
Budget 

2019/20 

Proposed 
Budget 

$ Change 
Budget to 

Estimated 
Actual 

% of 
Budget to 

Estimated 
Actual 

Salary, Wages, and 
Benefits 

$ 10.04 $ 9.85 98% $ 11.23 $ 1.37 14% 

Supplies & Services 
(Including Contractual) 

 4.53  4.33 96%  4.69  0.36 8% 

Recreation Expenses  0.18  0.18 100%  0.19  0.01 7% 

Facilities  0.60  0.60 99%  0.72  0.13 21% 

Fleet Allocation & 
Equipment Purchase 

 0.14  0.12 87%  0.29  0.17 147% 

Total Expenditures $ 15.48 $ 15.08 97% $ 17.13 $ 2.05 14% 

The FY 2019-20 Budget is $2,049,873 more than the FY 2018-19 Estimated Actual.  

• $625,352 increase is in Salary & Wages. The increase includes negotiated COLA increases, 
reclassification of part-time HR Manager to full-time HR Analyst, the internship/student 
aide program, and the additional support in Finance, as discussed below. The FY 2019-20 
Budget also included positions that were vacant in FY 2018-19, but expected to be filled 
by FY 2019-20. 



 

Staff Report re FY 2019-20 Budget Study Session  Page 5 of 7 

• $748,423 increase is in Benefits. The main drivers are increase in PERS contribution and 
increase medical premium cost. Due to changes in CalPERS medical negotiations, many 
employees moved from Blue Shields Access to a more expensive plan (Anthem Blue Cross) 
in order to stay with the same doctor. The FY 2019-20 budget also includes, for the first 
time, supplemental pension contribution of $343,815 into PARS Trust and the additional 
$65,000 set aside towards Accrued Leave Payout.  

• $363,290 increase is Supplies & Services (including Contractual). Total insurance premium 
for property, liability and worker’s comp is projected to increase by $88,800 or 15% more 
than FY 2018-19 Estimated Actual.  The remaining $149,490 is primarily the restoration 
of contingency budget for all departments. These include restoring the planning services 
budget for plan reviews. As mentioned in the Licenses & Permit section above, potentially 
fewer planning permit applications submitted could mean less Professional Planning 
Services for Current Activities. The FY 2018-19 City Manager Estimated Actual includes 
$125,000 for consulting services to survey for potential new taxes and fees. This will be 
a multi-year project beginning in April 2019 in preparation for the November 2020 election 
ballot. The appropriation of $125,000, if approved by the City Council, will be moved to 
the capital program to be carried over until the project completes. More information can 
be found in the “Other Discussion Matters” section below. 

• $125,597 increase in Facilities. More than half of the increase is in Town Hall and is related 
to the EVGo Station, which generates roughly $5,000 of additional electricity charges per 
month. The Town is currently in negotiations with EVGo and will be fully reimbursed once 
the contract is signed.  Of the $125,597 increase, $38,950 of the increase is related to 
interior and exterior maintenance at all facilities, including new kitchen cabinets, sink and 
appliances at Sterling Park ($20,000), repairs to cupola (roof) at Sterling Park ($15,000), 
new drapes and fabric for partition wall at Community Center ($33,000), and secondary 
entryway for Dispatch area at the Police Station ($18,000). Additional details on these 
increases will be included in the budget narratives for the May 8  Budget Study Session. 

• $174,490 increase in Fleet Allocation & Equipment Purchase. The budget for the 
Equipment Purchase stays the same as FY 2018-19. The main change is in the Fleet 
Replacement Allocation. Previously, the annual allocation has been $86,000 per year. 
Based on the increase in vehicle replacement costs and the costs to outfit each vehicle, 
the average replacement cost per vehicle (Police or Public Works) is close to $100,000. 
To ensure the Town is reserving adequately for vehicle replacement, the annual allocation 
has been increased to $250,000. Staff will review the fleet replacement schedule and 
allocation method, and will bring additional Information back to the City Council for 
consideration in FY 2019-20 on a funding strategy and allocation method. 

Proposed Increases 

A key element in developing the Annual Town Budget is a review of the staffing level of each 
department, as well as unexpected new fees or contract costs. The City Manager reviewed the 
proposed increases and is recommending the following changes in FY 2019-20 Budget:    

• Internship/Student Aide Program. The proposed increase includes budget for two 
interns and one student aide. The positions include a Public Information Officer Intern, a 
Recreation Intern, and an Office Management Student Aide. The Interns are budgeted 
based on $20/hr. The Student Aide is budgeted based on $13/hr. Total program cost is 
$38,500. 



 

Staff Report re FY 2019-20 Budget Study Session  Page 6 of 7 

• Reclassification of Part-Time HR Manager to Full-Time HR Analyst. The number 
of recruitments in FY 2018-19 has been unprecedented and turnover from retirement is 
expected to continue to rise in the next five years. The part-time HR Manager does not 
have enough hours in the office to manage recruitments, benefits, trainings, and other 
HR matters. To minimize cost, Staff is recommending to reclassify the Part-Time HR 
Manager position to a Full-Time HR Analyst, with the opportunity for part-time benefited. 
Net increase is $94,607. 

• Supplemental Coverage for Finance. A member of the Finance Team will be going on 
an extended leave of absence for personal matters. To ensure sufficient coverage for 
finance functions, Staff is recommending a net increase of $26,877. It will be split between 
consulting services and part-time personnel. 

• Sea Level Rise contribution. As discussed in the February 27, 2019 City Council 
meeting, Resilient San Mateo asked the Town for a $25,000 initial contribution to fund 
and address Bay Area sea water level rise.  

Net impact of these additions is $184,984.  

Other Discussion Matters 

• New Tax/Fee Consultant. During the February 6, 2019 Strategic Planning meeting, 
Staff presented the concept of engaging with a subject matter expert in finding out 
whether the Town residents and businesses have appetite for new fees or taxes. The idea 
of looking for new taxes was to address the projected operating deficit in FY 2021/22.  
Staff reached out to a consultant well known in the industry and requested a proposal. 
The consultants proposed services included engagement with the public around their 
priorities, provide City Council feedback on residents’ views, guide us through our vision 
enhancing “local control over the Town’s taxpayer’s dollars”, and gauging interest in local 
funding solutions.  The proposal also included a Town-wide survey, marketing, and ballot 
preparation. The proposal also included an exit clause such that if the Town survey shows 
no appetite for new taxes or fees, the Town may terminate the contract. The Town-wide 
survey is $17,000. The entire package is estimated to be $125,000. The FY 2018-19 
Estimated Actual included the entire $125,000 in the City Manager’s Office. If City Council 
is still interested in this discovery stage, Staff will come back in the City Council for 
authorization to enter into this engagement. The unspent appropriation will be carried 
over to the following year. If the City Council is not in favor of this, the budget presentation 
scheduled for May 8 will exclude this estimate. 

• New Investment Policy. To address the projected operating deficit in FY 2021-22, Staff 
connected with a broker/dealer in March. Typical investment firms will charge an 
administrative fee plus a percent on investment earnings. Because this is a broker/dealer, 
the Town is buying investment from the source, rather than through a third-party. This 
particular broker/dealer recommended the Town to start with CDs as they are FDIC/NDUA 
insured as long as each investment is less than $250,000. The broker/dealer also 
recommended a rolling CD strategy to diversify and get the best overall return. Current 
average returns on CDs are 2.0% to 2.5% depending on the length of the CD. If the City 
Council is in favor of this investment strategy, Staff will come back in the May or June City 
Council meeting for authorization to enter into an agreement with the broker/dealer and 
amend the Investment Policy to add a clause for Bank Certificates of Deposit. If the City 



Staff Report re FY 2019-20 Budget Study Session  Page 7 of 7 

Council is not in favor of this option, the investment earnings budget will be reduced to 
the same level as FY 2018-19 Budget.  

• Supplemental Pension Contribution. The FY 2019-20 Budget accounts for
supplemental contribution of $343,815 based on 6 percent discount rate. This amount is
consistent with the 2018 Unfunded Liability Strategy report. At 6.5%, the supplemental
contribution would be $154,624. City Council may also direct Staff to make this
supplemental contribution directly to CalPERS rather than to PARS.

• OPEB Contribution. Based on the 2017 OPEB Valuation report and discussion with the
Actuary, the Town’s FY 2018-19 contribution included medical premiums for active
employees – in the report it’s called implicit subsidy. The FY 2018-19 OPEB contribution
was $1,698,715. The FY 2019-20 proposed OPEB contribution is $1,609,375. Since the
Town’s OPEB is currently 14% funded, Staff recommends to keep the FY 2018-19 OPEB
Contribution as $1,698,718 but reduce the FY 2019-20 OPEB Contribution to $1,609,375.

Reasons For the Recommended Action/Findings 

Providing for early public discussion of the Town’s Financial Plan allows an opportunity for Staff 
to evaluate and incorporate any new items that may not be included in the baseline budget.  

Council Adopted Values 

The Staff recommendation is consistent with the Council adopted values of: 

• Responsibility: Making decisions after prudent consideration of their financial impact,

considering the long-term financial needs of the agency, especially its financial stability.

• Fairness: Support the public’s right to know and promote meaningful public involvement.

Alternatives 

In addition to providing feedback on the items listed under Proposed Increases and Other 
Discussion Matters, the City Council may provide direction to Staff on budgetary items to add or 
be removed.  

CONCLUSION 

Staff is requesting comments from the Council and the public on the Preliminary Budget Report 
during the April 10, 2019 Budget Study Session.  A second Budget Study Session will be held on 
May 8, 2019 and a public hearing to adopt the FY 2019-20 Proposed Budget will be held on 
June 12, 2019.  A more detailed budget document will be provided in advance of these meetings. 

ATTACHMENTS 

A. Summary of Significant Increases 
B. General Fund Financial Summary 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Town of Colma
2019-20 Budget
Summary of major increases

Department Description Acct No
 Proposed 

Budget 
 Budget 
Offset  Net Impact 

City Manager Public Info Officer Intern 11-140-5xxxx 16,850        16,850        
Human Resources Reclass HR Mgr to HR Analyst 11-141-5xxxx 163,912      (69,305)        94,607        

Student Aide 11-141-5xxxx 2,400          2,400          
Finance Payroll and accounting coverage 

while employee goes on 
extended leave

11-150-5xxxx 52,200        (25,323)        26,877        

Public Works Eng Student Aide 11-310-5xxxx 2,400          2,400          
Public Works Maint Sea Level Rise 11-320-73006 25,000        25,000        
Recreation Summer Camp Intern 11-510-5xxxx 16,850        16,850        

Total 279,612      (94,628)        184,984      

Attachment A



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Town of Colma

2019‐20 Budget

4‐Year Financial Summary

[a] [b] [a] ‐ [b] [b] / [a] [c] [c] ‐ [b] [c] / [b]

General Fund

2016/17 

Actual

2017/18 

Actual

2018/19 Final 

Budget

2018/19 Est 

Actual

2018/19 

Budget to 

Actual

% of 

Budget to 

Actual

2019/20 

Proposed 

Budget

Inc / (Dec) 

Budget to 

Est. Actual

% Inc / 

(Dec)

Revenues by Categories

Sales Tax 11,191,459      11,397,118      11,750,000    11,690,000    60,000            99% 11,550,000      (140,000)          ‐1%

Cardroom Tax 4,278,510        4,339,128        4,235,000      4,300,000      (65,000)           102% 4,250,000        (50,000)            ‐1%

Property & Other Taxes 722,104            735,905            731,000          767,278          (36,278)           105% 765,678            (1,599)              0%

Licenses & Permits 365,671            271,046            123,840          102,901          20,939            83% 263,055            160,154           156%

Fines & Forfeitures 57,490              65,128              69,000            92,846            (23,846)           135% 92,846              ‐ 0%

Use of Money & Property 529,330            695,218            317,302          509,998          (192,696)         161% 609,998            100,000           20%

Revenues from Other Agencies 23,230              54,636              67,010            78,010            (11,000)           116% 67,010              (11,000)            ‐14%

Charges for Current Services 872,472            880,037            135,870          154,942          (19,072)           114% 159,942            5,000                3%

Other Revenues 74,458              77,790              105,300          55,300            50,000            53% 67,300              12,000             22%

Total Revenues 18,114,723      18,516,005      17,534,322      17,751,276      (211,954)           101% 17,825,830      264,555            0%

Expenditures by Department

General Administration 2,818,632        3,155,394        3,607,480      3,603,009      4,471               100% 4,015,880        412,871           11%

Police 6,054,863        6,954,347        7,649,268      7,454,310      194,958          97% 8,577,620        1,123,310       15%

Public Works & Planning/Building 3,029,425        3,104,850        2,596,170      2,401,909      194,261          93% 2,696,310        294,401           12%

Facilities 458,198            480,662            598,790          595,728          3,062               99% 721,325            125,597           21%

Recreation 954,005            980,677            1,025,840      1,024,144      1,696               100% 1,117,838        93,694             9%

Total Expenditures (by Dept) 13,315,123      14,675,930      15,477,548      15,079,100      398,448            97% 17,128,973      2,049,873        14%

Operating Surplus/ (Deficit) 4,799,600        3,840,075        2,056,774      2,672,175      696,857           

Other Activities

Transfers In 0   29,499              300,000          300,000          0  100% 0   (300,000)          ‐100%

Transfers (Out) (5,848,997)       (1,183,819)       (16,772,045)   (16,772,045)   0  100% (2,151,549)       14,620,496      ‐87%

Net Transfers In/(Out) (5,848,997)       (1,154,320)       (16,472,045)     (16,472,045)     0   200% (2,151,549)       14,320,496      ‐187%

Fund Balance

Change in Fund Balance (1,049,397)       2,685,755        (14,415,271)   (13,799,870)   (1,454,692)      

Beginning Fund Balance 22,594,247      21,544,850      24,230,605    24,230,605    10,430,735     

Ending Fund Balance 21,544,850      24,230,605      9,815,334        10,430,735      8,976,044       

[a] [b] [a] ‐ [b] [b] / [a] [c] [c] ‐ [b] [c] / [b]

General Fund

2016/17 

Actual

2017/18 

Actual

2018/19 Final 

Budget

2018/19 Est 

Actual

2018/19 

Budget to 

Actual

% of 

Budget to 

Actual

2019/20 

Proposed 

Budget

Inc / (Dec) 

Budget to 

Est. Actual

% Inc / 

(Dec)

Expenditures by Category

Salary, Wages & Benefits 8,023,616        9,120,178        10,036,370    9,852,695      183,675          98% 11,226,470      1,373,775       14%

Supplies & Services (including Contractu 4,662,062        4,865,363        4,524,678      4,331,486      193,192          96% 4,694,776        363,290           8%

Recreation Expenses 149,809            166,764            180,500          180,479          21 100% 193,200            12,721             7%

Facilities 458,198            480,662            598,790          595,728          3,062               99% 721,325            125,597           21%

Fleet Allocation & Equipment Purcahse 21,438              42,962              137,210          118,712          18,498            87% 293,202            174,490           147%

Total Expenditures (by Cate) 13,315,123      14,675,930      15,477,548      15,079,100      398,448            97% 17,128,973      2,049,873        14%

Attachment B



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  


	04.10.19 Regular Meeting Agenda
	1. Minutes - Regular Meeting 03.27.19
	2. Report of Checks Paid - March
	3. Recreation Quarterly Report - January - March 2019
	A. January - March 2019 Quarterly Review 

	4. Edgeworth - Completion of Access Control System Project
	A. Resolution - Access Control System Completion
	B. Notice of Completion re Access Control System Project

	5. RMRA Project List
	A. Resolution
	B. Project List - Colma FY 19-20

	6. El Camino Real Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Plan
	A. Resolution - Appproving Fehr & Peers Agreement
	B. Professional Services Agreement

	7. Salary Schedule Adjustment for Recreation Leader and Facility Attendant
	A. Resolution - Salary Recreation Staff

	8. Approval of MOUs and Cost of Living Increases
	A. Resolution - POA
	B. MOU - POA
	C. Resolution - Dispatchers
	D. MOU - Dispatchers
	E. Resolution - Unrepresented Salary Increases and Salary Schedule
	F. Resolution - Retention Pay and Sick Leave Conversion 2019

	9. Green Infrastructure Study Session
	10. FY 2019-20 Budget Study Session
	A. Summary of Increases
	B. 2019-20 Budget Workbook - OpenGov Data




